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DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE*

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaodong

Mr. Li Guang

Mr. Xu Jun

Mr. Li Dapeng

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Luo Xiao Jing

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KYI-1111, Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Suite 4701, 47/F, Central Plaza

|8 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35/F, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
3/F, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

*  Details of the changes in members of the Board and Board Committees after
the reporting period are set out in the “Events after the Reporting Period” in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on P. 18 of this annual
report.
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BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Standard Limited

Share Registration Public Office
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong
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GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Financial data
(expressed in HK$000)

Including continuing operations and
discontinued operation

Turnover

Gross profit

Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation

Total borrowings

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Average capital employed (note 6)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Staff costs

Net asset attributable to owners of the

Company per share (HK$) (note /)

Financial ratios

Retum on capital employed (hote 2)
Current ratio (note 3)

Quick ratio (note 4)

Gearing ratio (note 5)

Note:
£K l. Net asset attributable
- BEf7 to owners of the
RiH#E Company per share

Retumn on capital

ERBHAEN (Hrite) employed
3. mELE = RPEE L 3. Curent ratio
4 REHE = (RPEE-FE) + FBaflE 4, Quick ratio
5 BfEgE - EEgE + KA 5. Gearing ratio
HHA
FibER
6. THERER = [(BREE+ERDES)+ 3 Average capital

(LFEREE+ LFIRDER)) +2

employed

2015 2016 2017
2,616,696 2,436,821 299,670
244910 291426 38,754
75469 76,024 (237,098)
195,743 223467 (115,748)
1,624,876 1,601,885 1,749,884
2,183518 2,124,905 2,034,129
2,906,355 2,849,457 2,772,396
7,530 15,100 18,598
89,368 92,076 91,494
0.500 0486 0.466
6.7% 7.8% (4.2%)
[13 1.24 1.10
099 [.17 1.05
74% 75% 86%
Equity attributable Number of
to owners < issued shares
of the Company at year end

Earnings before interest, tax, ~ —  Average capital

depreciation and amortisation employed (note 6)

Current assets =~ Current liabilities

(Current assets - Inventories) = Current liabiltties

Total borrowings = Equity attributable
to owners of the

Company

[(Total equity + non-current borrowing) +

(last year total equity + last year non-current borrowing)] = 2

Annual Report 2017  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, the business performance of China
Energine International (Holdings) Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “"Group”) for the year ended 3| December 2017 is
summarised in the following paragraphs.

RESULTS SUMMARY

For the year ended 3| December 2017, the Group's turnover of continuing
operations amounted to HK$283.37 million as compared to that of 2016 of
HK$2,415.21 million, representing HK$2,131.84 million or 88.3% decrease in
turnover; the loss for the year attributable to owners amounted to HK$237.10
million whereas the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of 2016 amounted to HK$76.02 million. The tumover for the year comprised
sale of wind energy related products of HK$234.03 million, sale of electricity
generated from wind farm of HK$25.71 million, sale of energy storage and
related products of HK$3.67 million and HK$19.96 million related to sales of
telecommunication products whereas that of 2016 comprised sale of wind
energy related products of HK$1,785.68 million, sale of electricity generated
from wind farm of HK$24.99 million, sale of energy storage and related
products of HK$541.33 million and HK$63.21 million related to sales of

telecommunication products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Wind Power Generation Business

In 2017, as affected by the national reform at the supply side and overall
slowed economic development, the new energy industry in high speed
development presented a trend of continuous slowdown. Specifically, a batch

of completed wind farms and photovoltaic power stations could not be put
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into operation and there was a high proportion of new energy power stations
connected to power grid were subject to wind power and photovoltaic power
curtailment. In order to cope with the severe situation, the National Energy
Administration published the Results of Monitoring and Early Warning of Wind
Power Investment in 2017 which identifies the six provinces (regions) including
Inner Mongolia, Heilongjiang, Jilin, Ningxia, Gansu and Xinjiang (including the
corps), in which wind power curtailment was mainly implemented, as the red
alert areas for development and construction of wind power and specified
to postpone the approval of new wind power projects before radial solution
of consumption issue. Therefore, the Group's operation of wind power
generation business in 2017 was seriously affected in Gansu, Inner Mongolia,
Jilin, Ningxia and other provinces from which the Group's orders were mainly

originated.

In light of tough market environment, the Group proactively conducted
exploration, took the initiative to optimise the wind power resources layout,
and established good cooperation relationship with Inner Mongolia, Hebei,
Henan, Shaaxin, Anhui, Shandong and other provinces (autonomous regions).
It has successively entered into agreements on wind farm development with
the government of Puyang, Henan Province; Baotou and Xilingol League, Inner
Mongolia; Weixian, Hebei Province; Sanmenxia, Henan Province; Tongliao,
Inner Mongolia to reserve a batch of wind power resources and provide
market guarantee for the sustained development of wind power business of

the Group.

Driven by the “"One Belt, One Road" initiative, the Group proactively
developed its overseas business including advancement of the wind
power project in Kyrgyzstan, making efforts for the Group's participation
in international market competition and international sales of proprietary
products in 2018.

Annual Report 2017  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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In addition, heating project brought about new development opportunities for
the Group. On the basis of the 50,000KW pilot project in each of Damaoqi
and Chayougiangji, Inner Mongolia in 2016, the Group entered into a contract
on sales of wind turbines in 2017 for the 50,000KW phase Il project in
Damaogj, Inner Mongolia and won the bid for equipment of the wind power

project in Sanruili, Ulangab.

In light of the changes in national policy, industrial situation and the more
rigorous market competition environment, the Group fully developed the
domestic and overseas markets, comprehensively improved management
and control, and vigorously explored the solution of bottleneck problems
influencing the Company's development to enhance the Company's

sustainable development capacity and lay a foundation for future development.

Research and Development of Technology

On the basis of the wind turbine portfolio with proprietary intellectual
property rights consisting of 9 models in 5 types including 900KW, [.5MW
and 2MW excitation magnetic directdrive wind turbines and 2MW and 3MW
permanent magnetic directdrive wind turbines, the Group further improved
the performance of units, enriched product portfolio and proceeded with
platform-based technology approval and research design of 2MW excitation

magnetic/permanent magnetic wind power units.

In order to better respond to the changes in the current market demands, the
Group conducted research and development for the application of high tower
technology in areas with low wind speed and high shear wind resources. In
2017, the Group completed technology approval, plan review, main part
design, determination of construction scheme and partial preparations before
prototype installation for mixed tower and performed survey and exchange
on the technical and economic feasibility of the application of all-steel flexible

tower technology.
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In terms of product certification, the Company completed type certification for
3MW permanent magnetic units and design certification for 110 type 2MW

low-wind speed excitation magnetic directdrive wind turbines in 2017.

In respect of research and development of core technology, the Group has
mastered the core technologies of wind turbines, carried out research and
development of electric control system with proprietary intellectual property
rights for wind turbines and formed characteristic master control system,
variable pitch system and remote monitoring system. Moreover, the Group
completed hardware assembly and software debugging and finished the
fabrication and analog simulation test for the external controller which matches
with the autonomous control system of 2MW excitation magnetic/permanent
magnetic and 3MW permanent magnetic wind turbines independently for the

first time.

In 2017, the Group implemented the refined quality management project and
prepared the Measures and Requirements for Improvement of Quality Work
for the Year. The amended new quality system procedures were reviewed and
put into trial implementation. In terms of intellectual property management,
the Group applied for 27 patents, 7 of which have been licensed, and applied

for registration of 3 software copyrights.

Throughout the year, the Group completed formulating || enterprise
standards, and presided over and completed the national standard Excitation
Magnetic Directdrive Power Generation Units (GB/T 35207-2017).

Annual Report 2017  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Wind Farm Operations

The wind farms operated by the Group include the CASC Long Yuan (Benxi)
wind farm which is controlled and operated by the Group, installed with 29
sets of 850KW wind turbines with a capacity of 24,650KW, and three wind
farms invested and constructed by the Group: the Jilin Longyuan Tongyu
wind farm, installed with 236 sets of 850KW wind turbines with a capacity
of 200,000KW; the Jiangsu Longyuan Rudong wind farm, installed with 100
sets of .5MW wind turbines with a capacity of 150,000KW and the Inner
Mongolia Datang Wanyuan Xinghe wind farm, installed with 55 sets of
900KW directdrive wind turbines with a capacity of 49, 500KW. The wind farm

operations business made relatively stable contributions to the Group.

Energy Storage Business

Whilst vigorously tapping wind energy technology, the Group, in response
to the state call for vigorous development of clean energy, is committed to
the application of graphene and energy storage technologies. At present, the
Group possesses oxidation-reduction method and mechanical exfoliation
method with proprietary intellectual property rights for preparation of
graphene and has made positive progress in preparation of graphene and
graphene cladded lithium iron phosphate as anode material. The improvement
of material technology has effectively reduced the electrical resistivity of
materials and improved materials’ cryogenic property, rate capability and cycle
life.

In order to further optimise the properties of the Group's energy storage
products, in 2017, the Company placed the focus of research and
development on the battery material manufacturing technology. At present,
small batch tests have been completed for the raw material lithium iron
phosphate at laboratory. For cathode materials, the processing technology
for artificial graphite has been finalized, and the Company has possessed the

formula for preparation of electrolyte for energy storage battery.

The Group is planning cooperation with all parties in advancement of the

development of energy storage business.
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For the power battery for electric vehicles as developed by the Group, in
order to meet the new requirements on the technologies of electric vehicles
and power battery products under the Notice on Adjustment to the Fiscal
Subsidies for Promotion of and Application of New Energy Vehicles jointly
published by the Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Science and Technology,
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology and State Development
and Reform Commission, the Group re-modified the battery design scheme,
arranged trial production and re-submitted the samples to the authorities
in the industry for testing. The battery cell and battery pack of high specific
energy have passed the certification by national authorities, which have issued

a new mandatory testing report on battery pack.

In addition, the Group has launched the controller integrating motor controller,
high voltage distribution and DCDC, and obtained the national mandatory
testing report.

The Group has set up a special sales team to proactively develop the battery
sales market, and sought for industrial cooperation with Fujian Motors Group

and Zhongzhi Group.

Annual Report 2017 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

11



12

EEEmN DT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

WL KHERER

017F - AEBEWBRRIHEMAE RS
BRARNIHER])EGEEHNSS|MRER
BITAH MERLIKMERRROIKBEER
BoWITFEFTHE  IHSREMRRENT
REES EZFRUBRTEEEETAE -
ARARERZEBUFAEREZOER - UK
ERZEBRANEERAURERAIR B
BERER—LRESNENER G IHFERN
RAKRE  A017FNRANAR  KEETF
ZRMNEZENEAERALTN 2RI E
—H% AREHIHEBERTIBHRGESE B
BIHEREA—FRMBRAAZE S —REZED
7l e

RERHREBEREET

ARERECRLRRAREREDIHEER
GARDRERBRNAETHERNIRHERE
B AARENMSEER  REAXKEER
RISERZEAE

EXEREEERR

HEWT7FAREFEOBRAR  £LR
B BMERR HERR - SWERLEEX
Rk - RAIGIET T BB E R ER - A8
R

(=) BrsRER

ERBAFMERREEFRNITERE
BREXATRRAENRROEMN
R HEEEXRMAERTEERNHE
RABEANTE -ZRARE EET
RERBBROABRLE  EMEA
MERERDNE B RMRENETE

TEMXBRER(ER) BRALF « 2017 F3§

Rare-earth Permanent Magnet Product Business

In 2017, Jiangsu Energine Technology Co. Ltd. (*Jiangsu Energine”), a subsidiary
of the Group, actively negotiated with a traction machine agent of Korea to
expand the sales channel for rare-earth permanent magnet gearless traction
machines. In the second half of 2017, due to the equity integration of other
shareholders of Jiangsu Energine, the composition of the board of directors
shall be adjusted accordingly. As such business is not the core business of
the Group, and after taking into account the previous performance and
development prospects of the business, the Company has transferred the
right of appointing one of the directors to the largest shareholder of Jiangsu
Energine. Pursuant to which, the members of the board of directors which the
Group is entitled to appoint reduced from three of five to two of five, and the
Group ceased to exercise control over Jiangsu Energine with effect from 22
December, 2017. Therefore, Jiangsu Energine has changed from a subsidiary to

an associate of the Company.

Business of Automotive Engine Management Systems

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co,, Ltd, a joint venture
of the Group, is a leading supplier in the domestic automotive electronic fuel
injection market with a stable market share, and makes continuous stable

contributions to the Group's resullts.

MATERIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL

For the five major risk categories as assessed by the Group in 2017, namely
policy risks, operational risks, financing risks, quality risks and technology risks,
the Company has prepared measures for risk management and control. Details

are as follows:

(I) Policy Risks

In view of the industrial characteristic of domestic rapid development of
new energy, the adjustments to national industrial regulation policy also
accelerated, posing great influence on the development of wind power
industry and new energy vehicles industry. The changes in adjustment
to relevant policies on wind curtailment and down regulation of power

tariff, connection to power grid, modification of technical standards on
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power battery for new energy vehicles, etc. exerted remarkable effects
on the principal business segments of the Group. The Group intensified
the prospective study on the national macro policy and industrial
development, and adjusted the market layout and resources allocation

in due source in accordance with its strategies.

Operational Risks

Wind power curtailment is an important factor restricting the
development of wind power industry. Under its influence, customer's
demands have decreased and the settlement for sales also slowed
down, which generates tremendous effects on the Group's production
and operation as well as financials performance. The Group was
proactively following up the recovery of trade receivables, exploring

and developing new profit models, such as wind power heating, etc.

Financing Risks

With the changes in the wind turbine business scale of the Group,
investment has been continuously made in research and development
of 2MW and 3MW low-wind speed permanent magnetic directdrive
wind turbines and energy storage system. Therefore, the capital size was
difficult to satisfy business development in the short period. The gap of
working capital was mainly funded through financial financing channels,
resulting in a relatively high gearing ratio and certain financial risks. The
Group is committed to speeding up the settlement for sales, as well as

exploring the possibility of developing other financing channels.

Quality Risks

The construction of supply chain system for new wind power units
and the quality reliability of critical parts supplied from outsourced
manufacturers needs time for further inspection while the warranty
periods of the contracts are relatively long (5 years). This is a quality
risk to a certain extent. The above risks are managed by the measures
of the quality assurance system on one hand, and through identification
and transfer for risks by means of supplier certification and assessment,
quality assurance terms under purchase contracts, dispatch of quality
engineers to intervene the manufacturing process of critical components,

and establishment of insurance mechanism.
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(V) Technology Risks

In order to cope with the changes in market demands, in particular
the shift of wind resource development focus to the low wind speed
regions in central south and southern China, the Group is conducting
research and development as well as design of products suitable for low
wind speed areas following the direction of technological development
of high tower and large blade wind turbines. Aiming at satisfying market
and customer demands, the Group reinforces integration and allocation
of technical research and development resources, speeds up the launch
of new products and implements concomitant type design certification,
prototype testing and type testing to identify and release technical risks

in advance.

PROSPECTS

In order to solve the issues of wind power curtailment, the State has issued
the policy of regulating the development of wind energy regions, the negative
impacts of which on the Group has exceeded our expectation. It is expected
that relevant impacts will continue in Gansu, Xinjiang and Jilin in 2018.
However, with the stable improvement of the macro economic of the PRC,
the "wind power curtailment” will be gradually alleviated. The wind power
industry has revealed the signs of gradual recovery in 2018, which will provide

new opportunities for the Company to reverse the adverse situation.

In order to cope with the global warming and alleviate environmental pollution,
it has become a global consensus to develop renewable energy sources
represented by wind power. The “Thirteenth Five-year” Plan for Wind Power
Development as published by the National Energy Administration proposes
the clear development objectives of wind power industry, indicating that the
long-term development of wind power is still promising. It was stressed at the
2018 National Energy Working Conference to focus on green development,
and vigorously solve the issue of clean energy consumption and advance
the strategic project of energy structure adjustment, to promote the clean
and efficient utilization of coal and greatly improve the clean development
of energy. For the current difficulties in the industry, it was pointed out at
the conference that the hydropower, wind power and photovoltaic power

curtailment problem will be fundamentally solved nationwide by 2020.
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Facing the increasingly fierce industrial competition, the Group will exert more
efforts on research and development. On the one hand, guided by market
demands, the Group will find out customers’ demands and build its product
portfolio to ensure that the wind turbine products can meet the changing
market demands. On the other hand, the Group will enhance improvement
and optimization of the electric control system with proprietary intellectual
property rights. The research and development of high tower and research
on distributed wind power generation technology will further improve the

products’ competitiveness in the market.

The Group will master national macro policy and industrial development
information, plan future development in accordance with its strategies and
build an organizational structure and strategic management system which can
support the realization of the Company's strategic objectives to compressively
enhance the organizing ability. At the same time, the Company will proactively
explore new wind power development model and form a complete industrial

chain for wind power development.

In September 2017, the National Development and Reform Commission,
Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Science and Technology, Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology, and the National Energy Administration jointly
published the Guiding Opinions on Promoting Energy Storage Technology
and Industrial Development, which elaborates the strategic significance of
developing energy storage technologies and industries and proposes the
guiding ideology and future development objectives to promote the sound
development of energy storage technologies and industries, and support
and propel energy reform. The Group will continue to intensify research
on energy storage field and low-cost and long-cycle life battery materials to
combine energy storage and wind power generation. The electricity output
power curve of wind farm will be smoothened through frequency and peak
load modulation to achieve peak-load shifting; the Group will also beef up
the research and development of battery, anode and cathode materials,
electrolyte, etc. and improve engineering realization capacity to expedite the

process of industrialization.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 24 employees (31 December
2016: 21 employees) in the Hong Kong head office and 559 employees (31
December 2016: 587 employees) in the Mainland China offices. The staff costs
incurred for the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately HK$85.85
million (for the year ended 31 December 2016: approximately HK$84.05
million). Remuneration of employee is determined according to individual
employee’s performance and the prevailing trends in different areas and
reviewed on an annual basis. The Group also provides Mandatory Provident
Fund and medical insurance to its employees. In addition, discretionary

performance bonus is available at the discretion of the Directors.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Group Finance

In December 2014, the Group proceeded a placing of the existing shares
and subscription for new shares of 400 million shares, with the placing price
of HK$0.75 per share (whereas HK$0.91 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the last trading day of 15 December 2014), obtaining a net fund
of approximately HK$29 | million, which is mainly used for general working
capital and to finance projects on energy storage including the development of
wind and solar power storage integration and that on electric vehicle, thereby
improving the Group's capital structure and enhancing the market value. The
placing shares were placed to no less than six placees who are individual,
institutional or professional investors and whose ultimate beneficial owners are
(i) independent of and not connected with the Company and its connected
persons; and (i) third parties independent of and not acting in concert with
Astrotech Group Ltd. or any person acting in concert with it. As of March
2018, the fund has been used to the extent of HK$225.58 million, comprising
working capital for wind energy business in purchase of materials of wind
turbine of HK$175.00 million, working capital for telecommunication business
of HK$20.00 million, and dividend distribution of HK$30.58 million.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

Total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2017 were
HK$1,749,884,000 (2016: HK$1,601,885,000), of which HK$169,570,000
(2016: HK$252,543,000) was floating-rate borrowings and the remaining was
fixed-rate. All borrowings of the Group were determined at market interest
rate. The Group has not issued any financial instruments for hedging or other

purposes.

Gearing ratio (total borrowings over equity attributable to owners of the
Company) as at 31 December 2017 was 86% (2016: 75%).

Financial Position

The capital structure of the Group at 3| December 2017 comprised total
equity of HK$2,101 million (2016: HK$2,210 million) and non-current
borrowings of HK$488 million (2016: HK$746 million) due within | to 5 years.
This structure of net asset value of HK$2,101 million (2016: HK$2,210 million)
coupling with gearing ratio of 86% (2016: 75%), current ratio 1.10 (2016: 1.24),
quick ratio 1.05 (2016: 1.17) as well as bank and cash balance HK$108 million
(2016: HK$242 million) presented a sound financial position of the Group as
of 31 December 2017 with good liquidity position.

Distribution to Shareholders

There was no distribution to the Company's shareholders in the year 2017
(2016 nil).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, certain assets of the Group of HK$63,000 (2016:
HK$2,233,000) have been pledged to secure bank facility.
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Exchange Exposures

Most of the Group's business transactions were conducted in Renminbi. The
Group expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation was not

significant and therefore has not engaged in any hedging activities.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Changes in members of the Board and Board Committees

Mr. Han Shuwang, Chairman of the Company, was re-designated from an
Executive Director to a Non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 14 February 2018, and will resign as the Chairman of the Company, the
Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and the
Chairman of the Development and Investment Committee with effect from
29 March 2018.

Mr. Liu Xiaowei, a Non-executive Director of the Company, will be re-
designated as an Executive Director of the Company. Meanwhile, he will be
appointed as the Chairman of the Company, the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and the Chairman of the Development and Investment
Committee, and will cease to be a member of the Audit Committee, with
effect from 29 March 2018.

APPRECIATION

I ' would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors and all
the staff members for their hard work and dedication during the year under

review.

By Order of the Board

Han Shuwang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Shuwang, aged 53, researcher, obtained his Bachelor degree
in Computer Science and Master degree in Economics and Management
from Tongji University and American Southwest University respectively. He
is a Visiting Professor of Tongji University and achieved the Space Award
from China Aerospace Science and Technology Corporation (“CASC"). He
served as Deputy Division Chief, Deputy Chief Designer, Director Assistant
and Deputy Director with the Institute of Space Automation Control of
China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT") between 1988
and 1997, Deputy Director of Political Division of CALT in 1997, Director
of Administrative Office of CALT in 1998, General Manager of Beijing Wan
Yuan Industry Corporation in 1999, President Assistant of CALT in 2000
and Vice President of CALT from 2002 to September 2017. In parallel, he
has also been a Director of Aisino Co., Ltd. (“Aisino”), a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange from November 2000 to April 201 1. He has
served as Executive Deputy General Manager of China Aerospace Investment
Holdings Ltd. since September 2017. Mr. Han possesses rich experiences
in strategic research and business administration. He was appointed as an
Executive Director and Vice-Chairman of the Company on 14 February 2006
and became the Chairman of the Company on 26 October 2007. He was
re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-executive Director on
|4 February 2018. Mr. Han resigned as Chairman of the Company, a Non-
executive Director, Chairman of the Nomination Committee and Chairman
of the Development and Investment Committee with effect from 29 March
2018.

Mr. Liu Xiaowei, aged 53, graduated from Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics with a bachelor degree in property management and obtained
an Executive Master degree of Business Administration from Chongging
University. Mr. Liu joined CALT in August 1987 and served successively as
Deputy Director and Director of Support Management Division; Director of
External Support Division under Material Department, Chief Assistant, Deputy
Chief, Chief of Material Department; and General Manager of Logistic Center
of CALT. He has served as the Chief of Department of Development Planning
cum the Deputy Commander of Information Construction of CALT up to
March 2018. In parallel, Mr. Liu has been a director of Astrotech Group Ltd.
(“Astrotech”), the Company's controlling shareholder since 10 May 2017.
Astrotech is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT. Mr. Liu was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company on 30 March 2017, and he was re-
designated as an Executive Director of the Company and was appointed as
Chairman of the Company with effect from 29 March 2018.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Xiaodong, aged 50, graduated from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics with a Bachelor degree in Electronic Engineering
and obtained a MBA from the University of South Australia. During 1989 to
1998, he worked with Beijing Institute of Spacecraft System Engineering under
the China Academy of Space Technology (“CAST"), the Comprehensive
Planning Bureau of the Ministry of Aerospace Industry of China and then
the General Office of China Aerospace Corporation, as Assistant Engineer,
Engineer, Senior Engineer, and Secretary to the President cum Deputy
Director of the President’s Office. He possesses extensive experience in
research and management. He was appointed as Executive Director cum
Deputy General Manager of China Aerospace International Holdings Limited
in 1999. He has been appointed as Vice-Chairman, Executive Director cum
General Manager (later becoming Executive Director cum General Manager)
of the Company since May 1999 and became the Vice-Chairman and
Executive Director of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director

of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Li Guang, aged 55, senior engineer, graduated from Tianjin University
with a Master degree in Industrial Automation. He had been the Designer
with the [4th Institute of CALT between 1991 and 1996, Division Chief of
Development Division, and General Manager of Beijing Long March Hi-tech
Corporation from 1996 to 2005. He acted as Deputy General Manager, and
General Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan Industry Corporation successively
from 1998. Mr. Li exhibits excellent experience in scientific research, product
development and business administration. He was appointed as an Executive
Director and a Deputy General Manager of the Company on 14 February
2006. On 31 March 2009, Mr. Li resigned from Deputy General Manager and
was re-designated as Non-executive Director on | April 2009 following his
appointment as the Chief of Business and Investment Department of CALT. In
parallel, he has been a Director of Astrotech since 8 August 2010. He was re-
designated as Executive Director and appointed as CEO on 6 March 2012. He

has also been a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Xu Jun, aged 49, graduated from Zhengzhou Institute of Aeronautical
Industry Management with a Bachelor degree with major in Finance and
Accounting and BeiHang University with a Master degree in Business
Administration. He was qualified as a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in June 1996. Since November 2005, he had
successively been the Chief Accountant with subsidiaries of the Company's
controlling shareholder, CALT, namely, Long March Aerospace Control
Engineering Corporation, CALT Institute 18, and Aerospace Research Institute
of Materials & Processing Technology. He was appointed as Executive Director
and Financial Controller of the Company on | November 2014. He is also a

Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice, aged 63, is a fellow of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the CPA Australia and an
associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is
also a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She has over 25 years of
experience in corporate finance and is well experienced in both the equity and
debt markets. She held various senior positions in international and local banks
and financial institutions. Ms. Kan is a controlling shareholder and the Managing
Director of Asia Investment Management Ltd., a licensed corporation
under the SFO. She is a licensed investment adviser under the SFO and is
a registered officer of Asia Investment Management Ltd.. Ms. Kan is also an
independent non-executive director of each of Regal Hotels International
Holdings Ltd., Cosmopolitan International Holdings Ltd., Shimao Property
Holdings Ltd., Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Ltd. and
Mason Group Holdings Ltd, all of which are companies listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, and an independent director of AVIC International
Maritime Holdings Ltd.,, a company listed on Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Ltd. She was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 23 January 2008 and reappointed on 23 January 2011, 23
January 2014 and 23 January 2017 for a tenure of 3 years each.
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Mr. Gordon Ng, aged 53, obtained his Bachelor's degree in Microbiology
and Biochemistry and Master's degree in Intellectual Property from University
of London. He was qualified as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1993 and
Hong Kong in 1994. He has been the Head of Corporate Finance/Capital
Market, Asia of the Hong Kong Office of an international law firm since July
2013. Prior to that, he had been a partner of Sidley Austin Brown & Wood,
Hong Kong and CMS Cameron Mckenna, Hong Kong, Hogan & Hartson,
Hong Kong and O'Melveny & Myers, Hong Kong. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of Mainland Headwear Holdings Ltd, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, on | September 2014. He
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 23 January 2008 and reappointed on 23 January 201 |, 23 January 2014 and
23 January 2017 for a tenure of 3 years each.

Mr. Li Dapeng, aged 61, graduated from University of Science and
Technology Beijing (formerly Beijing Steel Institute) with a Bachelor degree
in Computing and a Master degree in Engineering and the University of
Cincinnati with a PhD degree in Computer Engineering. Possessing extensive
experience relating to system development in capital market, Mr. Li had been
the Chief Architect with New York Mercantile Exchange during the years 2001
to 2003; Chief Information Officer, and Chairman of Technology Management
Committee with Shanghai Futures Exchange during the years from 2003 to
2010; CEO and founder of Shanghai Global Financial Technology during the
years 2010 to 2012; Senior Adviser to CEO with the Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Ltd. during the period from March 2013 to May 2015. He has
been the Chief Information Officer of Haier Financial Group, offering the
perspective on technology and risk management to the group since June
2015. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the

Company on 10 November 2015 for a tenure of 3 years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Zhang Jianhua, aged 57, registered consultant, graduated from Nankai
University with an Executive Master degree in Business Administration. She
had been the Officer Assistant, Officer and General Manager with the China
Aerospace Engineering Consultation Centre (“CAECC") successively during
2003 to 2007; the Deputy General Manager with Beijing Control Technology
Co. Ltd. under, and the Chief Engineer with the Business Investment and
Industry Development Department of, CAST. She has been the Deputy Chief
of Business and Investment Development of CALT from 2010 to May 2015,
possessing rich experience in engineering consultancy, market exploitation,
project operation and business management. Both CAECC and CAST are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of CASC. She was appointed as Non-executive
Director of the Company on 30 March 2012 and retired therefrom by
rotation under the Articles of Association of the Company on 5 June 2015.
She served as Chairman Assistant with the Company from | June 2015. She is

also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zhang Hua, aged 46, graduated from the Nanjing University of
Technology and Engineering with a Bachelor's degree in Engineering on
welding processing and equipment technology, and graduated from the Harbin
Institute of Technology Management with a Master's degree in management
on management science and engineering. Since he joined CALT in August
1994, he had successively served as Deputy Director of the Secretarial
Division One of the CALT's Academy Office, Director of Make Management
Office under Make Management Department, Director of Technology Safety
and Environmental Protection Division under Quality Technology Department,
Chief Assistant and Deputy Chief of Quality Assurance Department. He was
appointed as a Vice President of the Company on | November 2016.

Mr. Hu Wei Lin, aged 53, researcher, graduated from the School of
Mechanical Engineering of Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a bachelor
degree and from China Academy of Space Technology with a Master degree
in Spacecraft Design. Since 1991, he successively served in Beijing Long March
Hi-Tech Corporation as Designer, Deputy Chief Engineer, Chief Engineer
and Deputy General Manager. In 2007, he was appointed as Deputy General
Manager cum Director of Wind Power Research and Development Centre of
Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd.. He has been appointed as General Manager
Project Assistant and the Director of Research on 900KW wind turbine of
the Company since February 2010. He was appointed as a Vice President
of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of

subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Zhang Wei Min, aged 51, researcher, graduated from Department of
Precision Instruments and Mechanology, Tsinghua University with a Bachelor's
degree. He successively served as Designer, and Deputy Manager in Civilian
Product Design House, as Deputy Factory Manager of Packaging Machinery
Factory, as Chief Engineer in Civilian Product Group of Capital Aerospace
Machinery Company from July 1988 to October 2001. During November
2001 to July 2003, he studied at the Research Centre for Intelligent Machines,
McGill University in Canada in obtaining a Master's degree of engineering.
From July 2003, he successively served as Deputy General Manager, and the
Manager of Wind Power Research and Development Department of Beijing
Energine Industry Co. Ltd.. He served as General Manager Project Assistant
of the Company from February 2010. He was appointed as a Vice President
of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of

subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Shen Jian, aged 54, a senior engineer, graduated from China Textile
University majoring in mechanical design. Since 1993, he has been a engineer
of the technology department, deputy director and director of the equipment
factory of Beijing Long March Hi-tech Corporation, general manager of Beijing
Aerospace Sanjin Technology Development Company, and deputy general
manager and general manager of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Shen
has over |12 years of extensive experience in the wind power equipment
manufacturing industry. He was appointed as an assistant to president of the
Company in February 2011 and was appointed as a Vice President of the
Company on 30 March 2017. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of

the Group.
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This report describes the Company's corporate governance practices and
explains the application of the principles in the Corporate Governance Code
(“the CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“the Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31 December
2017 and includes any significant subsequent events for the period up to the
date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Company recognises that corporate governance practices are
fundamental to the smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company
and its ability to attract investment, protect the rights of shareholders and
enhance shareholder value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017
save the following.

According to the code provision A4.| of the CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.
Mr. Fang Shili, a Non-executive Director retired on 2 June 2017, was not
appointed for a specific term, but was subject to retirement and rotation and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting (*AGM") in accordance
with the retirement provisions under the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken
in this regard to ensure that the Group's corporate governance practices are

no less exacting than those in the CG Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (“the Board") of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report comprises the following

Directors:

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman)(re-designated from an Executive Director to
a Non-executive Director on 4 February 2018)

Mr. Liu Xiaowei (appointed on 30 March 2017)

Mr. Fang Shili (retired on 2 June 2017)

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Li Guang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xu Jun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
Mr. Gordon Ng
Mr. Li Dapeng

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 19 to 22 of this
Annual Report. The Directors are unrelated to each other in every aspect

including financial, business or family.

The Board meets regularly and Board Meetings are held at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board Meetings of
the year are scheduled in advance and at least 14 days’ notice is given to
Directors so as to give them an opportunity to attend. All Directors are given
an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for Board Meetings. The
Directors may attend a meeting in person or may participate by means of a
conference telephone or similar communication equipment by means of which

all persons participating in the meeting are capable of hearing each other.
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Six Board Meetings and an AGM were held during the year ended 3|
December 2017. The attendance record of each Director at the said meetings

JL‘ '/FI\-\A$&

during the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:-

Executive Directors

Exged

HE/ BITEERE

Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Board

RRAFAE

Annual

Meetings General Meeting

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) ™o 6/6 1/
Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman) 6/6 1/
Mr. Li Guang 6/6 1/l
Mr. Xu Jun 6/6 [/
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xiaowei 2/5 o/l

(appointed on 30 March 2017)

Mr. Fang Shili (retired on 2 June 2017) o/l o/l
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 6/6 I/
Mr. Gordon Ng 5/6 1/
Mr. Li Dapeng 5/6 o/l

Note:  Mr. Han Shuwang was re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-
executive Director on 14 February 20/8.

The Board is responsible for determining those matters that are to be retained
for full Board including, but not limited to, overall strategy and long-term
objectives, new business activities, annual budgets, business plans and financial
statements, interim and final results announcements, material acquisitions and
disposals of assets, investments, capital projects and commitments, annual
internal control assessment, funding and risk management policies as well as

connected transactions.
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The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility in respect of
management and administrative functions to management including, but not
limited to, implementing and achieving the strategies and objectives set by
the Board as well as overseeing the performance of different business units/
departments and monitoring and implementing proper risk management and

internal controls systems.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties and
the Terms of Reference of Corporate Governance Functions of the Board was
adopted on 30 March 2012. The main corporate govemance duties which are

being performed by the Board are as follows:-

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual, if any, applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in

the Corporate Governance Report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") are
separate and are performed by different individuals so as to ensure a clear
division between the Chairman’s responsibility to lead and manage the
Board and the CEO's responsibility to manage the Company's operation and
business. In 2017, Mr. Han Shuwang was the Chairman, and Mr. Li Guang was
the CEO, of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

There are currently three Independent Non-executive Directors. During the
year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report, the Board at
all times met the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules in appointment of a sufficient number of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, at least one third of the Board, one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and financial management
expertise. All the Independent Non-executive Directors bring independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources,
key appointments and standards of conduct through their participating in

Board Meetings and board committees meetings.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors their annual confirmation of independence and considered that each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors is independent in accordance
with the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the "Board Diversity Policy”).
In determining the composition of the Board, the Company considers whether
a candidate will bring potential complementary benefits to the Board and
contribute to the improvement of the overall competence, experience and
expertise of the Board. The Company may consider the diversity of the
composition of the Board in various aspects, including professional experience
and qualifications, gender, age, ethnicity, and cultural and educational
background, as well as any other factors that the Board from time to time
deems relevant and appropriate. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to experience and
expertise, professional experience and qualifications, gender, age, ethnicity and
cuttural and educational background. The Nomination Committee will review

the Board Diversity Policy as and when appropriate to ensure its effectiveness.

Continuous Professional Development

The Directors acknowledge the need to continue to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills for making contributions to the Company.
The participation by individual Directors in the continuous professional
development program with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and

duties of a director of a listed company in 2017 is recorded in the table below.
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MRS AEHN
2ZEH SRERTH
Reading
monthly updates Attending
and reference development
materials programmes
Executive Directors
Mr. Han Shuwang ™ v/ v/
Mr. Wang Xiaodong v/ 4
Mr. Li Guang v/ v
Mr. Xu Jun v v
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Liu Xiaowei
(appointed on 30 March 2017) v v
Mr. Fang Shili (retired on 2 June 2017) v/
Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice v 4
Mr. Gordon Ng v v
Mr. Li Dapeng v/ 4

Note:  Mr. Han Shuwang was re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-
Executive Director on 14 February 2018.

Insurance for Directors and Officers

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
(“D&O Insurance”) for Directors and officers of the Company. The Company
undertakes an annual review of the Company's D&QO Insurance policy in terms
of the amount of cover, the reputation and financial strength of the potential
insurer and the provisions of the insurance policy to ensure that sufficient
cover and protection are provided to the Directors and officers of the

Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members and is chaired by
Mr. Gordon Ng, an Independent Non-executive Director, with Mr. Li Guang,
an Executive Director and CEO, Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice and Mr. Li Dapeng,
Independent Non-executive Directors as members.
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The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with

the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The main duties of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:-

()

(vii)

to recommend to the Board on the Company's policy and structure for

all Directors” and senior management's remuneration;

1o review and approve the management's remuneration proposals with

reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

to recommend to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual

Executive Directors and senior management;

to recommend to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive

Directors;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or

appointment;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal

or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding

his own remuneration.

Two Remuneration Committee Meetings were held during the year

ended 31 December 2017. The attendance record of each member at the

Remuneration Committee meetings during the year ended 31 December
2017 is set out below:-

Remuneration Committee Members

HERE AREEEELNE
Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Mr. Gordon Ng (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Li Guang 2/2
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 2/2
Mr. Li Dapeng 2/2
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The work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the year ended

31 December 2017 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the

Remuneration Committee and is summarised below:-

()

(i)

(v)

reviewed the existing remuneration policy (structure and procedure) for

all Directors” and senior management's remuneration;

recommended the amount of remuneration to be paid to each
Executive Director and senior management member for the year ended
31 December 2017 with reference to corporate goals and objectives
and reviewed the amount of Director’s fees to be paid to each Non-

executive Director for the year ended 3| December 2017;

recommended remuneration proposals of the directors and senior

management for the year ended 31 December 2018; and

approved bonus plan of senior management for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The amount of remuneration paid to each Director for the year ended 3|

December 2017 is set out in Note |2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises five members. It is chaired by Mr. Han
Shuwang, the Chairman, with Mr. Xu Jun, Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice, Mr. Gordon
Ng and Mr. Li Dapeng as members.
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The Company has adopted Terms of Reference of the Nomination
Committee which are aligned with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The

main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:-

()

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed change to the Board to

complement the Company's corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals

nominated for directorship;

to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors;

and

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the CEQO.

One Nomination Committee Meeting was held during the year ended 31

December 2017. The attendance record of each member at the meeting is

set out below:-

Nomination Committee Members

HERE AREEERNE
Number of attendance
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) [/1
Mr. Xu Jun /1
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice /1
Mr. Gordon Ng /1
Mr. Li Dapeng /1
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee for the year ended
31 December 2017 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the

Nomination Committee and is summarised below:

() reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board to implement the Company's

corporate strategy,

(i) assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors in
accordance with the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

(i) recommended to the Board on the appointment of an additional Non-

executive Director and a vice president; and

(iv)  recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors who have offered themselves for re-election at the 2017
AGM.

Any Director appointed (i) to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of shareholders subsequent to his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting of the
shareholders of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such

meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

On 30 March 2017, the Nomination Committee nominated Mr. Liu Xiaowei
as Non-executive Director to be appointed for a tenure of 3 years from 30
March 2017. The said nomination was approved by the Board at the Board
Meeting held on the same day.
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BEREEE Audit Committee

FR BRZEGRENUTKE ! During the year, the Audit Committee comprised the following members:
BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

HBBRLT(FE) Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (Chairman)

REREE Mr. Gordon Ng

FRBEEAE Mr. Li Dapeng

FHUTES Non-executive Directors
ABBEER-F—F+F=A=1THEZ) Mr. Liu Xiaowei (appointed on 30 March 2017)

AN EE(R=FE—+FNAZHRE) Mr. Fang Shili (retired on 2 June 2017)

EVZEGZIEZRENT The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:-

() ®EF BHZEERBRIMNEREAMA () to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and

EEOREHEBRES  BUENEZEA removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
ZHBRIERET - ARRBEFER and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to answer any
ZHANEHES R 2185 questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(i) EBEERARAMBRE  F# KB R¥ (i) to monitor the integrity of the Company's financial statements, annual
FERHRETEN  TERKABRE report and accounts and half-year report and to review any significant
FBETEESREREAMTE EM financial reporting judgments contained therein before submission to
BRBIERER the Board;

(i) MEBFSRIBIMNEREM2BMEM (i) to review the contents of the representation letter to the external
AIER AR auditor prior to submission to the Board;

(v) BARDAZHBES  BREERA (iv) to review the Company's financial controls, risk management and
HP B R AT internal control systems;

v) HREZSREAEXETRELETEH (V) to consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal

EREBRANEXREECLERRAD control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
BREERBUHZTERZ O EETH management’s response to these findings;
7

(vi) HERABENEZEEZ TERFIMW (V) to ensure co-ordination between the internal and exteral auditors and

o THERNHEZNEERARINE to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced, has
RAEREE WABEE 230 A appropriate standing within the Company and to review and monitor its
Figat REREME R effectiveness; and

(vi) BAAKEZHBESHHRRER (vii) to review the Group's financial accounting policies and practices.

36 TEMXESREAR(ER) SRAF ¢ 2017 £5§



ERZEERBE_T—+tH+-A=+—H Two Audit Committee Meetings were held during the year ended 3|
HFEEERITMAGE - SKEHEERES December 2017. The attendance record of each member at the Audit
YR CHEEIIMT Committee meetings is set out below:
HERE, BREESEZREY
Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
EREEENE Audit Committee Members entitled to attend
BBELL(FE) Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (Chairman) 212
RERESE Mr. Gordon Ng 212
FRBEEAE Mr. Li Dapeng 112
AERER=F—LF=H=1HEZ) Mr. Liu Xiaowei (appointed on 30 March 2017) /1
AENRERZFE—+FNAZHRE) Mr. Fang Shili (retired on 2 June 2017) /1
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The work performed by the Audit Committee for the year ended 31

December 2017 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the Audit

Committee and is mainly summarised below:-

()

(i)
(v)

reviewed and discussed with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“DTT"),
the external auditor of the Company, before submission to the Board
the Company's consolidated financial statements in the annual report,
interim report and significant financial reporting judgments contained
therein for monitoring the integrity of the reports;

reviewed the reports from the internal audit department on assessment
of the effectiveness of risk management and the intemal control system
of the Group covering material controls for financial, operational,

compliance and risk management;
reviewed the continuing connected transactions; and

reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on re-appointment
of external auditors.
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Development and Investment Committee

The Development and Investment Committee comprises five members and is
chaired by Mr. Han Shuwang with Mr. Wang Xiaodong, Mr. Li Guang, Mr. Xu

Jun and Mr. Li Dapeng as members.

The duty of the Development and Investment Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Group's development and investment
plan and strategies. No Development and Investment Committee Meeting was
held during the year ended 31 December 2017. However, one Board Meeting
was held with full Board, for discussing and approving the business plan and
budget for the year 2017.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The remunerations of the senior management members as set out on pages
23 to 24 for the year ended 31 December 2017 were within the following
bands:

AE
Number of
individuals

T2 1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$ 1,000,000
1,000,000 78 72 1,500,000 7 7T HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 2
5

ZRETEN 2

BYINAEELEBRRAFASERRZER
AEEZINEREEM BE_T—+LF+ A
=t BULFEEREH  MEEIIMT

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

DTT was appointed as the external auditor of the Group by the shareholders
at the last AGM of the Group. The remuneration to DTT recognised for the

year ended 31 December 2017 was set out as follows:

RRAMRHtREZER Fees relating to services rendered
FET
HK$000
iR Audit services 3,050
i Hi 5 B AR S Interim review services 450
3,500

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#
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THE MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

There were no changes in the Company's Memorandum and Articles of

Association during the year 2017.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBLITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company's Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
consolidated accounts for each half and full financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group"). The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing consolidated
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on page
77. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue its operational existence for the
foreseeable future and thus it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis

in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The reporting responsibilities of the Independent Auditor are set out in the

Independent Auditor's Report on pages 74 to 80.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group's
assets. The Group's risk management and interal control systems are designed
to provide reasonable assurance that material misstatements or losses can be

avoided, and to manage and minimise risks of failure in operational systems.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems. The Internal
Audit Team performs regular reviews of all material controls, including risk
management, financial, operational and compliance controls of the Group and
evaluates their adequacy and effectiveness on a continuing basis. The annual
audit plan is discussed and agreed every year with the Audit Committee. A
report of audit findings is submitted to the members of the Audit Committee
and discussed at the Audit Committee Meetings. The audit reports are then
followed up by the Interal Audit Team to ensure recommended actions have
been taken on the findings previously identified such that they are properly
resolved. Internal audits are designed to provide the Board with reasonable
assurance that sound and effective risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are implemented for protecting the Group's assets and

identifying business risks.

The Board has overseen the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control system covering risk management and all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance for the year under review and
in view of the above, it opined that the Group's risk management and intemal
control systems are effective, adequate and in compliance with the Code

Provisions on risk management and internal control of the CG Code.

The Company has implemented Policy and Procedures on Inside Information,
which set out the reporting procedures for the handling and dissemination of

inside information.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code for dealing
in securities of the Group by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry,
all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Luo Xiao Jing has been appointed as company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”) for the purpose of Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules
with effect from 20 July 2017. As an employee of the Company, the Company
Secretary shall provide assistance to the Board and ensure efficient information
circulation within the Board and, in compliance with the policies and
procedures of the Board, provide advises on governance matters to the Board,
facilitate induction of Directors and monitor their trainings and continuous
professional development. The Company Secretary undertook no less than 15

hours of relevant professional training during the year under review.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide the Group's
shareholders with detailed information on the Group so that they can exercise

their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities.

These include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

The Group encourages its shareholders to attend AGM to ensure a high level
of accountability and to be kept informed of the Group's strategy and goals.
The Chairman of the Board and the chairman of all the Board Committees, or
in their absence, other members of the respective committees, are available
to answer any questions from the shareholders. A separate resolution is
proposed by the Chairman in respect of each issue to be considered at the
AGM, including the re-election of Directors. An AGM circular was distributed
to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM (at least
10 clear business days in the case of all other general meetings), setting out
details of each proposing resolution, poll voting procedures and other relevant

information.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all general meetings of the Company are to be
conducted by poll: the Chairman will at the commencement of the meeting
ensure that an explanation of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll
is provided and then answer any questions from shareholders regarding
voting by way of a poll. The poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange on the business day of the shareholders’

meeting thereafter.

As a channel to further effective communication, the Group maintains a
website at http://www.energine.nk where the Group's announcements,
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate

governance practices and other information are posted.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Company's Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition ("the
Written Requisition”), specifying the proposed resolution (“the Proposed
Resolution”) accompanied by a statement in respect of the matter referred to
in the Proposed Resolution, to the Company Secretary of the Company at its
Head Office, to request the Board to include the Proposed Resolution in the
agenda for the annual general meeting or to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction of any business specified

in such Written Requisition.

Shareholders may at any time send their written enquiries and concerns by
post or by fax to the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of
the Company at its Head Office as follows:

Company Secretary

China Energine International (Holdings) Ltd.
Suite 4701, 47th Floor,

Central Plaza,

|8 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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WORKPLACE QUALITY

Employment

The Company upholds the core value of “leverage employees' talents to full
play and win-win in harmony", focuses on enhancing its management and
control capacity of human resources, and adheres to the concept of “value
creators first”. Promotion of enhancing in organizational capacity and adding
in employees’ value are the core task of the Group, with a combination of
the enterprise strategic development and high-end talent reserve needs
for implementing a sustainable human resources policy. The Company has
established a professional team to enhance professional human resource
management; accelerated the establishment of a more marketized labor and
employment mechanism to expand the view for selection and appointment;
actively explored an incentive and restraint mechanism in line with corporate
competitiveness, with the focus on employment qualifications; remained
its control on labor costs to strictly regulate two-tier revenue allocation
management; and continuously enhanced talent cultivation and initiated
e-learning platform, so as to improve the ability of the whole staff. A platform
for employees’ full development in the enterprise is being built so as to
achieve the sustainable development of the Group based on the win-win in

harmony of both the Group and employees.

RiWEDENETHAY Total number of employees by geographical area:
hEEE REIA i
Hong Kong, China Mainland China
RARERESEE Wind energy and wind farm operation 4 9% 84.56%
(ki 8E S B Energy storage and others P 11.32%
RERARRMRSENETAY Total number of employees by age group and gender:
BER 6HE WBRE 565K
BT 455 SSEUT Bt B Lt
Age Age
Age35  between  between Age 56
% Business andbelow  36to45 46and55 and above Male  Female
ENEERESEE Wind energy and
wind farm operation 61.06% 11.84% 13.04% 1.89% 64.67% 23.16%
e R EM Energy storage and others 7.20% 395% 0.69% 0.34% 8.40% 3.77%
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BA%ER  Wind energy and

R5EE wind farm operation 6.28%
FgEREM  Fnergy storage and others 2.22%

R R
RATBFEMAAABENE » FHiBE-learning
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Turnover rate of employees by age group, gender and

geographical area:

6RE 1Y 565K
455 SSEHNT Nt L g hEEE RERYE
Age Age
between  between Age 56 Hong Kong,  Mainland
36to45 46and55 andabove Male Female China China
23.08% 13.10% 8.33% 9.81% 10.60% 250 9.38%
2333% 0% 0% 2097% 2143% 2143%

Development and training

The Company continuously enhanced talent training and initiated e-leamning
platform to encourage the staff to enrich their professional knowledge
after work. With close focus on core tasks, it offered training programs and
continuously improved the education & training system based on organizational
development and personal growth by enriching training contents, expanding
channels, innovating modes, and consolidating the effects, so as to satisfy the

requirements for competence for various series and at all levels.

In 2017, the Company's online training reached 278 person-times and realized
a scale of 2,294 man-days. The offline training reached 200 person-times
and realized a scale of 670.5 man-days, covering 76.75% of the whole staff.
This provided an advantageous support and service for the development of

Group's business and enhancement of the team quality.

L LEREE
FHRY

Average training

ZIEEESL

Trained employee days completed

percentage by employees
BREEE Senior management 100% 12K days
EEAB Management personnel 59% 34X days
BHEAE Science and technology personnel 100% 58K days
REEAB Technicians 68% 21K days
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Labor standards

The Group strictly regulated the recruitment process, performed the
responsibilities of supervision and management, and prevented the breach
of laws and regulations on child labor, etc. at its very source. The Company
reviewed and verified personal information in the recruitment process
according to relevant laws and regulations of the State in an effort to eliminate
the non-compliance fundamentally. The Group strictly complied with relevant
requirements of the Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong and the Labor
Law of the State and provided various labor protection and safety and health
conditions relating to production required by the laws and regulations to
ensure employees' safety during their services. Meanwhile, the Group paid
remuneration on schedule, provided social insurance in terms of welfare

remuneration to safeguard the legal interests of the employees.

The Group adhered to the basic systems of legal compliance employment
and effectiveness related salary, cultivated value distribution concept oriented
in performance, strengthened employment control and focused on improving
staff structure, and energetically enhanced the quality of the staff, so as to

establish harmonious labor relations.

Health and safety

The Group attaches much emphasis on occupational health and safety,
safety production standards. It produced and operated in accordance with
the laws and national standards, had safety operation conditions, purchased
employment injury insurance for the staff, periodically organized health
examination, equipped fire protection equipment, and launched fire drills
and safety education & training on a regular basis. 2017 was the second year
of supervision and verification after the Company obtained the certificates
for occupation health safety management system and production safety
standardisation. Therefore, we strictly implemented the relevant rules and
regulations, realizing good operation in occupation health safety and effectively
paving the way for its smooth management and operation. In the whole year,
no on-duty accidents of death, serious injury, or minor injury recorded. In

addition, all the occupation health safety management targets have been met.
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Improvement of management system

The Group effectively guaranteed the compliance, effectiveness, and
standard of safety production management system through the operation
of occupation health safety management system and safety production
standardization system. In 2017, the Company issued and implemented the
Notice about Further Specifying the Safety Responsibility System, established
and improved safety responsibility system from organizational structure and
position so as to clarify safety responsibilities of the personnel at all levels and
to promote the fulfillment of such responsibilities; it also organized revision
and improvement of the procedure documents based on the adjustment
of departmental functions. In addition, subject to the relevant regulations
of Beijing City on safety production standardization, the Group consulted
professional consultation agencies and engaged industrial experts to inspect
relevant data and the field in accordance with the general requirements for
safety production standardization, realizing comprehensive self-evaluation
on the operation conditions in the regard in 2017. Afterwards, based on
the recommendations of the professional consultation agencies, the Group
identified departments and personnel responsible for the problems and

deficiencies, organized and implemented improvement work.

Contingency plan and drill

In 2017, the Group organized the revision of the Emergency Plan for
Production Safety Accidents, improved the construction of emergency
rescue organizations and teams, emergency response procedure, emergency
resource preparation, etc,, and passed the safety expert review. We organized
fire emergency drills with the property management company and verified
the effectiveness and smoothness of the emergency response and rescue
procedures, laying a solid foundation for the Company to orderly carry
out a series of work while responding to emergency accidents, including
organizational leadership, dispatch and command, site disposal, emergency
rescue, and postprocessing. Individual wind farms also formulated emergency
plans and organized drills for safety accidents. High-altitude rescue drills also
helped verify the applicability of the rescue facilities in terms of different wind

turbines and completed the selection and equipment of such facilities.
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Innovation work

The Group has continuously explored new patterns while completing safety
production tasks. In 2017, it organized the formulation of the Safety Manual
for Wind Turbine Generator System, through which it further specified the
basic requirements, matters needing attention, and safety measures for the
safe operation during installation, debugging, test, and maintenance of wind
turbine generator system, as well as relevant processing requirements for
emergency circumstances. The standards are the first attempt to regulate the

safe production in wind power industry.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Environmental management

The Group continuously improved the environmental management system
to guarantee conforming discharge and promote emission reduction work.
[t abided by the relevant environmental protection regulations of the
operating place, including the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China and is committed to minimizing the adverse impacts on
the environment during operation. The Group has also formulated a series
of environmental management systems such as the Operation Control
Procedures for Environmental Management and the Control Procedures for
the Identification, Evaluation, and Update of Environmental Factors to regulate
the environmental management of its subsidiaries, especially for manufacturing
enterprises. The subsidiaries also set annual environmental goals based on their
own operation conditions, designated special personnel to supervise energy
& water conservation, and continuously optimized management work. Our
two main manufacturing subsidiaries obtained the environmental management
system certificate (ISO14001:2004) and cooperatively performed annual
examination in 2017. In addition, there was no event in breach of the relevant

environmental laws and regulations and with great impacts on the Group,
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RESOURCES CONSERVATION

Utilization of natural resources

The Group mainly produces wind turbines and power batteries, and provides
the relevant services. During the operation, the natural resources that are mainly
consumed include energy, water resource, and raw and auxiliary materials
required for production. The Group has formulated the Control Procedures
for Supervision on and Assessment of the Performance in the Environment
and Occupational Health and Safety, to request the relevant departments to
monitor the consumption of aforesaid resources and to guarantee effective
utilization. The annual environmental goals set by the subsidiaries also cover
the consumption of the relevant resources, in an attempt to realize maximum

resource utilization efficiency and to reduce waste of resources.

In terms of energy, the Group mainly consumes electric energy, and fuel
consumption mostly lies in vehicles. In 2017, the Group consumed electricity
of 1,570,202 kilowatt-hours, gasoline of 43,698 liters, diesel of 5,567 liters, and
liquefied petroleum gas of 5,256 kilograms, contributing to the total energy
consumption equivalent to 2,085,700 kilowatt-hours. As for water use, the

Group only utilizes tap water. In 2017, the water consumption was 19,754

cubic meters.

2017 FHFEE
Type of Resource (Unit) Consumption in 2017
Electricity (kilowatt-hours) 1,570,202
Gasoline (Liters) 43,698
Diesel (Liters) 5567
Liquefied petroleum gas (Kilograms) 57256
Tap water (Cubic meters) 19,754

In terms of production, the Group's products need only few packaging
materials such as wooden case, plastic film, rain cover, and packing strap, to
protect the products from damage in transit.

2017 FERE
Type of packaging materials (Unit) Consumption in 2017
Wooden case (Tonnes) 220
Plastic film (Tonnes) 0.60
Rain cover (Tonnes) 0.55
Packing strap (Tonnes) 0.17
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Resource conservation

For electricity and water conservation, the Group actively conducted a variety
of promotion activities, including putting up signs at places like the canteens,
restrooms, and lounges, to enhance environmental awareness. On the other
hand, it effectively reduced resource consumption during operation by
undertaking electricity and water conservation measures. We made it a rule
that the staff should tum off office equipment after work, turn on relevant
equipment only before production, and shut down it when leaving. Meanwhile,
we proactively adopted energy-saving technologies such as LED lighting and
variable frequency motor, to improve energy efficiency. With respect to water
conservation, our subsidiaries adjusted measures to specific conditions and
initiated water reuse projects ranging from sewage treatment to virescence

irrigation with the effluent, to realize resource regeneration.

Case -Sewage Reuse in the Gansu Plant

A plant in Gansu Province established an underground integrated sewage
treatment system. After disposal, sanitary sewage flew into the clean water
reservoir and storage reservoir to irrigate the plants within the plant. The
system could save nearly 9 tonnes of irrigation water each week, realizing
organic integration of pollution regulation, resource reuse, and ecosystem

conservation,

The Group advocated green office, encouraged the staff to save paper, and
required them to go paperless as much as possible. The subsidiaries drew
up document circulation regulations to circulate documents and reduce the
photocopies of less important document by circulating for perusal. Both sides
of paper were used, unless required by confidentiality. Waste documents and

office paper were recycled on a regular basis.
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CONFORMING DISCHARGE

Discharge management system

The Group controls the operation and activities in relation to environmental
emission during its daily operation, so as to guarantee the compliance with
the laws and regulations and highlighted control on the workplaces that might
exert great impacts on the environment. The Operation Control Procedures
for Environmental Management stipulate that subsidiaries need to produce in
accordance with the requirements of corresponding technological procedures
and operation standards and strengthen the control on the wastewater,
exhaust gas, noise, and solid waste, to ensure that the requirements of
emission standards are met. The Group highly values environmental
compliance, and the General Management Department organized the
inspection and evaluation on the compliance with laws and regulations and
with other requirements at least once a year. Under specific circumstances
such as the punishment by the superior department in charge and the
complaint by stakeholders, we will carry out independent investigation in a

timely manner for relevant assessment and improvement.

The Group was committed to reducing environmental pollution in the process
of discharge and implementing a series of targeted emission reduction projects
and programs. In consequence, the waste materials, exhaust gas, wastewater

and noise arising from production were controlled effectively.
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Waste management

®  Individual departments move the general recyclable wastes to a
designated place, and the classified garbages collected will be disposed

in a concentrated way

®  Recyclable hazardous wastes will be transported back by the relevant
plants for reuse, such as entering into a waste cartridge recycle
agreement with printer consumables suppliers and grease lubricant

recycle instructions with the suppliers

®  Unrecyclable hazardous wastes are stored at a designaed place so that
the relevant department will entrust a qualified waste disposal company
for collection

Exhaust gas management

®  Ventilation and air change equipment has been installed in the

workshops

®  Annual check on vehicles has been conducted as required

Woastewater management

®  Sanitary sewage is disposed in the septic tank or the onsite sewage
treatment station

Noise management

®  Air compressors are installed in machine rooms with noise reduction

mesures like anti-shock and basic vibration reduction

®  The mechanisms and components are regularly repaired and maintained
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Waste management

In terms of solid wastes disposal, the Group requires the subsidiaries to
formulate applicable measures on Solid Wastes Management. They are divided
into hazardous, unrecyclable, and recyclable wastes for separate disposal.
The solid wastes from production undergo procedures like classification and

collection.

Hazardous wastes mainly include waste lightning tubes, waste batteries, ink
boxes, etc. We collected and stored them as required by the environmental
protection administration and engaged qualified agencies for transport and
disposal. Meanwhile, to prevent, control, and dispose hazardous chemicals,
the subsidiaries, according to specific conditions, formulated safety accident

emergency plans to guarantee well-preparedness.

Unrecyclable wastes mainly refer to solid wastes arising from cutting and
trimming, food wastes, and domestic wastes. Depending on recyclability,
recycling companies or municipal environmental sanitation departments were
respectively entrusted for collection and disposal. The information about the

Group's main wastes disposed in 2017 is detailed as follows:

Solid wastes (Unit) 2017
Hazardous wastes (Tonnes) 4.56
Non-hazardous wastes (Tonnes) 87.64

Management of exhaust gas and wastewater

During the Group's production and operation, no obvious exhaust gas
pollutants are discharged. The main source is the vehicles. Therefore,
the Company conducted annual inspection on the vehicles to guarantee
conforming discharge. Based on the use of the vehicles in 2017, the vehicle

exhausts and pollutants that we have computed are shown as follows:

Emissions (Unit) 2017
SOx (Kilograms) 0.7
NOx (Kilograms) 14
PM (Kilograms) 10
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The Group generates corresponding greenhouse gas emissions due to energy
consumption, including direct emissions from fuel combustion in vehicles and a
small part of technologies and indirect emissions from electricity use. In 2017,
the greenhouse gas emissions generated by the Group amounted to |,487

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e).

Greenhouse gas emissions (Unit) 2017
Direct carbon emissions (Scope I) (tCO,e) 147
Indirect carbon emissions (Scope Il) (tCO.e) 1,340

Our wastewater source in the plant area is mainly sanitary sewage. Therefore,
we have, in accordance with the relevant emission requirements of the
operating place, treated sanitary sewage in the septic tank or constructed
sewage treatment station in plants. The effluent after treatment would be
discharged to municipal sewage discharge network or designated receiving
waterbody after they met the requirements specified in the Integrated
Wastewater Discharge Standard.

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group was committed to promoting the application of clean energy.
In 2017, the wind farm located in Benxi, Liaoning generated electric energy
of 45,780,000 kilowatt-hours, which meant we saved about 14,600 tonnes
of coal and respectively reduced 32,000 tonnes and |10 tonnes of carbon

dioxides and nitrogen oxides.
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Development of green products

The Group has taken into account issues like environmental pollution and
resources and energy conservation in the process of product design. At the
stage of design review, environmental impacts such as pollution possibly
caused during raw materials use or by production technology need to be
reviewed. In terms of manufacturing process, the Company gives priority to

harmless materials and advanced techniques and technologies.

The Group continuously promoted new energy industry, gave priority to the
research and development of direct-driven wind turbine generators, and laid
emphasis on the research and development of fan blades, electric generators,
and their control system. With the focus on advanced whole wind turbine
machines and parts, the Group created Aerospace branded Wind Turbine
with completely proprietary intellectual property and globally advanced
technical indicators.
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As for the development of clean energy storage technology, the Group's
Graphene and Energy Storage Technology Research Center laid emphasis on
graphene application, positive and negative electrode materials of lithium ion
batteries, electrolyte, and power batteries. In particular, lithium ion batteries
are green batteries which feature high energy density, long cycle life, and
eco-friendliness; graphene is a new type of nano material with photometric
characteristics, which is good at electricity and heat conduction. The Group
masters the technology to produce graphene and apply it to positive materials
modification and conductive agent, it helps improve the electrochemical

performance of positive materials.

Environmental protection facilities

To improve the ecological environment around its plants, the Group
values the greening both within and around the factories. There are plants
around our factory in Gansu, which have strong capacity in anti-pollution, air
purification, and sound absorption, and most are indigenous plants. Through
the combination of lawns and trees, the green area has covered 6,800 square
meters. Integrated planning has also made for the wind power industrial park
in Inner Mongolia. In the park, the roads are clear and the green ecology
project has been under way along with Chengguan Town, Xinghe County,
realizing a lawn area of more than 4,600 square meters. In addition, flowers
are planted on an area of 500 square meters there each year. Such green and
beautiful park has created comfortable living and working space, met the local
requirements for the whole ecological greening in local communities, and won

universe recognition from local greening department.

Emergency measures for environmental accidents

In case of any accident or emergency from activities, production, and service,
the Group would proceed with effective control and disposal, so as to lower
the degree of personal injury, financial loss, and environmental influence. We
organized proper training and drills in respect of possible accidents. In case of
any emergency, individual departments handled and immediately reported the
case to the leaders and department in charge as required, and then carried
out emergency rescue in a rapid, effective, orderly, and efficient manner based

on specific conditions.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply chain management

Reliable quality and stable supply chain

The Group keeps reducing the exposure to lowering product quality and
reliability as caused by reduction of component costs. In addition, the
consistency of product quality was challenged by the excessive suppliers
developing components individually. The Group is an integrator of wind
turbines requiring extremely high standards on the quality control of products
to prevent the final quality of products out of control. Cost reduction may
affect the cooperation between the Group and the suppliers, leading to

unstable supply chain.

Development and management of suppliers

The Group strictly implements the “Measures for the Management of the
Purchase of Supplies” and has adopted an annual tender approach to invite
tenders for components and parts required for the batch production of
wind turbines. For special components and parts for which tenders cannot
be invited, the Company has adopted an inquiry and negotiation approach
for purchase. While effectively reducing the purchase cost, the above
standardization of purchase has advanced the implementation of the purchase
model. Additionally, during the purchase of key and important parts, the
Group has strictly implemented the Administrative Measures on Civil Materials
Purchase, managed sunshine purchase, and publicized the process and results

on its information platform.

During the review of new suppliers, it has added the requirements for
environmental protection and occupational safety qualifications, as well as
social responsibilities. It has issued to suppliers Notice of Honest Practice and

required formal replies, in an attempt to standardize purchase behaviors.
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The Group has formulated the specific detailed provisions for the “Annual
Appraisal Method of Suppliers”, which comprise, inter alia, organizing
departments including Quality, Operation and Maintenance, Research &
Development and Integrated Planning to implement supplier appraisal in
relation to which the appraisal indicators include possession of certifications
on environmental systems and etc. so as to provide bases for enhancing the
quality of suppliers, environmental protection, safety and etc., all of which
effectively promoted the improvement of both suppliers and purchase
management. In addition, the Group released the annual review on suppliers
in due course, which was adopted as the important reference for determining
the annual procurement plan. Any update on development of suppliers was
effectively monitored, and any weaknesses on the supply chain were alarmed
as well. Qualified suppliers providing key components were timely sourced,

optimizing the Group's supply chain.

ARHLERS HEERE
Qualified
suppliers Quantity of suppliers
H H
=6 By LHHE EHILE B 5p
China China
northern  southern
% Business Year Total region region  Overseas
EH#EERESEE  Wind energy and wind farm operation 2017 88 38 48 2
2016 82 33 47 2
f#ee Energy storage 2017 14 6 8 0
2016 12 4 8 0

MEEENFEE TEERE R ERREE
BRANER aRE 8 B WE
ZHPIHRZ R E - WHIFAERERCER - ¥t
ERNREERTRBEE A TARHE
FERRER - BEBERET RBKAK

TEMXBRER(ER) BRDF « 2017 F£§

The development of new suppliers has strictly complied with the requirements
of the "Measures on Supplier Development Management”, which was jointly
assessed by purchase, quality, operation & maintenance, and research &
development departments, along with relevant records. Such development
has helped the Group enrich its purchase channels, avoid the risks caused by a

sole supplier, and effectively lower purchase costs.
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In accordance with the requirements of ISO9000 Standards, the Group has
drawn up the requirements for approval documents on the suppliers’ parts,
further detailed the supplier requirements, including that suppliers should
deliver products (including small-lots and samples) of satisfactory quality and
on schedule, and assisted the suppliers in formulating improvement, so as to
gradually establish and perfect quality system and to improve product quality
and services. Meanwhile, suppliers have been required to pursue continuous
improvement in product costs to satisfy the market needs for the products of

increasingly lower costs.

PRODUCT LIABILITY

The Group strictly abided by the laws and regulations on product quality,
actively undertaken quality guarantee responsibility, and legally utilized
corporate brand and proprietary technology, free and clear of any
impingement upon intellectual property rights. It has also kept trade secrets

confidential and taken an initiative to maintain its reputation and image.

Our customers wish the Group to provide high- quality and efficient wind
energy equipment to further support the development of new energy industry.
The products we offered will be able to prevent the environment from
pollutions of wastes and noise and to prevent the adverse impact of safety

hazards.

Ensuring product quality

The Group has operated in accordance with the quality management system
conforming to the 1SO9001 and GB/T19001 Standards. It ensured our
products reaching 100% passing rate on the assurance test on departing plant
for delivery, and wind turbines in wind farms reaching an average utilization
rate of 97%. i.e. high standard requirements for the product’s quality. In
parallel, the Group strictly controlled the product quality of its suppliers in

stringently executing the supplier evaluation and control program.
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Products guaranteed to comply with the relevant environmental,

social, safety management regulations

The Group has operated in accordance with the environment management
system provided by IS14001 and GB/T24001 Standards and the occupational
health safety management system in line with QHSASI8001 and GB/
T28001 Standards. Products are designed to meet noise, safety and other
national standards and are equipped with a number of protective facilities and
equipment, and the redundancy closed-loop system has guaranteed the safe
operation of wind turbines. The wind turbines are direct-driven without gear
and able to, to the largest degree, avoid the usage of lubricating oil and others

that pollute the environment and demand high consumption.

Through the grid compatibility test and the power quality test required by
the State and based on the characteristics of domestic grids, the Group has
improved its products to enable them to possess the low-voltage ride-through
function in assuring the power generation efficiency and operational reliability
of the products.

Providing quality services

A dedicated service team is assigned to provide service and technical support
(i.e. technical training, installation, operation, maintenance, recall and repair)
for each project. We have set latest response time in ensuring that customers’
issues and requirements are addressed promptly. Regular customer feedback
and satisfaction surveys are conducted where customer satisfaction is required
to be over 85%. We also guaranteed the supply of spare parts to reduce the

downtime occasioned from malfunction.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

Laws & regulation, education activities, and other information

about anti-corruption and honesty promotion

The laws on the prevention of bribery, blackmail, fraud, and money laundering
that are applicable to the Group include without limitation the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Anti-Corruption and Bribery Law of the People's Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Penalties for Administration of Public
Security, and the Regulations on the First Person Responsibilities Undertaken

by Central Enterprises’ Principals to Promote Legal Construction.

> The Group launched regular self-inspection on anti-corruption and
honesty promotion. In particular, we inspected office space, official
vehicles, business reception, funds management, employee selection
and appointment, allowances and subsidies, etc. and discovered no

corruption, bribe-taking, and other acts in breach of the rules and laws.

> Revision and improvement of the management system. In 2017, the
Company revised and improved 6 rules and regulations on anti-
corruption and honesty promotion, including the Management Measures
on the Vehicles for Operation and Service Assurance, the Conference
Management Measures, the Management Measures on Domestic
Official Reception, the System of Performance Remuneration and
Business Expenses, the Management Measures on the Leaders, and the

Management Measures on Office Space.

> Honesty education. At the beginning of 2017, the Company organized
collective honesty conversation covering 60 staff including its
management and the subsidiaries’ executives to enhance their honesty

consciousness.

The administrative personnel and key personnel have respectively signed 45
letters of honesty cultivation and 40 letters of commitment on honest practice,
contributing to 100% coverage. The Company also prepared and distributed
the Manual for Leaders' Performance to the management, clarified and detailed
the list of honesty cultivation responsibilities, promoted the monthly warning
mechanism for honesty cultivation, supervised and checked the performance
of leaders on a quarterly basis, effectively prompting the initiative to undertake

responsibilities.
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Corruption lawsuits, preventive measures, and whistleblowing
policy

Meanwhile, the Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to which
employees can report, in confidence, any possible misconduct in the Company
to the Audit Committee, which will then establish a case for follow-up. In

2017, no corruption lawsuit occurred in the Company.

PARTICIPATION IN COMMUNITY WORK

The Group has actively performed the social responsibility of “engaging in new
energy cause, contributing to the society, and benefiting the mankind”. In 2017,
the Company realized on-grid energy of 1.4 billion kilowatt-hours through
the 10 wind farms that we operated, maintained, and provided wind power
equipment for, saving standard coal of about 454,500 tonns and reducing
dust emission of about 6,146 tonns, NOX emission of about 5251 tonns,
CO emission of about 120 tonns, and CO2 emission of about 1.36 million
tonns; we implemented the Environment Management System to continuously
promote the construction of the system, to build a green enterprise, and to
advance sustainable development; we offered youth volunteering service as
the window in selecting our best employees to assist teaching in Jiujia Primary
School in Gannan and organized 30 young volunteers to take part in the one-

to-one aid called "Big Hands Pull Small Hands".
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the activities
of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in note 42
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income on pages 81 to 82.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business performance, business review, financial review as well as prospects
and strategies of the Group are set out in the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Certain key financial indicators
are prvided in the section “Group Financial Highlights" in this report. Since the
end of the financial year under review, save as disclosed in this annual report,

there are no significant events that have a material impact on the Group.
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CHARITABLE DONATION

The Group gave no donation during the year (2016: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during

the year are set out in note |7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are

set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles
of Association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige

the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year 2017, the Company has no share option scheme adopted in

place.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 3|
December 2017 were HK$ 461,214,000 (2016: HK$1,463,373,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) (re-designated from an Executive Director to
a Non-Executive Director on 14 February 2018)

Mr. Liu Xiaowei (appointed on 30 March 2017)

Mr. Fang Shili (retired on 2 June 2017)

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Li Guang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xu Jun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
Mr. Gordon Ng
Mr. Li Dapeng

After the reporting period, Mr. Han Shuwang resigned as the Chairman and
a Non-executive Director on 29 March 2018, while at the same day, Mr. Liu
Xiaowei was re-designated as an Executive Director and appointed as the

Chairman of the Company .

The tenures of offices of the Non-executive Director are from the date they
were last elected to the date of their retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company's Articles of Association; those of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are of a fixed term of 3 years but subject to retirement

and re-election under the Company's Articles of Association.
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In accordance with the Article |16 of the Company's Articles of Association,
Mr. Xu Jun, Mr. Gordon Ng and Mr. Li Dapeng shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (2018 AGM") and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. The Board proposes to re-appoint the Directors
standing for re-election at the 2018 AGM of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each
of the three Independent Non-executive Directors that they have met all the
factors conceming their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors are

independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2018 AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT

The emoluments of the Directors are proposed by the remuneration
committee of the Company to the Board, having regard to the Company's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics,
subject to the final decision by the Board.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are set out in note |2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow
subsidiaries was party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this report, no contract of significance had
been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or

any of its subsidiaries.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

No permitted indemnity provisions entered into by the Company or
otherwise for the benefit of the Directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries subsisted at the end

of the year or at any time during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements entered into by the Company subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company or their respective associates had any interest or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")) which are required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange") pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of SFO), or to be recorded in the register required to be
maintained pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise to be notified
to the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Companies in the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules™).

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company or their associates
(as defined in the “Listing Rules”) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition

of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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FERE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

R-BE—+EF+-A=+—H BEEZm4Ha- As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the Directors, the persons/
ATALT/ BEARDTRG RABERND T E entities who had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
BREZFIAE  MEBEEZBARBEEMEXY shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
HEINIDL BN TRAARNRT R and the Stock Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
e - ek A AN o T [ the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of
BERTANEFEFREMKEATBREAS I the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all

BE BRI AT E 10% 3 A 2 ez circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group and the
MZBEATERARNLEER S 2RI AESRE amount of each of such persons’ interest in such securities or in any options in
BRAS 2 AT EpiE R T respect of such capital were as follows:
RHBE BREBD
% E27) Number Percentage of
Name Capacity of shares  shareholding
(Bt 1)
(Note 1)
e BAEXEG RRER(FT2) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
CASC Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note 2)
Uil BARIER R AR (HE3) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
CALT Interest of a controlled corporation
(Note 3)
Astrotech Group Limited([ Astrotech]) EanlEEA 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
Astrotech Group Limited ( Astrotech ) Beneficial owner
i Note:
L [LIEBRERRH 2 RE - I, Theletter "L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares.

2. H AR AR B HE A 2,649,244,000 % IR 19 2 HE 2. CASC is deemed to be interested in 2,649,244,000 shares as it holds 100% of

% o FERE NS 100% i - the equity of CALT.

3. Astrotech I A&l 2 2 BB AR - At - 3. Astrotech is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT. Accordingly, CALT is deemed
KETBR AR AR A Astrotech T 2 BB IR 1D 2 to be interested in all the shares held by Astrotech.
o]
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Save as disclosed herein, according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the
Directors, there is no other person/entity who, as at 31 December 2017,
had any interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member
of the Group or in any options in respect of such capital.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group has entered into the following connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions which are required to be
disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(I) Continuing Connected Transactions

(A) Leasing of Property

[t was also announced on 31 December 2015 that Inner
Mongolia Energine New Energy Development Co. Ltd. ("IM New
Energy”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a property leasing agreement with IM Composite Material
whereby IM New Energy was to lease its premises of No. |
Aerospace Road, Xing Wang Jiao Industrial Park, Xinghe County,
Inner Mongolia (the “Property”) to Inner Mongolia CASC
Energine Composite Material Co. Ltd. ("IM Composite Material”)
as industrial plant, office, warehouse and associated facilities for
manufacture of turbine blades and other composite materials for
a 2-year term from | January 2016 to 31 December 2017 at an
annual rental and management fee of RMBS5, 181,413 in total. On
|8 December 2017, IM New Energy and IM Composite Material
entered into a property leasing agreement to renew the lease
in relation to the Property for a 2-year term from | January
2018 to 31 December 2019, and the annual rental remained at
RMB5,181,413.
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The property leasing agreements were entered into on normal
commercial terms with the rental being at market prices or prices
no less favourable to IM New Energy than those available from
independent third parties. By these agreements, IM Composite
Material was enabled to occupy and use the Property for its
principal activities of manufacture of wind turbine blades of

composite materials to its customers.

Since one of the shareholders of IM Composite Material as to
41.03% shareholding is Aerospace Research Institute of Materials
& Processing Technology (“Aerospace Material”), which is a
subsidiary of CALT, the Company's major controlling shareholder,
IM Composite Material is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of being a not wholly-owned subsidiary with the said
more than 10% shareholding. The leasing of property to them
constituted continuing connected transactions under Chapter
[4A of the Listing Rules. The total lease amount received by IM
New Energy pursuant thereto for the year 2017 amounted to
RMB5,181,413 in total which was equal to the agreed annual
amount of RMB5,181,413.

Annual Review of the Continuing Connected

Transaction

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the above Continuing Connected Transaction
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and confirmed that the

Continuing Connected Transaction has been entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from

independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole.
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RRRZZEMEZEREE S The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
SRS RMIBEAEFERE continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
8113000 5% (FAERT ) [ 2 81 75 & Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance
ERAEHMUMEE TS Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
EEBHRPETIORIEE LR Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740,
RIARTE 6015 B BRIE X 5 1) R SR By Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
H RAREZHEBEIHIE the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute
HERE - REMERBEIR TR of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
A 14AS6 IF AN R B DA E AT 5 unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect
BRBHERFELEEREER of the Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed above in
Rkt EhEEHESR &R - accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the
AR R M EE A PR A SZ X BAD K auditor's letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
HEIA - Exchange.
any FEXS (I) Connected Transactions

BRRIEZFAMEDAERK Loans from Shareholder or Fellow Subsidiary

WA M BIREIE3930) @) () R Q)T There were loans advances from CALT through CASC's subsidiary,

o NERBEBRTMAZHERRMRKR Aerospace Science and Technology Finance Co. Ltd. (“"ASTF") or from

B BEREERATRRBRKEHT ASTF (with guarantee from CALT) to Beijing Energine as set out in

BHIMAR KA B (B ASFRER)E note 39()) (a) (1) and (2) to the consolidated financial statements. Since

KT RER - AR NS B CALT and CASC are intermediate major shareholder and ultimate

ARARBRZHANETERRREZLREE major shareholder, of the Company respectively and ATSF is a CASC’s

B - T A R R B 7 B R o A48 2 Bl subsidiary, the loans were connected transactions yet they were

BRE FRAERDNEBHEERS AW exempted from requirements of disclosure, reporting and shareholders’

BELITHRAUEHASE - EREHEER approval by virtue of interests relating to the loans being of commercial

BRI S TR R R B ERRRE T terms or better to Beijing Energine and no security made for the loans

ItREREBAER  ERAEHREE under Chapter 4A of the Listing Rules.

SFHRE - AR AEZHRE o

FRFERER ST EERTA LTR The above continuing connected transactions are confirmed that they

AIFE AR RERT - have complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with

Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, turnover attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 80% of the
Group's turover and turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer

accounted for approximately 68% of the Group's turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 50% of the
Group's purchases and purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier

accounted for approximately 27% of the Group's purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the Company's issued

share capital had any interests in the above five largest customers or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The 2017 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company is
set out on pages 44 to 62 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

A resolution would be submitted to the 2018 AGM to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, if eligible, as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Han Shuwang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
RERXEREREE)ERAT
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Energine
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group") set out on pages 81 to 215,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were

of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the

current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of

the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed

the key audit matter

Impairment assessment on intangible assets of technology know-how

We identified impairment
assessment on intangible assets
of technology know-how as a key
audit matter due to significant
judgements and assumptions
involved in the impairment
assessment.

Impairment of technology know-
how is assessed by comparing the
recoverable amount and carrying
amount of the technology know-
how at the end of the reporting
period. Significant judgements
and assumptions are required
by the management in assessing
the recoverable amount of the
relevant cash generating unit to
which technology know-how
has been allocated, which are
determined with reference to
the future cash flows expected
to arise from the relevant cash
generating unit, discount rate and
growth rate in order to derive
the net present value of the

recoverable amount.

As disclosed in notes 4 and 19
to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying
amount of technology know-
how is HK$163,519,000,
net of impairment losses of
HK$17,399,000 recognised as at
31 December 2017.

Our procedures in relation to impairment

assessment on intangible assets of technology

know-how included:

Obtaining an understanding on the Group's
impairment assessment process of intangible

assets;

Obtaining the discounted cash flow forecast
prepared by the management and checking
its mathematical accuracy;

Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions adopted by the management,
including future cash flows expected to
arise from the relevant cash generating unit,
discount rate and growth rate;

Evaluating the key inputs adopted in the
discounted cash flow forecast against
historical performance of the Group,
the management’s strategic plans and
expectations for the market development in
respect of the relevant cash generating unit;
and

Reviewing the sensitivity analysis performed
by the management on discount rate and
growth rate to evaluate the potential impact
on the recoverable amount and impairment.
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How our audit addressed

Key audit matter the key audit matter
Impairment assessment on trade receivables

We identified impairment assessment Our procedures in relation to impairment

on trade receivables as a key audit assessment on trade receivables included:
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matter due to significant judgements

and estimates involved in assessing the
recoverability of trade receivables.

In determining the allowance for doubitful
debts, the management considers recent
trade relationships, financial background
and creditability of individual trade
debtors, including historical settlement
records such as default or delay in
payments, subsequent settlement and

ageing analysis of trade receivables.

As disclosed in notes 4 and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements, the
carrying amount of trade receivables is
HK$1,612,727,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$149,141,000 as at
31 December 2017.

Obtaining an understanding of how
allowance for doubtful debts is
estimated by the management;

Understanding the Group's process
in the preparation of ageing
analysis of trade receivables and
the determination of credit limits,
credit approval for customers and
other monitoring procedures for

recovering overdue debts;

Testing the ageing analysis of trade
receivables, on a sample basis, to the
source documents including goods
delivery notes and sales invoices;

Evaluating the reasonableness of
allowance for doubtful debts made
by the management with reference
to recent trade relationships,
financial background and creditability
of individual trade debtors, including
historical settlement records such
as default or delay in payments,
subsequent settlement and ageing
analysis of trade receivables; and

Challenging the management
on specific balances which were
significantly past due but not
impaired and reviewing subsequent
settlements made after the end
of the reporting period and/or
settlement plans agreed with trade
debtors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
report is Au Mei Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#HZ2017F 12831 HiIFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

P& 2017 2016
NOTES FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
(45 E3)
(Restated)
BEREEY Continuing operations
BER Turnover 5 283,374 2415211
HEKA Cost of sales (246,535) (2,127,178)
EH Gross profit 36,839 288,033
HAn A Other income 7 16,500 32,48
Hfth Yok &2 518 Other gains and losses 8 (144,495) (3,386)
HE R HEMA Selling and distribution expenses (42,488) (116712)
TBER Administrative expenses (168,307) (155,482)
BB Finance costs 9 (74,489) (78,039)
il A NTE 3 Share of results of associates (27,854) (26,534)
JERAEEEE Share of results of joint ventures 166,127 153,770
PR BT (B8R R F (Loss) profit before taxation [l (238,167) 94,131
BiIA Taxation I3 (5,193) (12,367)
REREER (Loss) profit for the year from
AEE(EE) R continuing operations (243,360) 81,764
BRI EEER Discontinued operation
RECRIEREEKZ Loss for the year from
rEEEE discontinued operation 10 (4,588) (2,440)
REE(BEE) R (Loss) profit for the year (247,948) 79,324
Hip2EBA(FX) : Other comprehensive
income (expense):
CEHHPEIERZEE  Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
—-MEENEHELZ — exchange differences arising on
B = translation to presentation
currency 151,807 (146,704)
FRNREFZER Total comprehensive expense
for the year (96,141) (67,380)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BIZ 2017 12531 BIFFEZ
For the year ended 3| December 2017

P& 2017 2016
NOTE FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$000
(4 Z5))
(Restated)
AREVER AEIERFE (Loss) profit for the year attributable to
(B8 &F owners of the Company
—REFEEEED — from continuing operations (235,394) 76,930
—REERIEEEER — from discontinued operation (1,704) (906)
(237,098) 76,024
IR R AT E (Loss) profit for the year attributable to
(B18) &M non-controlling interests
—REFECEES — from continuing operations (7,966) 4,834
—REERIEEEER — from discontinued operation (2,884) (1,534)
(10,850) 3,300
REE(EBB) R (Loss) profit for the year (247,948) 79,324
UWTFATEIEREE Total comprehensive expense for the
FHMAXEE year attributable to:
AREEEA Owners of the Company (90,776) (67,305)
It s Non-controlling interests (5,365) (75)
(96,141) (67,380)
FR(EE) BN &R (Loss) eamings per share - Basic 15

REFELERDRL
REXH

From continuing and
discontinued operations

From continuing operations

HK cents (5.43)71l
HK cents (5.39)7%1l

HK cents|. 74741
HK cents|. 7678111

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R2017F 12831 H
At 31 December 2017

B aE 2017 2016
NOTES FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
FRBEE Non-current assets
REME Investment properties 16 149,538 137,730
W - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 17 303,926 294,633
[EES Goodwill 18 2,004 2,004
BVEE Intangible assets 19 212,654 225,085
& Lﬁlﬁﬁﬁ Deferred tax assets 33 1,784 | 637
NN ey Interests in associates 20 348,268 353,265
RNEEEIER Interests in joint ventures 21 1,192,284 1,100,344
Y —Fa e hER Amount due from a joint venture 26 106,468 96,846
ARHERE Available-for-sale investments 2?2 5,144 4807
2,322,070 2,216,351
REBEE Current assets
&8 Inventories 23 163,526 216,520
%%&E{ﬁﬁgﬂﬁk Trade and other receivables 24 2,923,476 3,120,499
JRE LBt & N ) Amounts due from associates 25 303,467 498,94 |
s —REa %ﬁ%?ﬂ Amount due from a joint venture 26 25,196 26,504
BEMRITER Pledged bank deposits 27 63 2,233
RITHEHB LIRS Bank balances and cash 27 107,871 241,667
3,523,599 4106364
wEAE Current liabilities
fﬁ%&ﬁmlfﬁ%’& Trade and other payables 28 1,734,332 2,006,126
AR NG Amounts due to associates 25 60,939 309,637
[ERE %ﬁ% Amounts due to joint ventures 26 4,030 277
BT 4R B Govemment grants 29 775 839
RIERE Warranty provision 30 139,091 136,731
FERI IR Taxation payable 3,256 7,654
R Borrowings 31 1,261,793 856,225
BEHEAE Obligation under a finance lease 32 22 130
3,204,238 3317619
RBEEFHE Net current assets 319,361 788,745
EERABERRBAE Total assets less current liabilities 2,641,431 3,005,096
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R2017%# 12431 H
At 31 December 2017

BisE 2017 2016
NOTES FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
*RBEE Non-current liabilities
BT 4R B Govemment grants 29 30,225 28,939
E Borrowings 31 488,091 745,660
BEMERE Obligation under a finance lease 32 - 22
EERBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 33 22,237 20312
540,553 794933
2,100,878 2,210,163
EXRRE Capital and reserves
R A Share capital 34 436,900 436,900
{1 Reserves 1,597,229 ,688,005
AREHEE AEEER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 2,034,129 2,124,905
FEFE R R RS Non-controlling interests 66,749 85,258
A Total equity 2,100,878 2,210,163

FIRESIZ2I5 B2 REMBMRE  NEES The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 215 were approved
GR20184F 3 A28 At/ MIRHETZE - Wi and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2018 and are

TEEAREF signed on its behalf by:
% i
Li Guang Xu Jun
HITEF HITEF
Executive Director Executive Director

84 PERXEREE(EE) ARAT - 2017 £5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BIE2017F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

RLEREARE
Attributable to owners of the Company
HRERRE FRHtER
B5 EnEE RMBE  eopety  EXEE  RMBE B I Non-
Share  Special Share  revaluation  Exchange Other ~ Accumulated Sub- controlling a8
capitl  reseve  premium  reserve  reseve  reserves losses Total  interests Total
it it it it it it it it it it
HEOW  HEIW SIS MO MY MY MY M AW
(&) ()
(Note |) (Note))
R0eE(A18 At | anuary 016 630 R ILINEIR ) 139 1837 036 (DI 2808 65410 248908
REEH Proftfor theyear - - - - - - T4 T4 30 T34
RESfIShRL R 2R Bichange dferences asng on reniton to
resentaton curency - - - - (43 - - (43 B3 (14670
TERRA(ER 28 Tote comprehensive (exoense) income for the jear - - - (183 - 7604 (67309) ) (67380)
RIEREn-EHEDAZERERT  Deamed deposa of pate teretina subsidry
TERZAAE wihoutlos ofcotrl - - - - - - 8631 861 14054 )
HEUERLE Captal controuton fom nom<ontrling et - - - - - - - - 58 58
g Trarser - - - - 14319 (14919) - -
R0I6£10A3(8 At 31 Decerber 201 436500 go7 W 3% 4608 02867 (18167 21490 B28 10163
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#Z2017F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

RATREARE
Attributable to owners of the Company
HEEGRE bl
B5 EREE RMEE  eopety  EXEE  HMBE  EiER Dt Non-
Share Special Share  revaluation  Exchange Other  Accumulated Sub- controlling £
apitl - reseve  premium  reserve  reseve  reserves losses Total  interests Total
fEr fEr fér fér T fér fér i i i
HRSO00  HKSUOD KSR HKSUOD  HKSUOD  HKSURO  HKSORD  HKSUW HKSURO HKSOW
(1) 21
(Note ]) (Note )
TEERE Lossforte year - - - - - - (BosE) (0% (10850 (47.949)
AERTgHEL /BN LR Bxchange iffrences g on tenlton to
presentaton curency - - - - 14632 - - 146,31 5,485 [51,807
TERRENARR)28 Totalcomprefiensive ncome (expense) for the year - - - - lnm - (e ome (565 (%M4])

F-FHEAT EEHER Didend paid to non-conrllg terest of 2 sbsiay

e N L
BIFHE-FEAT Deemed dsposd ofasbsary - - - - () (1 — - () (1)
4 Ttk - - - - - m ww - - -
ROrEnA3IA At 31 December 017 436,900 LRI N ORI 139 191498 107000 (1520136) 2,034,129 b6,749  2,100878

ik AEEZBAEARARAREIRAE  Note I:

BERERDAMBEANBLRAEETRA
AEZEZERBEAEER1997F8A
[ BETEAMBEtEESR B8
116025000 B T RERRARENHEZE
0I5E 123 BIEEEKRE -

frE2. HbRERERTEARLME(HE]) Note 2:

#—RMERRERE(BREFER
(i) ERAEEZBORBEESARAER
RRERELEERR  BERBETTD
IETBERNBEEES -

TEMXBRER(ER) BRALF « 2017 F3§

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal amount of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by
the Company and the aggregate amount of HK$116,025,000 transferred
from other reserves pursuant to the Group's reorganisation on || August
1997 and the amount of dividend recognised and paid for the year ended
31 December 2015.

Included in other reserves are reserve fund of a subsidiary in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") which can be used only to (i) make up prior
years' losses or (i) expand production operations and reserve fund for
future enhancement of safety production environment and improvement of

facilities and is not available for distribution to shareholders.
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SHERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#HZ2017F 12831 HiIFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
L) Operating activities
BRE0AT (&5 18) % 7 (Loss) profit before taxation
—-REFBLEEER — from continuing operations (238,167) 94,131
—REERIEEEER — from discontinued operation (4,611) (2443)
(242,778) 91,688
FATRIBEEL A Adjustments for:
FEKA Interest income (4,364) (5,084)
FERX Interest expenses 74,489 78,039
it NG Share of results of associates 27,854 26,534
FBEAERERE Share of results of joint ventures (166,127) (153,770)
BB E Amortisation of intangible assets 23,623 24,648
ME - BERREBZTE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 28,918 29,092
EHRZ BN Government grants recognised (834) (593)
BEMEZ N FEZSHKE  Gan from changes in fair value of
investment properties (2,075) (6312)
HEWE  BEREHEZ (Gain) loss on disposal of property,
(s ) B8R plant and equipment (78) 25
HEFEERAZNERE  Imparment losses recognised in
respect of intangible assets 17,399 —
T 5 R EER Impairment losses recognised in
HEER respect of trade receivables 93,919 —
FhEM —RE S R R Impairment loss recognised in
R BEEE respect of amount due
from an associate 34,741 —
FEHIKLED Operating cash flows before
iﬁﬁm@ movements in working capital (115,313) 84,267
FERD Decrease in inventories 51,288 167,903
E 5 REMEMRFUR A (31) Decrease (increase) in trade and other
receivables 225,737 (1,338,337)
FE LS BS: 5 1 RIHOR 2 Decrease in amounts due
from associates 17,077 29,128
JEU &S EZURD (8)  Decrease (increase) in amounts due
from joint ventures 3,343 (21

Annual Report 2017  China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#Z2017F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
5 NEMENZORD IS (Decrease) increase in trade and other
payables (368,477) 791498
FERTEE S RAIZORA )0 (Decrease) increase in amounts due to
associates (57,553) 87,299
& EEEFIEM Increase in amounts due to joint
ventures 3,592 203
(RSB CRiD ) 120 (Decrease) increase in warranty
provision (7,225) 37,210
AREeEzRe Cash used in operations (247,531) (140,850)
B AER Income taxes paid (9,745) (4,836)
RETHMARELFR Net cash used in operating activities (257,276) (145,686)
Tﬁﬁ?ﬁ@] Investing activities
BA %HQHXZH“ g Dividend received from joint ventures 157,559 171,828
] H’a‘r BIUCER Z i B Dividend received from associates 6,733 3,090
R (ﬁ M) EHEARITFR  Release (placement) of
pledged bank deposits 2,170 (1,537)
EUHLE Interest received 1,555 2,069
HEWE - BER&RE Proceeds from disposal of property,
PS5 plant and equipment 265 218
BEWE BERR Purchase of property,
plant and equipment (18,598) (15,100)
ERBVEE Payment of intangible assets (14,351) (19,769)
BAEHE — M@ Net cash outflow from deemed
EEZFRS R disposal of a subsidiary (3,534) —
5 E R RN E Settlement of consideration payable
REIERMZRE for acquisition of a subsidiary in
prior years - (55,897)
AHEEREZRE Investment in available-for-sale
investments - (2,236)
REFHELEZRE TR Net cash from investing activities 131,799 82,666
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SHERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE2017F 12731 AILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
REEE Financing activities
HEAEE New borrowings raised 826,644 1,058,066
EBEEE Repayment of borrowings (776,921) (986,887)
ERHME Interest paid (74,489) (78,039)
mSEEHIE RN 2 RR Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary (1,191) —
BEMERERE Repayment of obligation under a
finance lease (130) (124)
BRRELER RS Net cash inflow in respect of deemed
UNCIWASTN: SR disposal of partial interest in a
REBGIEZFRETA subsidiary without loss of control - 22,746
JEERIME R A Capital contribution from non-
controlling interests —_ 5,869
BELP (A ASNHEFE Net cash (used in) from financing
activities (26,087) 21,631
Re LR SEMRDFE Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents (151,564) (41,389)
IVEEEREE 2 B Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 17,768 (17,242)
FNzRERREEFEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 241,667 300,298
FRZBAGRBALEFEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
PARTTAE SR IR & 51 7R year, representing bank
balances and cash 107,871 241,667

Annual Report 2017 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#Z2017F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

. —R&EE

FEMAERER(EE)FRAA
(RRBDAPREHESTMKLLZ
BRAR BRORBEBEUARIME
RAB(BZHA]) L ARAIZE
% 2B 2 ) A Astrotech Group Limited
([Astrotech]) * Astrotech & 7 H & #
ARESHEMKIZ DA HEARA

60.64% 2 T 25 ° Astrotech B Bl 5 1 ¥
o B E ST R T S B (T AR R 1) 2
BHEA - PEMARREEQA([HH
BNEBEEERNSEREKBARAZ
RIS R o AR AETB HR

BIAY L °

ARRGFMREREUE R T 2S£

RERNFHRZAREN—H -

ARBRZNEEBERARE  Mixa
BBRERAABTEY - EERR/AAT
7%’&%’&7 Hifnﬁ’\ﬂﬁﬁxﬁﬁifﬁ ﬁ*ﬁ
)

ARBZIEEBGRREER T2
BRA BMEQAANAELEZIIEE

BERNHIE 42 -

TEMXBRER(ER) BRALF « 2017 F3§

GENERAL

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited (the “"Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Astrotech Group Limited
(“Astrotech”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which
holds 60.64% interest in the Company. Astrotech is wholly-owned
by China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT"), a state-
owned enterprise. China Aerospace Science & Technology Corporation
("CASC") is the ultimate holding company of the Company via the
immediate shareholding of CALT. Both CASC and CALT are companies
established in the PRC.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information to the annual

report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB") while
the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"). The directors consider that HK$ is the appropriate
presentation currency since the Company is a public company with the
shares listed on the Stock Exchange where most of its investors are

located.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its major subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

are set out in note 42.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BIE2017F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)

for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to Disclosure initiative
Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“"HKAS") 7

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets
for unrealised losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the annual improvements

to HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 cycle

Except as described below, the application of the above amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and position for the current and prior years and/

or the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 20179 12531 HitF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2017

2.
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DEBIRTERRERERRUH
BEERETERE DI ENEEE
B aEReRERSET - 1IN Z
BIAARTELR EeREENHERE

BEYIERREEREG ST ARESE
PMBRERER ERERGEHTR
BENEY -

LHRZ ZEETHRERETISE:

HREBEBRERENES : (i) kAW

Bk A M E R B S H A R R

HEE: ()INEEXZHNTE: (v
ATERD : B () LR

ESEER LTI Sl o
HRAMFE40 1R o X ZETMRE
Y-8 ASETERBRH LFE
MEBREN - BRI BINEE
oh - R ZEBITHASBENGEEME
BRUETE -

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of consolidated financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments also require
disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from those
financial assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash flows

from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes arising from obtaining
or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)
other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these
items is provided in note 40. Consistent with the transition provisions of
the amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative information
for the prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure in note 40, the
application of these amendments has had no impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.
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BIE2017F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs *’) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(FRIC) - Int 22

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial instruments'

Revenue from contracts with
customers and the related
amendments'

Leases’

Insurance contracts*

Foreign currency transactions and

advance consideration'

Uncertainty over income tax

treatments?

Classification and measurement of

share-based payment transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments’’
with HKFRS 4 “Insurance contracts™

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2015 - 2017 cycle?
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BE2017F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

2.
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EH]) @
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BRMBREER REFRABENRT
FI0KREE AEERFE RN

GHLEAE B8R BEHEIIE®
CHES)

BB gTER REEDRRAEE
F28RBRIAR)  EIRDER
BB gTER ERBBIBRE
FBRUEEIAR)  HR0145EZ

WI6FBBFE
Bz — 5!
BB ER HERAME
% 405% (BFTA)
| R20I185 | A1 Bz &fia 2 FEH
EEX

2 R2019F | A1 Bz &Rk 2 FEH
A

3 RAER#RZEABZFERRE
P

4 R2021F | A1 Bz &Rk FEH
A
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Prepayment features with negative
compensation’

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or

joint venture?

Long-term interests in associates
and joint ventures?

As part of the annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 cycle'

Transfers of investment property’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021
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BE2017F 12731 AILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge

accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

. Al recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS
9 are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"). All other
financial assets are measured at their fair value at subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income

generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 20179 12531 HitF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2017

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement”. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk management policies

as at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company anticipate the

following potential impact on intial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement

Equity investments classified as available-for-sale investments
carried at cost less impairment as disclosed in note 22: these
inverstments qualified for designation as measured at FVTOCI
under HKFRS 9 and the Group will measure these investments
at fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods with fair
value gains or losses to be recognised as other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve.
Upon initial application of HKFRS 9, any fair value gain relating to
these investments would be adjusted to investments revaluation
reserve as at | January 2018;

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to be

measured on the same bases as are currently measured under
HKAS 39.
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For the year ended 3| December 2017

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier
provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the
Group's financial assets measured at amortised costs and other items
that subject to the impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9
by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the
expected credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the
accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised by Group as
at | January 2018 would be increased as compared to the accumulated
amount recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected
credit losses provision on trade and other receivables and amounts due
from associates. Such further impairment recognised under expected
credit loss model would reduce the opening accumulated losses at |

January 2018.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS |1 “Construction

Contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

. Step I: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive

disclosures are required by HKFRS 5.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent

considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.
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For the year ended 3| December 2017

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(Continued)

The directors of the Company has assessed the contracts of wind
energy related products, and energy storage and related products
sales that have multiple deliverables (including service-type warranties,
technical and training services, and right to purchase certain amounts
of spare parts at a discount) which represent separate performance
obligations from sales of wind energy related products, and energy
storage and related products, revenue will be recognised for each of
these performance obligations when control over the corresponding
goods and services is transferred to the customers. HKFRS 15 requires
the transaction price to be allocated to the different performance
obligations on a relative stand-alone selling price basis and the allocation
of revenue among the above separate performance obligations may be
different compared to that under current practice. The directors of the
Company are in the process of quantifying the detailed financial impact

to the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related

interpretations when it becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,

except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for
owned use and those classified as investment properties while other
operating lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be

presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS |7, the Group has already recognised an asset and a
related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents right-
of-use assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they were

owned.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs’’) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a

finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 6.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$9,171,000 as disclosed in note 35. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of
all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.
In addition, the application of new requirements may result changes in

measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised HKFRSs will have a material impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the investment properties which are

measured at fair value, as explained in accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment

of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level I, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:
. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the

three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if

this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests according to the Group's

and the non-controlling interests proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the

Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are derecognised.
A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial

recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities

assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19

"Employee benefits” respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the
acquisition date; and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with that

standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-
controlling interests” proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other

types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting

policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group's cash generating units (or groups of cash generating units)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes and not larger than an operating

segment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash generating unit (or groups of cash generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash
generating unit (or groups of cash generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or groups of

cash generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or

loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate
and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss. Details of investments in subsidiaries are set out in
note 42.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Appropriate adjustments have
been made to conform the associate's and the joint venture's
accounting policies to those of the Group. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint

venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is

acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate
or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon

disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no

remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or

joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the

Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered

and titles have passed.

Revenue from sales of electricity are recognised when electricity has

been delivered.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts though the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the

effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there
is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end
of the lease terms, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to eamn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in

which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for

on a prospective basis.
Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it

will be available for use or sale;
. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
*  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible

asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the

intangible asset during its development.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and

development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, interally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are

acquired separately.

Intangible asset acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at

the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on

the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other

than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then
to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduce
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss than would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss

is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated

costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “(loss) profit before taxation” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from

the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in associates and
joint ventures except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather than

through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.



n‘/T\ = 7f ﬁ&#&ﬁ |Zﬁ

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FESEE @)

HE

RO GRBHEREZ BRI D AR R
HMEETARA  BZRSANSES
MEHE - IEEMENSBEREE

HE

FEEEBLTEA

ReBEzHS WA REEENFE
NEAERBREAER - B R T HE
EHEMELZMBREER A AHE
BEZKREE  WRERENHE A
RBRFAX

FEEEBFABA

RERBHERFZEENIHHER
BEZAVESRERE CRERE L
REEERRAEEEE - WA
ZHBEEIFARABHBRRE - 5l
REEHEAIE -

HENFIRL G2 & AR5 E B R
HEAL KMELEERBEZEN
Ko BBEMUANBEER  RIEER
EREBRATKEE EZBERT - A
RRAKBEABEERAN—REKE
A (R EX&FEE) -

REBe(BREBRELZEEMSA
T ER)NERAEREERRF
X MEMAERREETRRAREEE
EERE KBNS BREANERI -

#HZ2017F 12831 HiIFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense

on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial

position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the

accounting policy above).

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits

from the leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset

are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property is accounted as an
operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold

interests in the land element and building element at intial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under fair value model. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the leasehold

land is under finance lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position and transferred
to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives

of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the government-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any

amount already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group

entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,

on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial asset. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial asset are

set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from associates, amounts due from
joint ventures, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss

on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of the reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of

impairment loss of financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

Annual Report 2017 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

125



126

wm jﬁﬁ#ﬁ%EMﬁ

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 20179 12531 HitF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2017

3. EEERBR »

&MIR (B)

EHEEZHE
SRAEGREEPRFELE

% BREHE Tﬁaﬁ?ﬁémﬂﬁ?‘ﬁ‘ﬁ
MARRERERAR NI HER niﬁmﬁﬁ

ERBEZ-HIZREMAMRIF
B AR AZEREESERE -

HRAHEHERAKRE  ZREZAF
EXRESRIREEERKARRERE

ZEREEE -

RERLEEZME  REZEBREE

AR

- BOFASRSHFHEEAMER
g

. BY - IRBEANSTRER

- ERABURAERRELVHE

o

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of retumn for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When trade receivables are
considered uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or

loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due
to associates, amounts due to joint ventures and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual

rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as
a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash

flows (where the effect of the time value of the money is material).
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For the year ended 3| December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve

(attributed to non-controlling interest as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a partial
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company

are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For
all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint
arrangements that do not result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange

differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Additionally, on disposal of group entities which has the same functional
currency as the Company, the exchange differences arising on translation

to presentation currency are transferred directly to accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 3| December 2017

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(a) Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the management has reviewed the Group's investment
properties portfolios. For the Group's investment property
located in Shenzhen of the PRC, the management concluded
that it is depreciable but not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time. Therefore,
in determining the Group's deferred taxation on investment
property, the management determined that the presumption that
this investment property measured using the fair value model is

recovered through sale is not rebutted.

For the Group's investment property located in Tieling of the
PRC, the management concluded that it is depreciable and
is being held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred taxation on
investment property, the management determined that the
presumption that this investment property measured using the

fair value model is recovered through sale is rebutted.

The potential deferred tax impact to the Group at the end of the
reporting period is shown in note 33.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Significant influence over Jilin Longyuan Wind Power
Co., Ltd.

Note 42 describes that Jilin Longyuan Wind Power Co,, Ltd. (‘]ilin
Longyuan”) is an associate of the Group although the Group
only owns 15.35% ownership interest in Jilin Longyuan. The
Group has significant influence over Jilin Longyuan by virtue of the
contractual right to appoint two out of the nine directors to the
board of directors of that entity.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty and judgment at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period,
are discussed below.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a) Estimated impairment of intangible assets of

technology know-how

Determining whether intangible assets of technology know-
how are impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of the relevant cash generating unit to which technology
know-how has been allocated. The recoverable amount is
determined with reference to the future cash flows expected
to arise from the relevant cash generating unit, discount rate
and growth rate in order to derive the net present value of the
recoverable amount. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, or changes occur in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash, further
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of technology know-how is HK$163,519,000 (2016:
HK$185,613,000), net of impairment loss of HK$17,399,000
(2016: nil). Details of the recoverable amount calculation is

disclosed in note 9.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based on an
assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables. Allowance
is applied to trade receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectible. In
determining whether an allowance for doubtful debts is required,
the Group takes into consideration of recent trade relationships,
financial background and creditability of individual trade debtors,
including historical settlement records such as default or delay
in payments, subsequent settlement and ageing analysis of trade
receivables. Where the expectation of the recoverability of trade
receivables is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of trade receivables and allowance
for doubtful debts in the period in which such estimate has
changed. As at 3| December 2017, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$1,612,727,000 (2016: HK$1,556,852,000),
net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$149,141,000 (2016:
HK$65,247,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(©

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates of market conditions
and assumptions made on the investment properties, including
comparable market rents and transactions with adjustments to

reflect different locations or conditions.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
assumptions used in the valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions and current development of the investment
properties. Changes to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair values of the Group's investment properties and
the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 31
December 2017, the carrying amount of investment properties is
HK$ 149,538,000 (2016: HK$137,730,000).
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5. TURNOVER

An analysis of the Group's turnover for the year from continuing

EEAWMT - operations is as follows:
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(4 &35)
(Restated)
BEREXEB Continuing operations
HERNEBHBERD Sales of wind energy related products 234,028 1,785,678
HERERAEED Sales of energy storage and related products 3,677 541335
EminE Sales of goods 19,960 63,209
HERBRSELZEN Sales of electricity from operation of
wind power field 25,709 24,989
283,374 2415211
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's Executive Directors, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods or services delivered or provided. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in

arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

In prior year, there were 5 reportable and operating segments namely
Wind Energy Related Products, Operation of Wind Farm, Rare-Earth
Permanent Magnet Motor (“REPM") Products, Telecommunication

Business and Energy Storage and Related Products.

During the year, the CODM has reviewed the Group's business
operation and considered REPM Products segment was discontinued.
Therefore, it is no longer a reportable and operating segment of the
Group. The segment information reported below does not include any
amounts for the discontinued operation, which are described in more
details in note 10.

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments for the year

under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments™ are as follows:

Wind Energy Related Products — Manufacture and sales of wind

energy related products

Operation of Wind Farm — Sales of electricity from operation

of wind power field

Telecommunication Business ~ — Development and distribution
of communication products,
information technology systems,
broadband systems, equipment

and accessories

Energy Storage and — Manufacture and sales of energy
Related Products renewal products by combining
wind energy, solar energy and

energy storage

Information regarding these segments is presented below.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's turnover and results from

continuing operations by operating and reportable segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BEA%E REER
RBER HEER EHiES
Wind Energy Ei#E% Energy Storage Tele-
Related ~ Operation of and Related communication &8
Products Wind Farm Products Business  Consolidated
FET FET FET TET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RESEXY Continuing operations
BXE TURNOVER
HIMHE External sales 234,028 25,709 3,677 19,960 283,374
ES | RESULT
BB Segment result (222,383) 10,431 (9,251) (12,201) (233,404)
AERRARER Unallocated corporate expenses (107,535)
REDBEMMBA Unallocated other income 10,167
FHHA Finance costs (74,489)
[ElE—MaEh%%E  Share of results of a joint venture
- REAEHH - unallocated portion 165,019
RENZEZATE Gain from changes in fair value of
23l investment properties 2,075
BRAIEE Loss before taxation (238,167)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

ENEE 2
HEER HEEmR BAXK
Wind Energy f5&% Energy Storage Tele-
Related Operation of and Related ~ communication )
Products Wind Farm Products Business Consolidated
TET TET TET TET TET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
(#&5))
(Restated)
REREXY Continuing operations
BEE TURNOVER
HINEE External sales 1785678 24989 541,335 63,209 2415211
ES | RESULT
PRERE Segment result 81,603 7846 21,570 (3,680) 107,339
REDNBAFEBR Unallocated corporate expenses (105,509)
REDBEMMBA Unallocated other income 12,107
FHAR Finance costs (78039)
EE—RIAEBEEE  Share of results of a joint venture
- AEREH S - unallocated portion 151,921
RENFZATE Gain from changes in fair value of
2yl investment properties 6312
B AR Profit before taxation 94131

DEEBEESIBES / BIABREA
(BE)&F  TeEMBKA  KREY
E¥7DFEEHWNG  KEDBRZERN
—HABLEEE  URKEDEHMD
WARRABIER  MEBTHKANE
EHe o IR L QA E51827,854,000
# 7L (2016%F © 26,534,000 7T ) & FE {5
—HAEPERT 1080008 (2016
F 11,849,000 DEEERE D « It
DHERABEERDBERTERNS - @
AEERITESEZRNTE -
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Segment results represent the (loss) profit before taxation incurred/
eamned by each segment, excluding finance costs, gain from changes in
fair value of investment properties, share of results of a joint venture
which cannot be allocated, unallocated other income and corporate
expenses such as central administration costs and directors’ salaries.
Share of loss of associates of HK$27,854,000 (2016: HK$26,534,000)
and share of profit of a joint venture of HK$ 1,108,000 (2016:
HK$1,849,000) are allocated to reportable segments. This is the
measure reported to the Group's Executive Directors for the purpose
of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

NESEREE Segment assets and liabilities
AEBIZERESBE D ZBEENEGS The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
T e reportable segment.
R2017F 128318 At 31 December 2017
BH%E fREER
HBER HRER EEiES
Wind Energy Ei5E% Energy Storage Tele-
Related  Operation of and Related communication #E
Products Wind Farm Products Business ~ Consolidated
FAT FAT FAT FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
gE ASSETS
NHEE Segment assets 3,639,256 434,671 165,594 31,103 4,270,624
R—BBE DA ZEE  Interest in an associate 5,835
—REREHS - unallocated portion
W—FIAEMEZES Interest in a joint venture 1,152,651
—KEHEHH - unallocated portion
RENBAREE Unallocated corporate assets 416,559
GRAEBE Consolidated total assets 5,845,669
8 LIABILITIES
AHEERE Segment liabilities 1,910,968 12,724 13,521 22,501 1,959,714
RESELFIAR Unallocated corporate liabilities 1,785,077
FEBEEE Consolidated total liabilities 3,744,791
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

At 31 December 2016

g€ e
HEER REER BAXK
Wind Energy 5 Energy Storage Tele-
Related Operation of andRelated  communication wa
Products Wind Farm Products Business Consolidated
AT TET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
(#23))
(Restated)
&E ASSETS
NEEE Segment assets 3909872 414,243 372,640 37,820 4734575
HERIHOEEBER  Assets relating to discontinued
ZEE operation 475
R-HAERE 2R Interestin ajoint venture 1,064,506
—REHEHH - unallocated portion
REDERFEE Unallocated corporate assets 478,883
DREEERE Consolidated total assets 6322715
g LIABILITIES
AERE Segment liabilities 2415388 20728 20473 17354 2473943
HEMIHESEKEER  Liabilities relating to discontinued
ZBE operation 16,123
RENERRER Unallocated corporate liabiltties 1,622,486
RARAREHE Consolidated total liabilities 4112552

REFEDBRRARRDBEIEER

o RAUSEMR-—HEELEZE
TiEm  REME  THEERE
LEMSRHEE(XERRERITE
BERE)N IEEEHHEZE
BENE - Pﬁéﬁhzmmsﬁﬁa_z
FRAOEEEENE

o BTASRZETHEERETHE
BEN HEREAIREEEES
7 o
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For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to operating segments other than certain
interest in a joint venture which cannot be allocated, investment
properties, available-for-sale investments and other financial assets
that comprise of mainly bank balances and cash. Goodwill is

allocated to operating segments as described in note 18; and

. all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than certain

borrowings which cannot be allocated and deferred tax liabilities.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

At 31 December 2017

RASERR

HEARRRINRAER
HAZEE:

FENE FERRE

0% FERRENE

HENE  BRERREL
Balhs)

H
EibR %ﬁ%mﬂ
HEVAERDZAEER

HEARYGRAZAE
B
HEL-BEZLTR
B ARER

Continuing operations

Amounts included in the measure of segment
profit or loss or segment assets:

Additions of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Share of (loss) profit of associates

Share of profit of joint ventures

Impairment losses recognised in respect
of intangble assets

Impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade receivables

Impaiment loss recognised in respect of

amount due from an associate

EWE T BER
BBER BBER
Wind B5EE Energy
Energy Operation Storage
Related of Wind and Related
Products Farm Products
FE7 FET FE7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
15,243 49 376
13,315 12,147 2,515
21 - -
41,673 300,760 -
39,633 - -
(32,077 4123 -
- 1,108 -

17,399 - -
83,565 - 10,354
34741 - -

EEES

Tele-
communication
Business

FET

HK$'000

490
581

AEAE
Unallocated
FET
HK$'000

1,365
52

5,835
1,152,651

165,019

&8
Consolidated
FET
HK$'000

17,966
28,616

M)
348,268
1,192,284
(27,854)
166,127
17,399
93919

34741
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BE2017F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

6. HEHBE » 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
HipoEEE (&) Other segment information (Continued)
A2016F 128318 At 31 December 2016
EWIEES e
HEER HEER
Wind Bi5EE Energy ERES
Energy Operation Storage Tele-
Related of Wind andRelted  communication RESE 54
Products Farm Products Business Unallocated Consolidated
AL AL AL AL AL FEL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
(#25))
(Restated)
FEGEER Continuing operations
HEANBRAUAEAER  Amounts induded in the measure of segment
HAZEE: profit or loss or segment assets:
RENE BRRERE Additions of property, plant and equipment 12849 520 1180 74 B 14748
n% BERAFNE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12,304 12293 208 1 466 87 28378
HENE - BERREZER Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 5 — - 0 - 5
NSRRI ER Interests n associates 70009 28325 - — - 353265
NeghEER Interests in joint ventures - 35838 - - 1,064,506 1,100,344
EEBEDA(BB)EH  Share of (loss) profit of associates (28035) 1,501 - - - (26534)
EhEEOEEH Share of profit of joint ventures - 1,649 - - 51921 53770
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BE2017F 12731 AILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

SHEEH 2 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
EEE Geographical information
NEE 7 EBMNRBEERTEEMHE o The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and other regions of
the PRC.
() AEEREIARPZBEREE (i) The Group's revenue from continuing operations from external
USSR T - customers are detailed below:
2017 2016
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
(#Z3))
(Restated)
PR E M@ Other regions of the PRC 273,476 2.369,191
BB Hong Kong 34 858
EH United States of America 6,249 7,778
Hit Others 3,615 37,384
283,374 2415211
(i) REENBNENENAEERE (i) Information about the Group's non-current assets by geographica
A A B R SR S B R e e B location of the assets from continuing operations are detailed
BT below:
FRBEERAME
Carrying amount
of non-current assets
2017 2016
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
(Z3))
(Restated)
o B E fth 3t [ Other regions of the PRC 2,313,411 2207913
BE Hong Kong 1,731 399
2,315,142 2,208,312
R AR S HE R Non-current assets exclude those relating to discontinued operation,
S AENEREREERIELE available-for-sale investments and deferred tax assets.

BEE -
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6. PEEH »)

FHEREFAN
RAERFERESNBRASEMABHESR
0% EF WS

BEEA

EFB

EFC

EFD

: BA%EREERKE

! fERE RARRE m it

’ MR G AR B AR
HEIB 10%

7. HpugA

BREEER

H AT ERE

B REBD (Fi3E)
REMEHES WA (BB NERX)

FBIA
—RITHE
— BT HAEREZRR

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over
10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:
2017 2016
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
Customer Al 191,307 NEAN/A
Customer B! 36,052 EAN/A?
Customer C' THEANA? 444,548
Customer D? TERAN/A? 361,165

Revenue from Wind Energy Related Products

2 Revenue from Energy Storage and Related Products

: The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group

7. OTHER INCOME

2017 2016
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
(&3]
(Restated)
Continuing operations
Other income mainly comprises:
Government grants (note) 3,120 9,021
Rental income from investment properties,
net of negligible outgoings 6,461 6,464
Interest income
- bank balances 1,515 1,990
- advance to a joint venture 2,809 3015

Bt : £ %8834,0007%8 7L (2016 % : 593,000
TEFEBE/KEARBHEED
¥ BERSHBZIEME TAEE
Z BN (FTEE29) + #2%82,286,0005 T
(20164 : 842800078 7T ) 35 BI L /3
/BT B NS R E A BT &
FAREBZEERHY  REMEFTE
BEHE 2 BREER(SERDR
2w -

TEMXBRER(ER) BRALF « 2017 F3§

Note: An amount of HK$834,000 (2016: HK$593,000) represents
subsidies granted to the Group by the PRC government/authorities
for the purpose of financing the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment (note 29). The remaining amount of HK$2,286,000 (201 6:
HK$8,428,000) represents operating subsidies granted to the Group by
the PRC government/authorities for telecommunication business and
other technology development, and subsidies received from the PRC tax
authorities on Value Added Tax (“VAT") refund.
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BE2017F 12731 AILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

Hib ez X g518 8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
(4 &E35))
(Restated)
FERSEXEB Continuing operations
REMERNTFEL B MR Gain from changes in fair value of
investment properties 2,075 6312
HEME  BELRZHF W (BE)  Gain (loss) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 78 (25)
ERRELBRFE Net exchange loss recognised (589) (9,673)
SELBERRZRERE Impairment losses recognised in respect of
intangible assets (17,399) —
T 5 R IER 2 RERR Impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade receivables (93,919) —
IR — R 8 1 R SRR 2 RUE Impairment loss recognised in respect of
18 amount due from an asssocaite (34,741) —
(144,495) (3,386)
BAFE AR A 9. FINANCE COSTS
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FREREER Continuing operations
Mg Interest on:
—RITREMER - bank and other loans 74,486 78,030
—REEE - finance lease 3 9
74,489 78,039
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#Z2017F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

10. BERIEEEETE

REZE2017F12A3IBLEFE - K&
BRk—FEBARIHEMAEREKE
BARNI&HER] KEAEENH
TKHMEREE)NIEERBRRAEER
IHEREZENESLI - AEET
EAMESAZBERANESZTEHEF
W=fRZEMAL - B2017F 1274228
BER - AEEB T BHEHEET—
RESHRFEET IHERNE MR

BBI7FENANBEAR -

REBEIHEROEETARER A
FRZERMBEANIHEROMAEE
BIMREDEZEBR(BI=F)@8
b ARAEZRR AKERKREHE
BTHERBAERNEEN - REIEH
ETHBRMSTIHERARNATE
Em—-MEENRR  AEEEERE

TTEREREY 37,1 4% AAE -

B/ FAREBERELERLKHER

ZENBERHIINT NEA RS

thEHEBERAN LR FELET
NEFEIH L KHEREERDRIE

B/ FRAREEKEEEBOER

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 3| December 2017, the Group and the non-
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary, &M AEREHBR A
&) (“Jiangsu Energine”), which carried out the Group's REPM Products
operation, agreed to change the proportion of directors in the board
of directors of Jiangsu Energine. The number of directors that can be
appointed by the Group has decreased from three to two out of five
board members with effect from 22 December 2017. The Group
has transferred the right to appoint a director irrevocably to other

shareholders of Jiangsu Energine, with effect from 22 December 2017.

According to the revised Articles of Association of Jiangsu Energine, all
decisions about operating and financial (which are relevant activities of
Jiangsu Energine) require majority votes (i.e. three votes). As a result,
the directors of the Company have concluded that Group has lost its
ability to direct the relevant activities of Jiangsu Energine. The Group
continues to hold 37.14% equity interest of Jiangsu Energine after the

deemed disposal and accounted for it as an associate of the Group.

The loss for the period/year from the discontinued REPM Products
operation is set out below. The comparative figures in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income have been

restated to re-present the REPM Products operation as a discontinued

Loss for the period/year from

operation.

BZE2017F BZE20165F

12A22H 12A31H

i) [R5

Period ended Year ended

22.12.2017 31.122016

FHET BT

HK$’000 HK$'000
discontinued operation (4,588) (2,440

TEMXBRER(ER) BRALF « 2017 F3§
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BE2017F 12731 AILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

10. E,“\ ?&%%ﬁ (&) 10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)
L kERLER0I7EIAI AR The results of REPM Products operation for the period from |
EZI7TENANBIHREMES (D January 2017 to 22 December 2017, which have been included in
AN BEREMZERER)MNT the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income, were as follows:

BZE2017F HZE20165F

12A22H 12A31H

i) HFE

Period ended Year ended

22.12.2017 31.122016

FET T

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEH Turmover 16,296 21,610

HEMAR Cost of sales (14,381) (18217)

EH Gross profit 1,915 3,393

Hp A Other income 46 104

H il kB 1R Other gains and losses 13 4

HERDHERA Selling and distribution expenses (683) (894)

THER Administrative expenses (5,902) (5,050)

BRBL AT BT Loss before taxation (4,611) (2443)

HIEH B Tax credit 23 3

B/ FRER Loss for the period/year (4,588) (2,440)
B/ FRATEBEEEE Loss for the period/year attribute to:

ZUNEIL 2= PN Owners of the Company (1,704) (906)

FEFE IR Non-controlling interests (2,884) (1,534)

(4,588) (2,440
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#Z2017F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

10.

BRIFEZER ») 10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)
BZ20175 HZE20165F
12A22H 12A31H8
L HA R IEFE
Period ended Year ended
22.12.2017 31.122016
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
B/ FAREERIEEEEBN Loss for the period/year from
S EIRECE] discontinued operation has been
arrived at after charging:
HpE THRA Other staff costs 2,230 1,700
Hih B TR A B3R Other staffs retirement benefits
scheme contributions 607 643
2,837 2,343
BRBFMXZFERA Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense 14,238 18014
ME - BERREBZNE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 302 714
FLMREFIREMEXMZ Minimum lease payments under
3iYizk A operating lease in respect of
land and buildings 394 302
HEF Research and development expenses 669 368
e EIPNE and after crediting
FEHA Interest income 40 79

BE017FNRBNBIEHE &1k
MEMRAASBERFLEER SR
2,568,000 L (E £ 2016F 12831 HIE
FE:19851,00087T)  RFRERS
it 566,000 JT(B 220164 12 A3
BIEEE  FIRER SN A441,000 %
JT) °

BEWI6FNANBLEEE EF+
KMEMSEEBLRENE BER
HEHSE R 35,0008 °

IHBERRRIELERRNEERAR
HRREERBERM T4 -

TEMXBRER(ER) BRALF « 2017 F3§

During the period ended 22 December 2017, REPM products
contributed to the Group's net operating cash outflow of HK$2,568,000
(year ended 31 December 2016: HK$19,851,000) and net investing
cash outflow of HK$566,000 (year ended 31 December 2016: net
investing cash inflow of HK$441,000).

Additions of property, plant equipment relating to REPM Products
operation amounted to HK$352,000 for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Jiangsu Energine at

the date of deemed disposal are disclosed in note 41.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2017F 12731 AILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

I Br¥inn (E518) im#

I. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

n\l-_]_\

B mRRMEE

2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(#5E3)
(Restated)
REFBREXBZ (Loss) profit before taxation
FRAAN (&5 18 )i 7 from continuing operations has been
EHBRTIISE arrived at after charging:
£ En Directors emoluments 5,646 5,688
HipE TAA Other staff costs 73,777 72,955
H 8 TR 24K Other staff's retirement benefits
scheme contributions 12,071 ['1,090
91,494 89,733
ZE B & Auditor's remuneration 3,050 3,050
B EEHH Amortisation of intangible assets 23,623 24,648
REFAXZFERK Cost of inventories recognised as an
expense 223,775 2,100,922
Mm% - BERREZITE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 28,616 28,378
REMRBT 2 EEHEXAN Minimum lease payments under operating
ZRERES leases in respect of land and buildings 11,102 13,564
HEF Research and development expenses 12,026 5,080
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B 20179 12531 HitF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2017

12. §$ . ﬁ@%ﬁ&ﬁé@]ﬂﬁ 12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
AEBEENESTNERER FTH Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
AR EBATEMNBENT pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follow:

(a) EEREH (a) Directors and chief executive
BRI IBR £ FHE 2017 FE5
Han Wang Li Xu Total
Shuwang  Xiaodong Guang Jun 2017

TEn FEn TEx FEn FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BITES Executive directors
e Fees — - - — _
Hiii 4 - Other emoluments:
¥e 2HR Salaries, allowances and
Hitg7 other benefits 1,156 1,540 1,307 1,074 5,077
BRI Performance related bonuses
(MzE1) (note 1) - - - - -
RRBH(HEE2)  Retirement benefits (note 2) 8 18 12 12 50
g Sub-total 1,164 1,558 1,319 1,086 5,127
FRETEENS T EEENER The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
RAT A EE ST B 15 T2 Y for their services in connection with the management of the
R - affairs of the Company and the Group.
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For the year ended 3| December 2017

12. B - B REENE & 12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) EBREH (&) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)

2B e FtEhne 2017 FE5
Liu Fan Total
Xiaowei* Shili# 2017
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHITES Non-executive directors
iakn Fees — — —

HibB < : Other emoluments:
e R REMER Salaries, allowances

and other benefits — _ _

NEE Sub-total — — -
FHERTEENES T EEBEE The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
VEARAR R ANEBS B2 mainly for their services as directors of the Company and the
R7S - Group.
BER

Kan 2017 F45

KB  Lai Kuen, RER Total

Li Dapeng Alice Ng Gordon 2017

FET FET FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BIFHTEE  Independent non-executive

directors

e Fees 173 173 173 519

NEE Sub-total 173 173 173 519
BT ERTESESHETESD The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
BERAAATESFRIZHGR above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

ﬁ‘% o

2017 FAG

Total

2017

FET

HK$’000

5 Total 5,646
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12. EE - B RESMNE 2 12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

) EEREFK &) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)
il IBR i ECSILES )
Han Wang Li Xu Total
Shuwang Xiaodong Guang Jun 2016

TET TET TET TET TET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

HITEE Executive directors
ik Fees — _ _ _ _
Hiodie Other emoluments;
e 2ZHR Salaries, allowances and
Hi g7 other benefits 1,582 1424 [,187 949 5,142
ERURRBTEAL Performance related bonuses
GELD) (note 1) — — — — —
RKEM(ME2)  Retirement benefits (note 2) — 18 — — 8
g Sub-total 1,582 1442 [,187 949 5,160
BT EEME T EEURER The executive directors” emoluments shown above were mainly
AAT R AEFEEIE SRR for their services in connection with the management of the
iR7& - affairs of the Company and the Group.
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12. B - B REENE & 12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) EEREH (&) (a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)
2016 F 45t
Total
2016
Hth
Fan
Shili
TET
HK$000
FUTES Non-executive director
we Fees
Hipfe - Other emoluments:

e R REMEN Salaries, allowances and other benefits —
NEE Sub-total —
FHERTEEHE T EEEEE The non-executive director's emoluments shown above were
EAKRAR R AEE S EAIZEL mainly for his services as director of the Company and the Group.
R o

HEA
Kan 2016 F45T
YN Lai Kuen, RER Total
Li Dapeng Alice  Ng Gordon 2016
TET TET TET TET

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

BIFHTEE  Independent non-executive

directors

e Fees 176 |76 176 528

NEE Sub-total 176 176 176 528
BT ERTEEME T ELSD The independent non-executive directors” emoluments shown
BEEARDNTEEFIZMHER above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

ﬁ% o

2016 F425T

Total

2016

TET

HK$000

“BEr Total 5,688
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BE2017F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

12. EE - BHEREEME =2

(@)

EER4E (2

BMELHITMEENEZ 2017
FI12A31BR2016%F12A31BIE
FEREXMHE -

FRB/ARARZERFEE - X
FIRE R 2 M BRI R IEREEAT
RERBME -

GoE

() BHRBETEAhMTFHEESR
FHARREREERRERE -

Q) BETEFHRNREF RN
BT -

* R2017F3A30HEZRE
# M2017%6 B2 BEHE

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive (Continued)

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments in the years ended 31 December 2017 and 3|
December 2016.

Li Guang is both director and chief executive officer of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for

services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.
Notes:

(1) The performance related bonuses are determined by reference
to individual performance and group performance and

recommended by the remuneration committee.

(2)  Retirement benefits of certain directors are borne by CALT.

* Appointed on 30 March 2017

# Resigned with effect from 2 June 2017
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12. EE - BHEREEME =2

BIE2017F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) HfuZEHMAL (b) Five highest paid individuals
ANESEHEMALTBENA(2016 The five highest paid individuals included four (2016: four)
EO)ESZ OUBEED - T directors. Amongst the four directors, Li Guang is the chief
TREE - AH—I(2016%F : — executive officer. The emoluments of the remaining one (2016
f&EHFMATZHMEIT one) highest paid individual were as follows:

2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
e REMET Salaries and other benefits 1,086 949
13. #l8 13. TAXATION
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
(&=E5)
(Restated)

FEREXEB Continuing operations

AEEHEAXHBE Tax charge for the year comprises:

R EEH PRC Enterprise Income Tax

RER Current year 3,743 10,267
BEFERETR Underprovision in prior years 907 198
4,650 10,465

SEIERIR S (BT 33) Deferred tax charge (note 33) 543 1,902

5,193 12,367
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13. HIR (@)
A BB HRBBA BIR) T2

13. TAXATION (Continued)

The reconciliation of tax charge for the year to the (loss) profit before

RIS taxation is as follows:
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
(& =&351)
(Restated)
BRELAT (B &= F (Loss) profit before taxation
CRERBEELER) (from continuing operations) (238,167) 94,131
RPBEREMERTE 25%(GEA) Tax (credit) charge at PRC Enterprise
MR 2 TIEH (2016 5F < 25%) Income Tax rate of 25%(2016:25%) (59,542) 23,533
RIEHERAIRAEPEEE Share of results of associates
and joint ventures (34,568) (31,809)
BEARBBAZ HBZE Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose (134) (249)
TAMBRZ 2 RGBT E Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 780 2,994
AR HE R AT HRL R I 2 AR Tax effect of deductible temporary
ZHBTE differences not recognised 36,588 3377
AEEABRZ BB E Tax effect of losses not recognised 60,453 15,601
PREAIARSERZHAER Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised ) (1,758)
RETEMERRREDE Tax effect of temporary differences
BANGEREEHETE attributable to undistributed
profits of PRC subsidiaries 716 480
BREFERETR Underprovision in prior years 907 198
REFHRELH Tax charge for the year 5,193 12,367

ARAEERNMEANLEEL B LR
BB ZERBUGEN - WA RFHHREAN

% -

RB(RERRAEHRZ(EEMER
ENDREEMEREERGED - EM

BATRIRMERZTEE25% o

BRETIRZ FHBHINNHIESS -

TEMXBRER(ER) BRALF « 2017 F3§

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made as the Group has no

assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law’)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC

subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 33.



n‘m 7f ﬁ&#ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2017F 12731 AILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

14. 22 14. DIVIDENDS
AATEEHERERZ2017ER 2016 No final dividend in respect of year ended 31 December 2017 and
FNA3NBLEFEHRBIE - 2016 has been proposed by the directors of the Company.

15. 8% (BE) B -EX I15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC
KAGEEANEEERER(ER)BH The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share attributable to
HEN T 8UEE - owners of the Company is based on the following data.

2017 2016
FET T
HK$’000 HK$000
(&&E5)
(Restated)
REFEREEY From continuing operations
ARRHERANEGREE (Loss) Profit for the year attributable
(&) %7 to owners of the Company (237,098) 76,024
m:REBREREEBZ Add: Loss for the year from discontinued
AFEER operation 1,704 906
HREFBELEEB LR (Loss) profit for the purpose of basic
AER(BE)BMNME (loss) eamings per share from
2 (E18) & A continuing operations (235,394) 76930
RBEAE
Number of shares
2017 2016
SEREAR(ERE)BNH S Weighted average number of shares
Z R D5 8 for the purpose of basic (loss)
eamings per share 4,368,995,668 4,368,995,668

Annual Report 2017 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited 161



162

M< jﬁ#ﬁﬁw

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| December 2017

15. Bz (B538) BF -EF

Z)
(&)

REFERCRIELERE

REREN(ER)BNME
ZARREEA ARG
AEE(BER) &M

15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

(Continued)
2017 2016
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
(&E31)
(Restated)
From continuing and
discontinued operations
(Loss) Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company for the purpose
of basic (loss) earnings per share (237,098) 76,024

SREXN(BR)BNMRAZDGEE
X E AR o

REERILEEER

BERIREEB L ERERNEEER
0047 (20165 : & §20.027% il ) -
DTRBERELKEEB 2 FAER
1,704,000 70 (2016 4F : 906,000 7T) K
LA EGREXREEMEM 2D &5
§ o

MRMEADECRTEEE B
LY &S GREERN -

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for basic

(loss) eamnings per share.

From discontinued operation

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operation is HK$0.04 cents per
share (2016: HK$0.02 cents per share), based on the loss for the year
from the discontinued operation of HK$ 1,704,000 (2016: HK$906,000)

and the denominators detailed above for basic loss per share.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there were no

potential ordinary shares outstanding for both years.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
NEE FAIR VALUE

REFF) At beginning of the year 137,730 140,610
BE R Exchange realignment 9,733 (9,192)

ERERERZ N TEEM Increase in fair value recognised
in profit or loss 2,075 6,312
RE At end of the year 149,538 137,730

AEERBRLHERBEUEREE R
RIFERZERNZMANEESYR
NFERAFE  DBAREMEILMN
REMEANR - REMELNHHE -

K& B R2017F R2016F12A318
EREMELNFEERBAEELEB
B2 BN AEREELERMES R ETAD
TERAAINEHEAHET ZHEEMS
B RENMEZHBENELEMS AR
HEFE  M(BER)REMEZER
WABRCEEET -

RETHEBYENLDFER - RADA)E
BRERETEFETAVEFERE
Rz BERNRBARE -

AEEZBBYREREXMEMET
fhlg - MBRERBIAERERME
MEYAE 2UERRARENME
ERTEBARE - M BRESYFR
ARREZEREREER  BEZLT
MELFERBHRA -

REFADEZRATER  BENEZR
SERERENAZENRE -

All of the Group'’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties. The investment properties are located in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on the respective dates by Knight Frank Petty Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group. The
valuation of the investment properties was arrived by reference to sales
evidence as available in the market, and where appropriate, on the basis

of capitalisation of the income potential of similar properties.

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties, the financial
controller and certain directors of the Company determine the

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

The Group engages independent qualified professional valuers to
perform the valuation. The financial controller works closely with the
independent qualified professional valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The financial controller
reports the findings to the board of directors of the Company semi
annually to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the

properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of

the properties is their current use.
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16. IREWME &)

TRENEBIAETAZEREDER
FELERMAERZ S ERIRE AR
B(E—
FEAEGAZEL

BIRAFEAEMBLATES
ERZRRER
ABREENR)ZEH -

RnE
12A31R
HRRREAREMA 2 RENR ZDYHE
Investment properties held Fair value as at

by the Group in the statement
of financial position

TR
HK$'000

LR EER R BRNE 50843

Commercial property in Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the PRC

TEMXBRER(ER) BRALF « 2017 F3§

16.

3| December

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of

these investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation

techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into

which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels | to 3) based

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is

observable.
R2016F
128318
2098
Fairvalueasat ATEZHR
3| December  Fair value

2016 hierarchy

TR
HK$'000

4$13  E=8
Level 3

fHERER
E2:3 8 4
Valuation
technique(s) and
key input(s)

ERERLE
Direct Capitalisation
Approach

IRBATER
The key inputs are;

) BRfLiE:
)

) Rl

)

(
(
(
(2) Monthly rent.

Capitalisation rate;

EELAUBRAANE
Significant
unobservable input(s)

AR B 420165 - 4%) -
I RERRERAZAAL
NEEERRTHR
Capitalisation rate, taking into
account the capitalisation of
rental income potential, nature of
the property, prevalings market
condition, of 4% (201: 4%)

ABEFARARBITL(016
FBYRRARR M) B
RESEARRREEALE
NELE Rk NEARY
$RREENRZ

Monthly rent, based on net
floor area, using direct market
comparables and taking into
account age, location and
individual factors such as size of
property of RMB97/sqm. (2016:
RMB94/sqm,)

GEECIN ¢
ROYEZBE
Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to the
fair value

ENd: RS RN
FEALE -

The higher the
capitalisation rate, the

lower the fair value.

REHE ATEH

o

alop

The higher the
monthly rent, the

higher the fair value.
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16. IBEME =) 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

TS H2016% FIEZBALE
128318 12318 fEERER RAVEZBR
HERRRAZREA R 2 RENE VR Z0VE IXBANE Relationship of
Investment properties held Fairvalueasat Fairvalueasat AFESH  Valuation BE2FTBRRANE unobservable
by the Group in the statement 31 December 31 December  Fairvalue  technique(s)and  Significant inputs to the
of financial position 2017 2016 hierarchy  key input(s) unobservable input(s) fair value
TiEn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000
MR EREAAST L IXEANE %69 007 BZR ERERLE AN{EHR5-55% (0165 ¢ BRfLyEEE 2
Industrial complex i Tieling Level 3 Direct Capitalistion ~ 5-55%) + EHRETESN FEHE-
Liaoning Province, the PRC Approach AZER  MEHE R
L T
The ey npus e Capitalisation ratf:, t.akm.g into Th‘e ‘h\ gher the
account the capitalisation of capitalisation rate, the
(1) B % rental income potential, nature of lower the fair value.
(1) Capttalisation rate; the property, prevailing market
(2 A condition, of 5-5.5% (2016:
(2) Morthly rent. 5-55%)
RESTARARE L0 ABME ATEM

MERNGEEARBEE=H -

E:B¥KARMINR) &
REEERERAERTILE
HEGETRER - LEARY
FUERREFERRR
Monthly rent, based on net
floor area, using direct market
comparables and taking into
account age, location and
individual factors such as location
and size of property of RMBI2/
sqm. (2016: RMBI2/sqm)

o

oo}

The higher the
monthly rent, the

higher the fair value.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both years.
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17. 1% - BRERE 7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HE- WL
BELH  REREE  EERRE AR
RigF Plant, Wind BAERE
Leasehold  equipment energy  HERIA  Furniture AE ERIE
land and and plant and Moulds  and office Motor  Construction 1
buildings ~ machinery  equipment andtools  equipment vehicles  in progress Total

7L FET TEn 7L T TEL TEL AT
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000

A& COST
RWIEIAIE Al January 2016 16,469 7,637 408276 37712 225% 22097 6,804 531,589
EigE Bychange relgrment (1L130) (L1 (7689) (256) ) (11%9) @) (49)
nE Additions - 308 11,147 1498 1082 1,065 — 15,100
pe Disposds - (140 ) - ) 84 - (10)
R0I6E12A318 At 3] December 2016 15,339 16,619 714 36,649 2,621 21,699 6,373 511,020
B A% Exchange realignment 1,262 1,243 3,391 3,012 959 1,099 441 4143
hE Addtions - 509 1,423 12,949 1,053 1113 Wl 18,598
HE Disposals - - (21 - (560) (110) - (691)
BENENBARR  Deemed disposal of a subsidiary

GED) (1ot 41 - (12305 - 1 (836) (986) - (54)
R0ITEI12A318  At3] December 2017 16,601 6,006 426,507 51313 2343 3,975 1,211 554,926
HERAE DEPRECIATION AND

IMPAIRMENT

ROEIAIR At January 2016 5409 14116 126,163 25844 16873 14082 — 202,507
L Echange edignment (47 o0 (oey (175 (6%) 74 — (7
TERR Provided for the year 846 869 19,621 333 2483 1950 - 25092
HER B Eiminated on disposals - (79) (19 - (216) (147) - (457)
R0I6F12A318 At 3] December 2016 5,808 13,920 135,601 27412 18,505 15,141 - 216,387
B3 A% Exchange realignment 533 1,058 12,759 2,537 1,503 1,184 - 19,574
TERR Provided for the year 91 345 22,075 3,486 138 1341 - 28918
HER Biminated on disposels - - - - (400) (104) - (504)
BAFLENBARA  Deemed dsposal of

(Risza) asubsiday (nofe 41 - () - (694) (679) (945) - (133m)
RI7E12A318  At3l December 2017 7,268 4,265 170,435 RYNL| 19,668 16,623 - 251,000
BEE CARRYING VALUES
ROITEI12A318 At 3] December 2017 9,333 1,801 256,072 18,582 3575 1,352 1,211 303,926
R0I6F12A318 At 3] December 2016 953 2699 25,113 9237 411 6558 6373 294633

166 TEMXESREAR(ER) SRAF ¢ 2017 £5§
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17. 1% - BENSEE &) 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
LitE  BERHREEB NEGER The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
AT ERITE straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:
HETHRETF 3-59% 35 48 Leasehold and and buildings 3- 5% or over the unexpired lease terms,
HE AR whichever is shorter
RERE
BE - BERKE 9. (5% Plant, equipment and machinery 9-15%
AHEEHEERSEE 5- 5% Wind energy plant and equipment 5-15%
BARTA 25% Moulds and tools 25%
RERPAEHE  10-25% Furniture and office equipment 10-25%
¥ 18 -25% Motor vehicles 18- 25%
20174 12 431 B B @ T E 453,000 The net book value of a motor vehicle as at 31 December 2017 of
BIT(20164F ¢ 180,000 7T ) B 5 EE LA R approximately HK$53,000 (2016: HK$180,000) is held under a finance
BEHENARE - lease.
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18.

#Z2017F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

mE

18. GOODWILL

T/
HK$000
B2 COST
R2016F 1 A1H - 2016F12A318K At January 2016, 31 December 2016 and
20175 12 H31 8 31 December 2017 15,397
RAE IMPAIRMENT
R2016F 1 A1H 2016F12A8318B% At January 2016, 31 December 2016 and
201712431 H 31 December 2017 13,393
SREE CARRYING VALUES
R2016F 12431 BR2017F 124318 At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 2,004

RBREAANS  BECOEERSE
ENBZERREELEN

AEEFERNRTRMEEEREN A
BRFHBKREMSL RS RERA
BEE - FHH T E2004000% T
ZRME - MZBAKIEEEERE 2 G
A RRBEESE 2 AIREI.1%(2016
Fo5%)stE  WRBERIMSHE
BEREAERRSELSNETRR 2T
fli - EREREAAZSBREZEMNE
Baa2 B reERERLERS Y
Wl B S5 o

HEWT7TENANBILEE KX&E
EEERTHEREHECHeELE
i HIRRME -

TEMXBRER(ER) BRALF « 2017 F3§

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated

to the individual cash generating unit of the Operation of Wind Farm

segment.

Management of the Group performed impairment review for the

remaining goodwill of HK$2,004,000 based on cash flow forecast

derived from the financial budget covering a period of 5 years, which

was prepared by using the most recent financial results with projections

approved by management at discount rate of 9.1% (2016: 9.5%) for

the Operation of Wind Farm segment, which reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

cash generating unit. Management believes that any reasonably possible

change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate

carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, management of the Group

determines that there are no impairment of cash generating unit

containing goodwill.
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9. MILEE 19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
EEEN BiikE  RESTE
Development  Technology Licence wE
cost know-how right Total
TET FET TET TET

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
(Hfita) (Hiitp) (Hfitc)

(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
A COST
201651 AR At | January 2016 25,181 220010 14,059 259250
B 5 8% Exchange realignment (1596) (13953) (803) (16,352)
e Additions 9,100 10,669 — 19,769
R2016F 12431 H At 3| December 2016 32,685 216,726 13,256 262,667
[ 5 A% Exchange realignment 2,91 5,193 832 18316
B Additions 9,216 5135 — 14351
R20175 12431 7 At 31 December 2017 44,192 237,054 14,088 295,334
BesEE AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
20165 AR At | January 2016 — [1,142 3726 14,868
LS Exchange realignment — (1,649) (285) (1934)
FRXH Charge for the year — 21,620 3,028 24,648
2016512431 R At 31 December 2016 — 30113 6,469 37,582
B 5 A% Exchange realignment — 3636 440 4076
FRXH Charge for the year — 21387 2236 23623
ERDRERSE Impairment losses recognised — 17,399 — 17,399
R20175 12431 7 At 3| December 2017 — 73535 9,145 82,680
BEE CARRYING VALUES
R2017F12A31 B At 31 December 2017 44,192 163519 4943 212,654
R2016EF 12431 A At 31 December 2016 32,685 185613 6,787 225,085
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LB EEREREEN T SRS

i

PR 5%

EXUIPES 6Z8EF

R E 5%

P

@ ZeBEEIREREEERIDEZA
RASHOFEBHLE BN LI
BEBRFEMA o

b) ZEEEARLIERNEEREE
8 153 4R 2 B 1A 0 A R0 S8 PR E AR Y

AR

© BEBRIBAXHIHRZRHEL

RSB BT -

SUREREMNE - RWARC A BER
NEERBER I DBZENREELE

fir -

AEEEEEREANTFUHBERS
MBI R E
BERIBNEEHEER D EEL
BT H B TS AR 1R BH R R 13.8%(2016
F 5% FTiER - SRAMTETEE
RIER3%(2016%F : 3%) (T EBBES
TSR TIERRR) AR FHENER
KBeRE - FRAEEFENEMEE
BREDERAEEERENNAESR
AR AR BRG DERR
CELBEMNMBARAULRERELRN
MSEROBEITEREHEMEL - &
RRH A& A R
2P TeERRELERRATEKES

ﬁﬁlﬁﬁfﬁiﬁi/mgﬁ E‘J

BERARENZE

L

TEMXBRER(ER) BRALF « 2017 F3§

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The above intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over

the following period:

Development cost 5 years

Technology know-how 6 years - 8 years

Licence right 5 years

Notes:

(@  The amounts represent costs to develop graphene-based cathode
material for batteries and high capacity lithium batteries for the “Energy
Storage and Related Products” segment.

(b)  The amounts represent costs incurred for the technology know-how
for the manufacture of wind turbines for the “Wind Energy Related
Products” segment.

(c)  The amounts represent global positioning system terminal development

licence rights for the "“Telecommunication Business” segment.

For the purpose of impairment testing, technology know-how have
been allocated to the individual cash generating unit of the “Wind

Energy Related Products” segment.

Management of the Group performed impairment review for technology
know-how based on a value in use calculation. The calculation used
discounted cash flow forecast based on financial budget covering a
period of 5 years, which was prepared by using the most recent financial
results with projections approved by management at discount rate of
13.8% (2016: 12.5%) for the “Wind Energy Related Products” segment.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period have been extrapolated using
an estimated constant growth rate of 3% (2016: 3%) which does not
exceed the average growth rate for the relevant markets. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation
of future cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the cash generating unit’s historical
performance, management's strategic plans and expectations for the
market development. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate

carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
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REZE2017F1N2A3IBIEEE A&
BEEEBETHRIIMARERRESRE
17,399,000 C(2016F : £) -

BE2017F 12731 AILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, management of the Group
determines that impairment losses of HK$17,399,000 (2016: nil) are

recognised in respect of the technology know-how.

REEATZER 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
KREBRBENRZIEEFHBLT : Details of the Group's investments in associates are as follows:
2017 2016
FET T
HK$’000 HK$000
ELEMRE 2K Cost of unlisted investments 422,427 416,592
BE 5 SR Exchange realignment 27,108 3,353
e B R ERREMRERX Share of post-acquisition loss and
(MR B KR B R ARE R F]) other comprehensive expense, net of
dividend received and unrealised profit (101,267) (66,680)
348,268 353,265

R2017F12A318 ELEMBERAE
BLIE W N R E A 2 T 681,0008
JE(20164F : 681,000 7T ) ° 20174
2A31 8 AEERBEARBEEER
MBEHRBELRERENE  BE

BEBEEREIREF 13,511,000 T
(20164 : 12,626,000587T) °

Included in the cost of unlisted investments as at 31 December
2017 is goodwill of HK$681,000 (2016: HK$681,000) arising on the

acquisition of associates. As at 31 December 2017, unrealised profit of

HK$13,511,000 (2016: HK$12,626,000) arising on the sales of goods

by the Group to associates which are recognised as property, plant and

equipment by the associates at the end of reporting period.
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20. REEATIZ2HER »)

EXBEATZHMBEHME

BERASBEEARHENR ZMBENY
ZENMT - LTHBERBZE 258
ERAMBIRER(REDEREREER

WEFARZE® -

BERRARARDENZSGAVBR

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material

associate is set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these

KA o consolidated financial statements.
IHEERNRESERAT(IEE Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
&) Longyuan”)
2017 2016
FET FEr
HK$’000 HK$000
MENVEE Current assets 904,602 872,382
EREEE Non-current assets 783,891 807,412
mENBE Current liabilities (510,288) (574/424)
ERBERE Non-current liabilities (717,781) (671,458)
BHE2017F HBZE0I6F
1231 8L 2 A31HIE
FE FE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
Wz Revenue 138,262 145,279
FREN R Profit and total comprehensive
PEMALERE income for the year 14,993 21,991
FREWOIEFHRER Dividends received from
P S Jiangsu Longyuan during the year 5,171 2,962

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#
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20. REEATIZ2HER »)

EXBEATZMBANNE (&)

IHERENIBREFROA(NIHRE
R (E)

LM B ER B EBREGA R BRERF
ERPAIN AgNIL Fis ZEEE{EHE-E
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates
(Continued)

Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Longyuan”) (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

2017 2016

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

TEERCEETHE Net assets of Jiangsu Longyuan 460,424 433912
REBNIHER Proportion of the Group’s ownership

rEEERZBDL interest in Jiangsu Longyuan 25% 25%

AEBRIEHERERSZ Carrying amount of the Group'’s
RHEE interest in Jiangsu Longyuan 115,106 108,478

EEREX ZEE AT EREH

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

material
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
AEESEFNER The Group's share of loss for the year (31,602) (32,032)
AEERNZFHE AR Aggregate carrying amount of
R BEREE the Group's interests in these associates 233,162 244,787

P2017FER206F2A318H A&EH
TEBARNEZFEBRHIINME42 -

Details of the principal associates of the Group as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are set out in note 42.

Annual Report 2017 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

173



174

,»m 7f ﬁi#ﬁ% Bﬁ

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 20179 12531 HitF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2017

21. REELEZHER

AEBERNGELEZREFENT

21.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are as follows:

2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
REEREZIELMREMA Cost of unlisted investments
R U B AR S in joint ventures, net of
pre-acquisition dividend 1,624,311 1,624,311
BE S B Exchange realignment 169,114 85,742
PGB ER - HIRARE Share of post-acquisition profits,
net of dividend 51,759 43,191
1,845,184 1,753,244
B BHERZREEE Less: Impairment loss recognised (652,900) (652,900)
1,192,284 1,100,344

FEEMERERABIE2007FREKE S
& W E 4 2 72 703,308,000% 7T

(20164 : 703,308,000/ 7T) °

EXGERRZMBERME

BARTGEEERALLEZHBENS
REIINT - WTHBEHBES
EhEMBMR(RETEREREER

REIR S -

RECERARDINZFEA BT

E YN

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#

Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill of
HK$703,308,000 (2016: HK$703,308,000) arising on the acquisition of

joint ventures arose in 2007.

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material joint
venture, is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the joint venture's financial statements

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

(Continued)

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,

A(EEED Ltd. (“Delphi”)
2017 2016
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
MENVEE Current assets 1,554,007 1,338,077
FREEE Non-current assets 401,331 358,040
nBEE Current liabilities (1,196,402) (1,047272)
U ILEERAERENTEE The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following;
2017 2016
FET THET
HK$’000 HK$000
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 132,262 51,636
mBERAE Current financial liabilities
(TBREZREM (excluding trade and other
FET R R ) payables and provisions) 202,175 324,269
BE20175F BE20I6F
12A31H 12A31H
LFEE IHFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Wz Revenue 2,924,615 2,964,608
FRENRZEBARE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 372,451 346,204
FABKRERRRE Dividends received from Delphi
during the year 157,559 160,388
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21. REELEZER ») 21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
BEASECEZUBEHEE (&) Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
(Continued)
THEEHEEEREIREERAERLD Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,
B EEED (&) Ltd. (“Delphi’’) (Continued)
FIERGENBENTEE The above profit for the year include the following:
2017 2016
FET TET
HKS$’000 HK$000
& R Depreciation and amortisation 35,627 32,579
FEHA Interest income 193 153
FBRX Interest expense 4,682 3,803
g il 2 Income tax expenses 64,328 58902
LB AR EENG AR BRES Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
RN EBERES EEEYE carrying amount of the interest in Delphi recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:
2017 2016
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
ERECEERE Net assets of Delphi 758,936 648,845
AEERNERRE Proportion of the Group's
rEEERZAD ownership interest in Delphi 49% 49%
BE Goodwill 603,184 563,669
RIREBRETT AT E Effect of fair value adjustment
HEzZE at acquisition 177,588 182,903
AEBERERREERZ Carrying amount of the Group's
REE interest in Delphi 1,152,651 1,064,506

176 FEMXERER(ER) BRAT ¢ 2017 FH
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m%%ﬁ%Z*ﬁﬁ (4&) 21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
EERNEARZ B OEELSE Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not

individually material

2017 2016
FET TET
HKS$’000 HK$000
AEB D EFRE The Group's share of profit for the year 1,108 1,849
M0I7ER0I6EFE12A3I R AE Details of the principal joint ventures of the Group at 31 December
TESEDEZFERBRINME - 2017 and 2016 are set out in note 42.
Tt 18 22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
2017 2016
FET TET
HKS$’000 HK$000
I LR - REARET (B EE) Unlisted shares, at cost (note) 5,144 4,807
W B AR AR RES S BAAT Note: The investment is measured at cost less impairment as the directors of
EERAATATETELNE - the Company are of the opinion that the fair value cannot be measured
reliably.
oy 23. INVENTORIES
2017 2016
FE7 FHT
HK$’000 HK$000
PR Raw materials 34,131 62,524
R Work-in-progress 41,041 28995
BUK Finished goods 88,354 125,001
163,526 216,520
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24. BE R EMhEK = 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

ZEOREMERFBEEE HEK
F1,612,727,0008 T(2016%F :
1,556,852000/8 7T ) + B MK REEE
149,141,000/ JC(20164F : 65,247,000
BIL) 2 2017F 1231 B2 B B EMK
BELDERE FEREEERTE=
7 H)JE U E R £ 413,267,000 7L.(2016
F 14389500008 L) - BEHB NI E
5&(20%@ | Z5F ) ERPERE
EE S H 4115280008 L2016 4F :

388,555,000 % 7T ) B IR & BiR AR — 14
®E - ERHEBEFIRUTLES  £&
EREEERATEP TEBNEAK
EEH WTEFHEATHERIESR
FREESE—FALEE - RIEHK
BEZZHH(ESKEERAREE)
SR B S REWH(INREE) 2Rk

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables of
HK$1,612,727,000 (2016: HK$1,556,852,000), net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$149,141,000 (2016: HK$65,247,000). The
amount of trade receivables at 31 December 2017 included retention
receivables for the sales of wind turbines and energy storage and related
products to third parties of HK$413,267,000 (2016: HK$438,950,000).
The balances will be settled upon the completion of warranty period
of | to 5 years (2016: | to 5 years), of which HK$411,528,000 (2016:
HK$388,555,000) will be settled after one year from the end of the
reporting period. For the remaining balances of trade receivables,
the Group allows credit periods for not more than six months to
its customers for sales of goods. At the discretion of the executive
directors, several major customers were allowed to settle their balances
beyond the credit terms up to one year. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables, net of allowances, presented based on the
invoice dates at the end of the reporting period, which approximated

the respective revenue recognition dates:

T
2017 2016
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
308A Within 30 days 149,431 674,711
31E90H Between 31 - 90 days 7,804 102,384
91 Z2180H Between 91 - 180 days 2917 5,889
181 2£365H Between 181 - 365 days 712 173,051
HR—F Over | year 1,451,863 600,817
w5 Total 1,612,727 1,556,852

178 TEMXESREAR(ER) SRAF ¢ 2017 £5§
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24. ESREMEKT =) 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
NEBE S ENSELAITAEEE Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors
1,070,359,000 7 71:(20|6¢ : 185,429,000 with aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,070,359,000 (2016:
BIT)REUERR - REREHREBE HK$185,429,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting period
MAEBEW A REBEEBELEE - & for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The overdue
EEFHENCalists AEET X balances are reviewed regularly by management. The Group does
R EERE AT KBS HEREK not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of these
A2 FHRRER—F - receivables is over one year.

E@EERBEYE S ENZERN Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:
T
2017 2016
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
aE Overdue by:
0£90H Between O - 90 days 3,420 33,589
9IEI180H Between 91 - 180 days 209 16,589
i@ 180 H Over 180 days 1,066,730 135251
s Total 1,070,359 185429
KNEE e AFFEE 3658 REKR The Group will normally recognise full allowance for all receivables
B HBE  BEEZBEBALH overdue 365 days because historical experiences is such that receivables
BEA36S B R E M Z— R ESE R B 0 that are past due 365 days are generally not recoverable, except for
YOIBEERNEBERFRECESH I ETE some major customers with longer credit terms at the discretion of the
EEERI) o executive directors.
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BHREMEKR =)

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

REEBEZHOT - Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
FEER Balance at beginning of the year 65,247 66,164
BE 5, S B Exchange realignment 4,473 917)
RIELE—RMBLR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (14,498) —

FLE 5 YRR Impairment losses recognised

HEER in respect of trade receivables 93,919 —
FRRAERR Balance at end of the year 149,141 65,247

REBBESIEASEGCEL RRF
PE AR E Y EE AL S ERRER
SRR - AKBEY EH % FHEHRET
BEMERR

RERERNFEFH  AEE2HTE
SHEHEKMeTHETRP2(EEE
ERREEFPZEERE -BTEFPZ
REL2EZRTLELBETHR
rEBEERREEREZEERE
34%(20165F : 88% )8 5 FE WAL A Hf
JMERE ©

K E B R07F12A318 2 &£ b
BEFELERPEREFE2ES
113,139,0007% 7L(2016%F : 126,211,000
BT ) A U [ 38 A $9,452,0007 JT
(20164 1 1047600087C) BEHE 5
US4 E 2 R 1,077,506,00078
TL(20164F : 1,383,454000 TC) A K &
AREN—HeebERELEECELEE
71,180,000 T (2016 F : £&) -

HEWI7TENANBIEFEE  A£E
FTERKEE ZRKE—F(2016F :
180 B ) AR ©

TEMXBRER(ER) BRALF « 2017 F3§

The balance of the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables which have been overdue 365 days or/
and have no material transactions with the Group during the year. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group's executive directors
and marketing team would assess the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed regularly with reference to past settlement history. 34% (2016
88%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

have the best credit history managed by the Group's credit team.

Included in the Group's other receivables at 31 December 2017 are
deposits for purchase of inventories in the PRC of HK$ 113,139,000
(2016: HK$126,211,000), VAT recoverable of HK$9,452,000 (2016:
HK$10,476,000), bills receivables of HK$1,077,506,000 (2016:
HK$1,383,454,000) in relation to the settlement of trade receivables
and bills receivables of HK$71,180,000 (2016: nil) in relation to the

settlement of dividend receivable from a joint venture.

All bills receivables of the Group are aged within one year for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 180 days).
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25. FEWFEfTER 2 AT

BhEEAFARBEE S ERK
264968,000/8 TL(2016%4F : 496,188,000
BIT) - B R R B 536,045,000 7T
(016F : &) - BEHRUFAEHR -
RERGRHERR(EERRANEERA
Em)BISOAEESR - AR FRAR AL
E—FHMBE AR - 8326760008 T
(20|6¢ D) BRI FE U E DA
R BEBRATHEELENER
hz B EF | E435%(20165F + & )&
B BAEABRKARREKRERER -
4 45 £ 5,823,000% JL(2016 4 2,753,000
;‘%7’5)’7?§E&3%¢W?ﬁ7‘%ﬁ%—ﬁﬁw%
™R ER AR B A R USRS = A B F
2,847,000 7L (2016 5F « &) - %Zi&ﬂﬁ%,%a
BARER  BESRREKEE-

ERBEARARBEEIEAR

60,694,000 7T(2016 4 : 308,899,000
JT)  ZERBEAEER - 2B RHE 365
BEEH - F k452450008 (2016
F 7380008 0) BEEF - BB RIR

- m
EXREE -

AN REBEAEENEBENTRER
STUMBBERBE  BRBEARN
212,853,000 7T (20164 « T ) HEEN B
— B N BRI S o

BE2017F 12731 AILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES

Included in the amounts due from associates are trade receivables
of HK$264,968,000 (2016: HK$496,188,000), net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$36,045,000 (2016: nil). The amount is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and has credit periods for 180 days for sales of
goods mainly wind energy related products. Balances of HK$32,676,000
(2016: nil), which are grouped and presented under amounts due
from associates as a result of deemed disposal of a subsidiary during
the year, are loans advanced to an associate that bear fixed interest
and of 4.35% (2016: nil) per annum. The amount is unsecured and
repayable on demand. The remaining balances of HK$5,823,000 (201 6é:
HK$2,753,000), including HK$2,847,000 (2016: nil) which are grouped
and presented under amounts due from associates as a result of
deemed disposal of a subsidiary during the year, are unsecured, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Included in the amounts due to associates are trade payables of
HK$60,694,000 (2016: HK$308,899,000). The amount is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and has credit period of 365 days. The remaining
balances of HK$245,000 (2016: HK$738,000) are unsecured, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

In addition, an amount of HK$212,853,000 (2016: nil) due from an
associate was offset with the balance due to another associate pursuant
to the debt transfer arrangement entered into between the Group and

its associates during the year.
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26. FEWFEFIEE ¥R

E k]

ZEHEBEOEREREEDLER
106,468,000/ TL(20164F : 96,846,000
Br) EPBREERTEEE
66,993,000 JC(2016%F : 62,604,000
7)) B EEF A E435%2016F ¢
435%) 5T B BAMBER AELE
B R 7R £ B 5 37 AR [ 8 5 46,040,000 78
TE(20164F 451100005 7T ) 2 + 41 &
1 F o 8 3947500078 JL(2016%F
342420008 L) 2 B BB ERNR
SEMNI7FNAIBZ ERERK
66,993,000 JT(2016%F : 62,604,000
T K H b & #22,012,000 L2016
% 1205700008 7T ) ET L ik - RE K
BHEUNERZEECEZTHREFR
ETHEMBENMERERRE - AQF
EERAEREECERBTENRE
HRE+ZEARBE  BitZIED
HEERBEE -

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT

VENTURES

Non-current balance

Included in the balances is an amount due from a joint venture of
HK$ 106,468,000 (2016: HK$96,846,000), of which loans advanced to
the joint venture amounted to HK$66,993,000 (2016: HK$62,604,000)
that bear fixed interest rate at 4.35% (2016: 4.35%) per annum. The
joint venture has pledged its land and buildings with a carrying amount
of HK$46,040,000 (2016: HK$45,110,000) to the Group to secure the
loan. The remaining amount of HK$39,475,000 (2016: HK$34,242,000)
is non-interest bearing. The joint venture has entered into arrangements
with the Group in connection with the above loans of HK$66,993,000
(2016: HK$62,604,000) and other balance of HK$22,012,000 (2016:
HK$20,570,000) as at 31 December 2017 that these amounts shall be
repaid from the proceeds upon the realisation of the land and buildings
and certain other assets of that joint venture. The directors of the
Company considered that the amount due from the joint venture will
not be settled within twelve months from the end of the reporting

period, therefore classified as non-current asset.
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ZEERBREER—BEE0ER
24,471,000 JT(2016 % : 26,459,000 7%
) ERBAFELHERK T —ME
ELENERERS  BRAFHRAR
B—FNEE - T4 #2678,00078 T
(016F: B)REER 28 X3
CREFEREISOAEESENE SR
WSk o Tl 8% 45 #247,00078 L2016 F -
450008 7T) AEER R EREERE
;ﬁ °
EREECERBREEZIEMNK
3,602,000 7L(20164F : ) ° ZHIEA
B 2B RASHEES - ®f
& $2428,0007% JC(20164 = 277,000
T RERE - RERREKEE -

EFPRITER RITER

B & 1 R 17 77 R H2030%(20164F ¢
035%) 2 BlE FHF X8 - BRI
7 3X63,0007 7C(2016%F © 2,233,000
T EEMEETRABREZER - B8R
2018F3R8(2016F : 2017F378 )& &
HEEERER  UHBARBEE -

iR 1T & 82 1R00I%ZE 1.25%(2016 % ¢
0.01% % 1.25%) 2 BITHIHFEREFT B -

RIUTBHREETIANEHERYEER
ONEHEHER A -
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

Current balance

Included in the balances is an amount due from a joint venture of
HK$24,471,000 (2016: HK$26,459,000), which represents the retention
receivables for the sales of wind turbines to a joint venture that took
place in prior years which shall be settled within one year from the end
of the reporting period. Balances of HK$ 678,000 (2016: nil) are trade
receivables which are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have credit
periods for 180 days for sales of wind energy products. The remaining
balances of HK$47,000 (2016: HK$45,000) are unsecured, non-interest

bearing and repayable on demand.

Included in the amounts due to joint ventures are trade payables of
HK$3,602,000 (2016: nil). The amount is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and has credit period of 365 days. The remaining balances of
HK$428,000 (2016: HK$277,000) are unsecured, non-interest bearing

and repayable on demand.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES

The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 0.30% (2016:
0.35%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits, amounting to
HK$63,000 (2016: HK$2,233,000), have been pledged to secure certain
bank facilities. It will be released in March 2018 (2016: March 2017)
upon the settlement of the related borrowings and are therefore

classified as current assets.

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which range from
0.01% to 1.25% (2016: 0.01% to 1.25%) per annum.

Included in bank balances are the following amounts denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to which they

are related.
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27.

28.

EIPRITER RITER

27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK

() BALANCES (Continued)
2017 2016
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
BT HK$ 19,373 46,906
B RHMER 28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

ESREMENZOEESREN
1,237,354,0008 T(2016%F :
1290,739,0008 7T) « AEEBE L HE
EHE30HEWENEESR - EHEM
TR EBRZEZAH 2R TN
T

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
HK$1,237,354,000 (2016: HK$1,290,739,000). The Group normally
receives credit period for 30 to 90 days from its suppliers. The following
is an aged analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at the end of
the reporting period:

2017 2016

FET TET

HK$’000 HK$000

30AR Within 30 days 218,321 574,256
31E£90H Between 31 - 90 days 15,368 180,869
91 £ 180H Between 91 - 180 days 227,626 129,831
181 £365H Between 181 - 365 days 163,222 130,226
HiE—F Over | year 612,817 275,557
1,237,354 1,290,739

R2I7F 128318 AEB 2 EME
FHBEREE P FIF139380007% 7T
(20165 1 12,779,000/ 70 ) ~ JE 1 2 I&
355,771,0007 JL(20164F : 526,062,000 75
7o) WEEM B 2 R EA R E 13,021,000
BIL(20165 1 12,16800057T) °

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#

Included in the Group's other payables at 31 December 2017
are receipt in advance from customers of HK$13,938,000
(2016: HK$12,779,000), bills payable of HK$355,771,000 (2016:
HK$526,062,000) and consideration payable for acquisition of a
subsidiary of HK$13,021,000 (2016: HK$12,168,000).
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29. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

At 31 December 2017, government grants of HK$31,000,000 (2016:
HK$29,778,000) represent subsidies granted by the PRC government
authorities for the purpose of financing the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment. The amount will be recognised in profit or loss
over 5 to 50 years according to the useful lives of the relevant land and

buildings (included in property, plant and equipment).

2017 2016

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

REGMAME - Analysed for reporting purpose as:

ERFEE Non-current liabilities 30,225 28,939

nERE Current liabilities 775 839

31,000 29,778

30. IRIERHE 30. WARRANTY PROVISION

RIEREBIEEERERNEBNAMISE Warranty provision represents the present value of the directors’
B RIEEE 8T M B x best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that will be

R ER REGTZIRE -

required under the Group's obligations for warranties of local sales of

wind turbines.

R EEE Movement in the warranty provision:

2017 2016

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FH 2 48 Balance at beginning of the year 136,731 106,258
[E i % Exchange realignment 9,585 (6,737)
RETIEE Additional provisions recognised 17,023 46,780
BAEE Utilisation of provision (24,248) (9,570)

FRZ &R Balance at end of the year 139,091 136,731

185
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3. & 31. BORROWINGS
2017 2016
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
RERITER (M) Short-term bank loans (note a) 315,519 378,869
Hi sz e R (Mt a) Short-term other loans (note a) 647,199 332,025
REREHRREE S (HzEb) Short-term portion of shareholder's loans
(note b) 299,075 145,331
RERERREHH (HzEb) Long-term portion of shareholder's loans
(note b) 478,521 726,655
Hi REBER (M) Long-term other loans (note c) 9,570 19,005
1,749,884 1,601,885
B BRI E B &R —F R Less: Amount due within one year
ZHE under current liabilities (1,261,793) (856,225)
—FREE 7 F0R Amount due after one year 488,091 745,660
AEBREEZAHBERMT* The maturity of the Group's borrowings
is as follows™:
—FR Within one year 1,261,793 856,225
—FEMF Between one to two years —_ 279,483
MEEREF Between two to five years 488,091 466,177
1,749,884 1,601,885
* Based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

VE o

* HERBEMEERABREAR
%

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#
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R2017F 12831 B 2 FIE 8 & K 47
R 17 B $315519,0005 7L(2016 4
378,869,000 7T ) ©

B 3K155,519,0007% o8k A R 130,000,000

JE(20164F ¢ 145,331,00078 T AR
130,000,000 7T ) 1z [El & 4F F| % 4.35% 5T
B(2016%F :479%) °

B 3X160000,0007 7T(2016 4 : 200000000
IR EBIRTTRI R B 5 MEFEF =
1.4% 2 FENFIE G B.(2016 F « HBIR
FTRIZEREN 1.65% 2 2.3%) °

R2016F 12 431 B+ B 533,538,000
BTk A R 30,000,000 TERFPBEE R
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E435%)5T 8 °
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BRI ANRAEELERNES -

A
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AMARBEEBDEGSER
647,199,000 7T 5k A R # 541,000,000
Je(2016 4 : 332,025,000% 7T 3k A &
#297,000,0007T) © %5 HIA B EE R
RENESFER - RETEFFEA13%
(201645 = 4.13%):t 8 -

R2017F 128318+ B 30155519,000
BTk A R 130,000,000 7T ~ 263,186,000
78 7T 3k A R #5220,000000 7T + 28711,000
B TL A R 24,000,000 7T 2 199,783,000
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017F3ARW0I7FNAEE - U E
SEER2017FREHEE -
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31. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

@

The amount at 31 December 2017 represents unsecured bank loans of
HK$315,519,000 (2016: HK$378,869,000).

Loan of HK$155,519,000 or RMB 130,000,000 (2016: HK$ 145,331,000
or RMB130,000,000) bears fixed-rate interest at 4.35% (2016: 4.79%)
per annum.

Loan of HK$160,000,000 (2016: HK$200,000,000) bears floating-rate
interest ranging from Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered rate (“HIBOR") plus
4% (2016: HIBOR plus 1.65% to 2.3%) per annum.

Loan of HK$33,538,000 or RMB30,000,000 at 31 December 2016 bore
floating-rate interest at PRC Lending Prime Rate plus 0.05% that was
4.35% per annum.

The loans are repayable within one year (2016: within one year) and are
used to finance the operations of the Group.

The Group also obtained loans in current year from Aerospace Science
and Technology Finance Co., Ltd. ("ASTF"), a fellow subsidiary of
CALT, amounting to HK$647,199,000 or RMB541,000,000 (2016:
HK$332,025,000 or RMB297,000,000). The amounts are unsecured and
are guaranteed by CALT, bear fixed-rate interest at 4.13% (2016: 4.13%)
per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, loans of HK$ 155,519,000 or RMB 130,000,000,
HK$263,186,000 or RMB220,000,000, HK$28,711,000 or
RMB24,000,000 and HK$199,783,000 or RMBI167,000,000 are repayable
in March 2018, September 2018, October 2018 and November 2018,

respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, loans of HK$ 145,331,000 or RMBI30,000,000
and HK$186,694,000 or RMB 167,000,000 were repayable in March
2017 and December 2017 respectively. The above amounts were fully
repaid in 2017.
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31. & 2

BisE « (&)

(b)

FHBERNEIRB BT ME B
DAMARB R HEEAZEAN) B
7 ERA 7775960008 T3k A R
650,000,000 7T.(2016 4F : 871,986,000
L AR 780,000,000 70)

ZAEREER  RETEFNE488%
ZE5.0%(20164F 1 4.88%=5.0%) &
B o B 302990750008 T E A R ¥
250,000,000 75 (2016 4F : 279,483,000
7B 7L 8 A R #250,0000007T ) K&
478,521,000 7T 3 A R 400,000,000
TE(20165F 1 447,172,000 L 8k A B
# 400,000,000 7T ) 7 Al 78 A 2018 F 3
AR2021F4REE - R2016F12A8
31 B2 B3K145331,000% T3k A RIE
130,000,000 T(BR2017F7 A EE)
BR 2017 FREER -

ZARIEEBIE QA FEEGERE
24 2 B 30957000058 T8 A R #
8,000,000 76 (2016 %F : 19,005,000 7
ek AR 17,0000007T) © X IE A
EIKA - RPBEARRITEERNERN
0915 B14.28%(2016%F : 4.28%) H) )%
BER KRS RAR200F11AE
HEE- R016FNAIBNGHE
10,061,000 4 7T 2k A R % 9,000,000 7T E.
REZE2017F12A3I BEFERRER
BiE -
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31. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The amounts represent loans advanced from CALT through
CASC's subsidiary, ASTF as the trustee in aggregate amounting to
HK$777,596,000 or RMB650,000,000 (2016: HK$871,986,000 or
RMB780,000,000).

The amounts are unsecured, bear fixed-rate interest ranging from 4.88%
to 5.0% (2016: 4.88% to 5.0%) per annum. Loans of HK$299,075,000
or RMB250,000,000 (2016: HK$279,483,000 or RMB250,000,000)
and HK$478,521,000 or RMB400,000,000 (2016: HK$447,172,000
or RMB400,000,000) are repayable in March 2018 and April 2021
respectively. Loans of HK$145,331,000 or RMB130,000,000 as at 3|
December 2016 (which were repayable in July 2017) were fully repaid in
2017.

The amount represents a loan of HK$9,570,000 or RMB8,000,000 (2016:
HK$19,005,000 or RMB17,000,000) advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary. The amount is unsecured, bears floating-rate
interest at 0.9 times of the People’s Bank of China Benchmark interest
rate that is 4.28% (2016: 4.28%) per annum and is repayable in full in
November 2020. An amount of HK$10,061,000 or RMB9,000,000 at 3|
December 2016 was early repaid during the year ended 31 December
2017.
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32. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE

AEBECREREHERE—H A E The Group has one of its motor vehicles held under finance lease. The
FHE4E - HEHAEREHRB X lease terms is 4 years. Interest rate underlying the obligation under
BEABEI%  HERIGEEES finance lease is fixed at 2.5% per annum. The lease has purchase options
o upon expiring of the lease.
BEEE BEHEHRE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
2017 2016 2017 2016
FET FET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
HEMERNE Amounts payable under finance lease
—&R Within one year 23 133 22 130

BR-FETHNME

In more than one year but not

more than two years - 23 - 22

23 156 22 152

B RREEER Less: Future finance charges ) @4 TEANA  TERANA
ERERE Present value of lease obligation 22 152 22 152

B —EREERZHE
(R RBBETIIR)

Less: Amount due for settlement

within one year

(shown under current liabilities) (22) (130)
—FREERNFE Amount due for settlement after

one year - 22
REBREREAENLRANEE The Group's obligation under the finance lease is secured by the lessor's
BEFAEER - charge over the leased asset.
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EEHIE 33. DEFERRED TAXATION

RENGEAMBRRARME - ETELT
MREERABE THIE - U TRME
ISR RIERIBAEER DT -

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

2017 2016

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$000

ERRIBEEE Deferred tax assets 1,784 637
EIERIAS A Deferred tax liabilties (22,237) (20312)
(20,453) (18675)

RAFER E-—FEEHERZENERL
REAE(BRE)REBEDHNT

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

Bff () PN

REME R TEA Hit
Revaluation Undistributed (B¥=E)
of investment profits of Others @t
properties  subsidiaries (note) Total
T T TR TET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
R2016F1 AR At | January 2016 8,305 11,426 (1,759) 17972
[ SR Exchange adjustments (594) (714) 109 (1,199)
Bai Charge to profit or loss 1,578 480 13 2,071
B Xtz BRI PRC withholding tax paid — (169) — (169)
R2016F12H31R At 31 December 2016 9,289 11,023 (1,637) 18,675
R IEE:S Exchange adjustments 668 774 (207) 1,235
Bakx Charge to profit or loss 519 716 60 1,295
B¥ftZHEBMB  PRC withholding tax paid - (752) - (752)
R2017F12H31R At 31 December 2017 10,476 11,761 (1,784) 20,453

Wi RFVRT R RBRELREREE
HZREEE -

190 TEMXESREAR(ER) SRAF ¢ 2017 £5§

Note: The amount mainly represents temporary differences arising on
government grants and warranty provision.
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BE - HIAK 8 188,189,000 L2016
1245430008 L) E R F R FH o
K e 3R i T8 E5 18 123,949,000 7T (2016
2 118,175,000 7T ) Al R EAAE S - H
BABRHEBIBEA2018FE200F
(2016%F : B20I7F 22021 F)AFN
ZIH -

RBRBEMEMENE - B20085 | A
| B8 3t B T B 2 ) T R B ) B R
MR EERBKENS - AEBERZS
B T 2 B R 7 R s 6 B B 2 BB AT IR
IEEFR A RS 11,761,000 702016 4F ¢
11,023,000/ 7T ) o 3 % 5k B KT B 2
7K 7 K i F B 5 2 847,036,000 7% 7T
(20164 : 51,508,000/ 7T ) N &R & BT 75
BRPELBEERERE  THALE
BRI R R R 2 RIS - MR R
EBEAKAT R A R AR AR -
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group has estimated unused tax losses of
approximately HK$471,405,000 (2016: HK$389,237,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses during the year due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. During the year, tax losses of HK$188,189,000
(2016: HK$124,543,000) were expired. Included in unrecognised tax
losses are losses of HK$123,949,000 (2016: HK$118,175,000) that may
be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining unrecognised tax losses
will expire within five years from 2018 to 2022 (2016: from 2017 to
2021).

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from |
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation of HK$ 11,761,000 (2016:
HK$11,023,000) has been provided in respect of temporary differences
attributable to those undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$47,036,000 (2016: HK$51,508,000) as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

A 34. SHARE CAPITAL
RAEE -]
Number of Amount
shares FET
HK$000
HREEO.I0B T E@mAik Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
ETE Authorised:
R20165F 1 A1 H 20165 At | January 2016, 31 December 2016 and
12A31BR2017F 128318 31 December 2017 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
BEITRAR Issued and fully paid:
R2016F1A1H - At | January 2016, 31 December 2016 and
016F12A31BR 31 December 2017
2017512831 H 4,368,995,668 436,900
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35. EEHERIE
AEEEBREA

RBEMR  AEBRETAIRELE
MEMmEMNARLBREFHEEEN

35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future minimum

lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases in

T respect of land and buildings as set out below:
2017 2016
FET TET
HKS$’000 HK$000
—FR Within one year 7,231 7,110
E_FEZNF (PHEEEWNTE) In the second to fifth year inclusive 1,940 3,265
hFE& After five years - 764
9,171 12,139
MY — BB TEEL BB —FEE=4(2016 Leases are generally negotiated for an average term of one to three
. —FZE=F) HASRBEHALR years (2016: one to three years) and rentals are fixed for the lease
g period.
FEEEEHEAA The Group as lessor
NREEIFR  AEFRFABITHHN AR At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
SEALMT : tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
—FR Within one year 7,019 6,578
F_FEFLF(BHEEEMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 24,255 24,865
TFk After five years 51,919 53,176
83,193 84,619
sy REABARKI S I6E The properties held have committed tenants for the next one to

(0165 : | E|745E) °

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#

sixteen years (2016: one to seventeen years).
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs

to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required

contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$12,728,000 (2016:
HK$11,751,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by

the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concem while maximising the retumn to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 31 and obligation under a finance
lease disclosed in note 32, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and accumulated losses.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
The management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated

with each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure.
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38.

&RMTIR

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SR T BRI Categories of financial instruments
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
CRVEE Financial assets
BRI EUGR Loans and receivables
(BREReLREEEY) (including cash and cash equivalents) 3,316,599 3,828,100
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments 5,144 4807
3,321,743 3,832,907
TRBE Financial liabilities
B AR Amortised cost 3,440,174 3,763,650

SREREEEERBUR

AEEZIESRHTIABREAIMHIEER
§~%%&E@EW%~EW/E#”
ERAR - Bl EREERER
BERRIER  SOLHBLERS ~%§5%
LEMERSTRER  EHAZEEHT
A7HBEERSHEAEE - BHEZSE
SRMIAZEREKBEZZRB ZER
HNTX -

CRMIAUAEE AR EEEZEHE
Z-EREEREREZFHERR - U
RS AREGEE i o NEE A
XZEERR - mERARERESE SR
el E IR REtE R < A s o

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, trade and other receivables, amounts due from/to
associates, amounts due from/to joint ventures, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables and borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on

how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group's daily
operations. The management manages and monitors the exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no change to the Group's exposure to credit
risk, market risk and liquidity risk or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31 December
2017 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has formulated a credit policy and delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management considers recent
trade relationships, financial background and creditability of individual
trade debtors including historical settlement records such as default or
delay in payments, subsequent settlement and ageing analysis of trade
receivables in determining the allowance for doubtful debts and ensures
that adequate allowance for doubtful debts are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced. The Group has concentration
of credit risk as 7% (2016: 18%) and 60% (2016: 52%) of the total
trade receivables due from the Group's largest debtor and the five

largest debtor respectively.

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 81% (201 6:
79%) of the total amounts due from joint ventures is due from one joint
venture and 72% (2016: 87%) of total amounts due from associates is
due from one associate. The Group monitors the exposure to credit in
respect of the amounts due from associates and joint ventures through
exercising influence or control over their financial and operating policy

decisions and reviewing their financial position on a regular basis.

The credit risk for bank deposits is considered minimal as such amounts

are placed in banks with high credit ratings.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances for 2017 and 2016 (note 27 for details) and
variable-rate bank borrowings for 2017 and 2016 (note 31 for details).
The management continuously monitors interest rate fluctuation and
will consider further hedging interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank balances for 2017 and 2016 (note 27 for details), fixed-
rate borrowings for 2017 and 2016 (note 31 for details), amount due
from an associate that bears fixed interest rate for 2017 (note 25 for
details) and amount due from a joint venture that bears fixed interest
rate for 2017 and 2016 (note 26 for details). The management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider repaying the fixed-rate bank

borrowings when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of People’s Bank of China benchmark interest rate and
HIBOR.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate borrowings at the end of the
reporting period and the stipulated changes taking place at the beginning
of the year and held constant throughout the year.

If the interest rates on variable-rate borrowings have been [0 basis
points (2016: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's post-tax loss would have increased/
decreased by approximately HK$127,000 (2016: post-tax profit would
have decreased/increased by HK$189,000).

Currency risk

The Group has minimal currency exposures as the majority of
transactions and balances were denominated in respective functional
currencies of group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposures should the need arise.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation

of banking facilities and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings from CALT as a significant source of
liquidity. In the opinion of directors, adequate sources of funding are
available to enable the Group to meet in full its financial obligations due

for the foreseeable future and manage its liquidity position.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is

derived from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.



,.\/T\ 7f ﬁ&#ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2017F 12731 AILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

38. £ TH ») 38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
EREREREERBER (£) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
RBESER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
REEZRFIE R % Liquidity and interest risk tables
nETs 783
iz ZERE-% BeniasE
Weighted SH-BF  -E=BA  Imonths -31§ Total EiE
average  HEREXH  Lessthan I3 to [-5 undisconted  Carrying
effective ~ On demand | month months [ year years  cash flows amount

interest rate Tin T T T Tin T Tirn
% HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000

W7E 27
PSR Financial labilties
EAREBENT Trade and other payables - 1,035,861 183,526 88331 167,597 - 1,625,321 1,625,321
ffE-RE Borrowings - fixed rate 454 - - 459,261 668,820 559,741 1,687,849 1,580,314
ffE-%8 Borrowings - floating rate 257 - 160,096 - - 10,805 170,901 169,570
LSEEDEE Amounts due to associates - 00,939 - - - - 60,939 60,939
EftRELER Amounts due to joint ventures - 4030 - - - - 4030 4030
HERERE Obligation under a finance lease 250 - Il 1 - - Pi] n
1,100,830 343,633 097,636 836417 570541 3,549,063 3,440,19%
W6 Jill
285F Financel lebiites
EAREMERH Trade and other peyables - 570,664 180869 574399 55919 - (851851 1851851
fE8-%8 Borrowings - fixed rate 4 - - - 640381 845369 | 483,950 349342
fEE-28 Borrowings - foating rate 1M - - - 138197 034 0571 152583
EfBEATHR Amounts due to associates - 309637 - - - - 309637 309637
EfieetEs Amounts due to joint ventures - m - - - - m m
ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ % Obligetion under a firance lease 250 - Il 0 100 B 15 1%

880578 180880 574411 1404797 867766 3908442 3763802
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

39.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as

follows:

the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and

ask prices respectively; and

the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and

financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their fair values.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES

Other than disclosed in notes 25, 26 and 31, the Group has the

following significant transactions and balances with related companies:

(¥

Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities ultimately controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the PRC government (“‘government-
related entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger
group of companies under CASC which is controlled by the PRC

government.
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39. HEEATZRS &

(%)

() EPEBFFHERE

Bzxs (&)

(a) BPHBEEEZXS

()

R2017F 12831 H
ZIEERENESRE
BEMEHERR
MABEMBHER
XRENBNzZF
(0l6F: Z%5) &
A 777,596,000
BTk AR
650,000,000 7C(2016
F 871,986,000 7T
sk A R # 780,000,000
) BHERAE
B RETEFHX
4.88% % 5.0%(2016
F o 488%E5.0%) &t
B o B 70299,075,000
Bk AR
250,000,000 7T (2016
F 279,483,000 7T
sk A R # 250,000,000
JT ) K&A478521,000
BT % AR E
400,000,000 7£(2016
447,172,000 7T
sk A R # 400,000,000
7T ) 7 Bl A 2018
F3H k202154
H B & R20I6F
2A3I8 2 B &
145,331,000 7T 3k A
R % 130,000,000 7T 7
2017 FEEEE -

BE2017F 12731 AILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(a) Transactions with CASC Group

(1

Included in borrowings as at 31 December 2017
were two (2016: three) loans advanced from CALT
through CASC's subsidiary, ASTF, as the trustee
totalling HK$777,596,000 or RMB650,000,000 (2016:
HK$871,986,000 or RMB780,000,000) which are
unsecured and bear fixed-rate interest ranging from
4.88% to 5.0% (2016: 4.88% to 5.0%) per annum.
Loans of HK$299,075,000 or RMB250,000,000
(2016: HK$279,483,000 or RMB250,000,000)
and HK$478,521,000 or RMB400,000,000 (2016:
HK$447,172,000 or RMB400,000,000) are repayable
in March 2018 and April 2021 respectively. Loans
of HK$ 145,331,000 or RMB130,000,000 as at 3|
December 2016 were fully repaid in 2017.
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39. MR EATZRS &

(%)

() HPEBFERERZXS (4

(a) BEBHEEEZX S

(&)

)

KEB T AE R
ZRZEWEDQAM
AU BESRE
647,199,000 T
sk A R # 541,000,000
T (2016 F :
332,025,000/ T 8k
A B 297,000,000
JT) o AR EE R
KB NS ER
Z[E E F R E413%
(20169 : 4.13%) &t
BRER0ISFEE
(20164 = 78 12017
FEE ) R20l6
FAIBZER
332,025,000 7T 8k A
R # 297,000,000 7 E
2017 EBEEE o

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(a) Transactions with CASC Group (Continued)

o)

The Group also obtained loans from ASTF, a fellow
subsidiary of CALT, amounting to HK$647,199,000
or RMB541,000,000 (2016: HK$332,025,000 or
RMB297,000,000). The amount are unsecured
and are guaranteed by CALT, bear fixed-rate
interest at 4.13% (2016: 4.13%) per annum and are
repayable in 2018 (2016: repayable in 2017). Loans
of HK$332,025,000 or RMB297,000,000 as at 3|
December 2016 were fully paid in 2017.
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39. HEEATZRS &

(%)

() EPEBFFHERE

Bzxs (&)

(b) BERMEBFEEZXS

()

2017F 128318 2
EEREANBAR
FEFERRRM 2
& 309,570,000 7T 3k
A R 8,000,0007T
(20164 : 19,005,000
BTk AR
17,0000007C ) #%
B A EER RS
&) F | % 428%(2016
F:428%) i B
I 78 $2020% 11 A
2 HER K26
FNRAJRZRA
10,061,000 7T 3 A
R # 9,000,000 7T B 7
EHZ2017F12A31H
LEFENRAMEE

BIE2017F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other government entities

(1) Included in borrowings as at 31 December 2017 was
a loan of HK$9,570,000 or RMB8,000,000 (2016:
HK$ 19,005,000 or RMB17,000,000) advanced
from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary.
The amount is unsecured, bears floating-rate
interest at 4.28% (2016: 4.28%) per annum and is
repayable in full in November 2020. An amount of
HK$10,061,000 or RMB9,000,000 at 31 December
2016 was early repaid during the year ended 3|
December 2017.

Annual Report 2017 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

203



204

wm 7f ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 20179 12531 HitF/E
For the year ended 3| December 2017

39. MR EATZRS &

(&)

() HPEBFERERZXS (4

(b) BRUBBEFERZXS

(&)

)

AEE IR H BT
HREREEKT
e ARAIEER
B BASERKESE
ZEBARME © &
EHNEHERYE
BUFE=H AEE
MEETEP RHRE
BHEETEERS
EERR EWRTEY
TENRZERSZ
% B 4 B T AR
ERETEETYE
B o

B REBEEBH
fIHERIE 88 2 $R1T5]
URERG  BERF
= %ﬁ&ﬁ@—ﬁ
RITAME - KEH

ﬁﬁm&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
HREFEREERS

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other government entities
(Continued)

o)

The Group conducts business with other
government-related entities. The directors of the
Company consider those government-related entities
are independent third parties so far as the Group's
business with them are concerned. The Group
also has certain sales and purchases transactions
with certain customers and suppliers in which the
directors are of the opinion that it is impracticable
to ascertain the identity of the counterparties and
accordingly whether the transactions are with other

government-related entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposits placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
banks which are government-related entities. A
majority of its bank deposits and bank borrowings

are with government-related entities.
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39. HEEATZRS &

=)
\//é’:f/

(i) HEMBEEALZXS

(@)

(®)

N

BRI B
o R2HMEES

BREY ENaELE
o E2RMEE26

/NG|

FR-AEESHEBBALY
BARHWMT ¢

BERAES

BE2017F 12731 AILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(ii) Transactions with other related parties

A E R B QBN AR Interest expenses on loans from a

P2 EFRF B
REAEREZMEKA
ERNHHBARARER

TENZFEHIERR

ZEME B
m—EeetEIMNZ

B IR S i

(a)  For amounts due from/to associates, please refer to note
25.
(b)  For amounts due from/to joint ventures, please refer to
note 26.
(c)  During the year, the Group had the following significant
transactions with related parties:
2017 2016
FET TET
HKS$’000 HK$000
Sale of goods to associates —_ 19,044
Sale of goods to a joint venture 2,619 —
Purchase of goods from associates 4,662 269,626
Interest expenses on loans from a
shareholder, CALT 40,668 49,734
fellow subsidiary, ASTF 19,576 5709
Interest income from a joint venture 2,809 3015
Interest expenses on other loan due to a
non-controlling shareholder with
significant influence over a subsidiary 850 1,390
Maintenance service expense paid to
a joint venture 5,281 —

R2017F 128318 A&
Bt MM ARHE B B IR A
] #& 1% 693,855,000 7T
A B #580,000,0007C(2016
F 139127600078 7T ;A
R # 350,000,000 7T ) LA £ &
AEEERZIEEREZE
?Eﬁ o

(@

At 31 December 2017, CALT has given corporate
guarantees amounting to HK$693,855,000 or
RMB580,000,000 (2016: HK$391,276,000 or
RMB350,000,000) to ASTF to secure the credit facilities
granted to the Group.
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39. HEAEALTZRS & 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
(&) BALANCES (Continued)
(i) HEEMEEALZRS (&) (ii) Transactions with other related parties (Continued)

() ETEBEBEABZHM (e)  Compensation of key management personnel
TEERBAEBERELRAA The key management personnel includes solely the
HITESRINTHSE LS executive directors of the Company and the compensation
B BB AT 12 paid to them is disclosed in note 12.

TEEBAE ZEH N E The remuneration of key management is determined
ZEERTEARERTS by the remuneration committee having regard to the
BEEE - performance of individuals and market trends.

40. MEEEZ BRER 40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

TRFNWAEEREEZSH 2 EBEEE - The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
FEERRERFREEH WAL financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
EAZBENEERSRERAKERS arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were,
MERAEBRGESRERERTIER or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
RELBRERECAE - statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
MEHE
EAFE B8 R B
Obligation
Interest under a
payable Borrowings finance lease Total
FET FAET FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
720175 1 A1 A At | January 2017 - 1,601,885 152 1,602,037
BE R Exchange realignment — 98,276 — 98,276
MEHELHE  Financing cash flows (note)

(P 5E) (74,489) 49,723 (130) (24,896)
MBS Interest expenses 74,489 —_ —_ 74,489
20175 At 31 December 2017 —_ 1,749,884 22 1,749,906

12A31H
Wz : RenmEkEsRenEgERTH Note: The cash flows represent the addition/repayment of borrowings,

#EENER BN ERE interest paid and repayment of obligation under a finance lease in the
ERIETHERIE - consolidated statement of cash flows.
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41. HIEEHE—EMBAT

WP EE 0P IR EE - AEBRRIEHE
EMﬁ%"ﬂ?lé*f%?ﬁﬁ%%tﬁ%iﬁﬁﬂ
EmEE -

RERBHEER THERNEEFH

BE2017F 12731 AILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

41. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

As disclosed in note |0, the Group discontinued its REPM Products
operation at the time of deemed disposal of its subsidiary, Jiangsu

Energine.

The net assets of Jiangsu Energine as at the date of deemed disposal are

m : as follows:
FHET
HK$’000
Nx - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 2,049
rE Inventories 14,684
B 5 REM B Trade and other receivables 51,118
AR TR Taxation recoverable 142
RITEHR LIRS Bank balances and cash 3,534
EC VS INE S Trade and other payables (53,739)
BEHEREFH Net assets disposed of 17,788
RIEHESE Loss on deemed disposal:
BHEEEFR Net assets disposed of (17,788)
SRV IR 2 Non-controlling interests 11953
AEEREIHFERREN A TE Fair value of the equity interest in Jiangsu Energine held by
(EBREBE NR 2 iEx) the Group as interest in an associate 5,835
BIEEREIHERNER Loss on deemed disposal of Jiangsu Energine —
BIEHEEENREMLFE - Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal:
HERITERLIE S Bank balances and cash disposed of (3,534)
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42. TEMEAT - BZASR  42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

é%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES
R017E K2016F12A31 B2 KA T Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the
FTEWBAT  HBEATRALNER Company at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
BN
BRITEEREZ
HE/EREE RAgGEZBAL
Nominal value of NG AEBEE
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NRER share capitall held by attributable TEEH
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
2017 2016 2017 2016
% % % %
WEAR
Subsidiaries
ERBEMALRER
Incorporated and operating in Hong Kong;
FRRARRBEERAF 10,0007 100 100 - - DHERRHK
China Aerospace Telecommunications Limited HK$10,000 Distrbution of broadband
business
PERXER(ER)ERAA 2B 100 100 - - DHARBER
China Energine (Hong Kong) Limited HK$2 Distribution of elevator
products
NAEEERLA BT 100 100 - - REER
New Image Development Limited HK$ | Investment holding
MEERERA BT 100 100 - - RESR
Crownpluss International Limited HKS! Investment holding
EREEMREE -
Registered and operating in the PRC:
IRERIZARAR (M () AR 1182511007 - - 100 100 BEERRDHER
Beijing Energine Industry Co, Ltd. RMBI 18,251,100 Investment holding and
(note (b)) distnbution of wind
turbine generators

208 FEMXERER(ER) BRAT ¢ 2017 FH



an =P jﬁ&#ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LE%R

Name of company

WERR(E)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

EREERREE (£

Registered and operating in the PRC: (Continued)

RAER(AZ)ANEEARDAE (W @)

Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi)
Wind Power Co, Ltd. (note (a))

RRERHMER () ARAA (M)

(note (b))

AR EMASEHMEEREBRA

Inner Mongolia Energine New Energy

Development Co. Ltd. (note (b))

REEMABRESRBERER
Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Wind Turbine Manufacture
Co. Ltd. (note (a))

MR ERASRELTHBRA

Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Composite Materials Co. Ltd.
(note (a))

RAMBBEE TR (RN ERA
(note (b))

& (J13E (b))

RAF (M ()

a) (M7 (a)

A A (BEE (b))

42. TEMBAT - BELTR

EELEEH o

BE2017F 12731 AILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

ERTEERAZ

e/ FMER RAERZEDL

Nominal value of KDAHE REBER

issued ordinary Percentage of equity

share capitall held by attributable TEEY

registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities

2017 2016 2017 2016
% % % %

AR 93,800,000 - - 55 55 [E5EE

RMB93,800,000 Operation of wind
farm

200000005 7T - - 100 00 HEEME

HK$20,000,000 Rental of properties

AR 800000007 - - 100 100 BUERDHEHE

RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and
distribution of wind
turbine generators

AR 500000007 - - 95 95 BERDHERREKER

RMB50,000,000 Manufacture and
distribution of wind
turbine generators
and blades

AR 800000007 - - 564l 5641 BERDBREKER

RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and
distribution of
wind blades

AR 560000007 - - 100 100 BERIHENER

RMB56,000,000 Manufacture and distribution
of telecommunication
products
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42. TEMBAT - BEATR

EELEEH o

LEER

Name of company

WEBAR(E)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

ErERfLER  (F)
Registered and operating in the PRC: (Continued)

ERMABRHELRRAERAR (M (@)
(note (a))

HRMASREERBREBRARNE ()
(note (b))

BBMAERMERREARAR(ME (b))
(note (b))

Keng

Associates

R EERREE -

Registered and Operating in the PRC:
THEFRNETERAA(E @)

Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co, Ltd. (note (a))

EHERENEEARLA(ME Q) - (d)
Jilin Longyuan Wind Power Co, Ltd. (note (a), (d))

AR RRRERNBRAR (M (1)
(note (b))

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

ERTERRAZ
[IEN&R IR RAER 2B
Nominal value of bk ] KEEES
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
share capital/ held by attributable
registered capital the Company to the Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

% % % %

AR#25000,0007T 65 65 - -
RMB25,000,000
AR 80,000,0007T - - 100 100
RMB80,000,000
AR#20,000,0007T - - 100 100
RMB20,000,000
ARE 3333200007 - - 25 25
RMB333,320,000
AR 438,200,000 7T - - 15.35 1535
RMB438,200,000
AR 150,0000007 - - 20 20

RMB150,000,000

IEXE

Principal activities

AEEEER
Distribution of wind
turbine products

HER DR
Manufacture and
distnbution of wind

turbine generators

GRS
Rental of properties

R5EE

Operation of wind farm

&R
Operation of wind farm

E5EE
Operation of wind farm
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42. TEMBAT - BELTR

EELEEH o

LE%R

Name of company

BENAE)
Associates (Continued)

ErEERREE  (£)
Registered and operating in the PRC: (Continued)

EHMABRMANERARDE(WE (2)
Wauxi CASC Energine Xindali Co, Ltd. (note (a))

ENRRERENEBERAR (3 (2)
Gaizhou Energine Wind Power Co,, Ltd. (note (a))
TEAXERRBARAAME @) ()

(note (a), (c))

BIE2017F 12731 HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2017

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

BRITEEREZ
HE/ ERER RrggzEAt
Nominal value of KAARE KEBEL
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
share capitall held by attributable TEXH
registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities

2017 016 2017 2016

% % % %

AR 120,000,0007T
RMB120,000000

AR 171,0700007
RMBI71,070,000

AR 70,000,000
RMB70,000,000

- - 41.67 4167  BUERDEEE
Manufacture and
distribution of wind

turbine generators

- - 878 478 EHEE
Operation of wind farm

- R IAL 3704 BEERDEARKER
Manufacture and distribution

of elevator products
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42. TEMEAT - BZASR  42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

EELEEH o

VENTURES (Continued)
BRTEEREZ
HE/ ERER RrggzEAL
Nominal value of KAARE KEBELR
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NAER share capitall held by attributable
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group
2017 2016 2017 2016
% % % %
RELE
Joint ventures
PR REE -
Registered and operating in the PRC:
IR RERE DR ERZRAR A 16000000 % 7T - - 49 49
(W @) - ()
Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine US$16,000,000
Management Systems Co, Ltd. (note (a), (€))
THEMAERREREZEARAF (@) AR¥100,0000007T - - 50 50
Jiangsu CASC Energine Wind RMB100,000,000
Turbine Manufacture Co, Ltd. (note (a))
NEEAEERMERERAR (it - (¢) ARK926100007T - - 49 49

(note (a), (e)) RMB92,610,000
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SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

IEXE

Principal activities

RENERDRERRR
Rt

Manufacture of automotive
engine management systems

and components

Manufacture of wind turbine

EE
Operation of wind farm
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42. TEMBAT - BELTR
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

Notes:
(@)  Sino-foreign joint entity enterprises registered in the PRC.
(b)  Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC.

() The Group is entitled to appoint up to and has appointed two (2016:
three) out of five directors to the board of directors of this entity as
at 31 December 2017. Hence, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group has lost control over the entity. Accordingly, the
entity is accounted for an associate of the Group as at 3| December
2017 and a subsidiary of the Group as at 31 December 201 6. Detalils are
set out in note 0.

(d)  The Group is entitled to appoint up to and has appointed two out of
nine directors to the board of directors of this entity as at 31 December
2017 and 2016. Hence, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has significant influence over the entity. Accordingly, the entity
is accounted for as a 15.35% owned associate of the Group.

(e)  In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group and the
other shareholder have joint control of the entity because decisions on
the relevant activities of the entity cannot be made without both parties
agreeing.

Except for the companies established in the PRC, the classes of shares
held by the Group in the above companies are ordinary shares issued

by those companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of
the Company which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets or form a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries and
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

reporting period.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the non-controlling
interests of non-wholly owned subsidiaries are all individually not

material.
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43. AATMBRARZER 43. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
@) RREHREARBHBARRRZE (@) Information about the statement of financial position of the
KaE: Company at the end of the reporting period includes:
2017 2016
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - WERRE Property, plant and equipment 1,386 73
RENBAR Investments in subsidiaries 1,398,727 1,398,727
)= UNGIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 158,502 158,502
1,558,615 1,557,302
REBEE Current assets
H A R Yk Other receivables 2,651 2452
i UNEIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 471,315 484353
RITEBRRRE Bank balances and cash 28,933 60,207
502,899 547,012
nEBEE Current liabilities
g5 REAERK Trade and other payables 3,400 4041
g Borrowings 160,000 200,000
163,400 204,041
RBEEFHE Net current assets 339,499 342,971
EEFH Net assets 1,898,114 1,900,273
EXRREE Capital and reserves
(&N Share capital 436,900 436,900
[t Reserves 1,461,214 1,463,373
EReE Total equity 1,898,114 1,900,273

FTEMXEREKR(EE) ERAF ¢ 2017 F#
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43. AT BRARZER 43. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
() OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
(b) REEBMRARAFEEZERS (b)  Information about the reserves of the Company at the end of the
7 reporting period includes:
R4 RE KRR E RHER
Share Special Accumulated BHE
premium reserve losses Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
20161 A1H At January 2016 2,732,397 86971 (1,355831) 463,537
TEEERR Loss and total comprehensive expense
PERAXEE for the year — — (164) (164)
R20165 12 431 B At 31 December 2016 2,732,397 86971 (1,355995) 463,373
TEEBER Loss and total comprehensive expense
PHAXER for the year — — (2,159) (2,159)
RR20174 12 A31 B At 31 December 2017 2,732,397 86971 (1,358,154) [ 461,214

Annual Report 2017 ¢ China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BEZ12A3IALFE
Year ended 31 December
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
FET TET FET TET FHET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
(4 Z7)
(Restated)
(Kr:) (Hfit)
(Note) (Note)
REREEY Continuing operations
= Turnover 1,329,644 2,699,950 2,616,696 2415211 283,374
BREANGF (B58)  Profit (loss) before taxation 31,438 94,280 74,854 94131 (238,167)
BB Taxation (4,049) (1296) Q701  (12367) (5,193)
SEICEEEEER Profit (loss) for the year from
REEZEF (EE)  continuing operations 27,389 92,984 72,153 81,764 (243,360)
BRI EEBESE Loss for the year from
HARFEEE discontinued operation — — — (2,440) (4,588)
REFEHF(EE)  Profit (loss) for the year 27,389 92984 72,153 79,324 (247,948)

Mk A KM% REEEE  RNI7TEE
DEARIEEEET - WI6FENELECER
wy - E=2017F 2 25—

Note: Included results of REPM Products whereby its operation was classified as
discontinued operation in 2017. The results of 2016 has been restated to
conform to the presentation of 2017.

RI12831H
At 31 December

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

FEr FET FET FET FET

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$’000

BERGE ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

BESE Total assets 5204318 5905,267 5,698,802 6,322,715 5,845,669
BE%E Total liabilities (3237,164) (3,564,538) (3,449,874) (4,112552)  (3,744,791)
BEFHE Net assets 1,967,154 2,340,729 2,248,928 2,210,163 2,100,878

TEMXBRER(ER) BRALF « 2017 F3§



CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
FEMXBRER(ER)ERAA

Tel EFF : (852) 2586 1185
Fax & : (852) 2531 0088
Email E  : energine@energine.hk

Website #83t : http://www.energine.hk

Suite 4701, 47th Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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